
 
 
 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
 
Date Friday 21 June 2013 

Time 9.00 am 

Venue Committee Room 1B, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman’s 

agreement 
 
 
1. Appointment of Chairman   

 
2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman   

 
3. Apologies for Absence   

 
4. Substitute Members   

 
5. Code of Conduct - Presentation by Governance Solicitor, Durham 

County Council   

 
6. Declarations of Interest   

 
7. Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan  - Report of Head of 

Planning and Service Strategy, Children and Adults Services, Durham 
County Council  (Pages 1 - 34) 

 
8. Disabled Children's Charter for Health and Wellbeing Boards - Report 

of Head of Planning and Service Strategy, Adult and Children's 
Services, Durham County Council  (Pages 35 - 74) 

 
9. Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning 

Group Local Priorities 2013/14 - Report of Chief Clinical Officer, DDES 
CCG  (Pages 75 - 82) 

 



10. Integration Pioneer Project - Joint Report of Corporate Director, 
Children & Adults Services, Durham County Council and Chief 
Operating Officer, North Durham CCG  (Pages 83 - 86) 

 
11. Policy Update - Report of Strategic Manager - Policy, Planning and 

Partnerships, Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council  
(Pages 87 - 98) 

 
12. Review of Sustainable Community Strategy - Report of Head of 

Partnerships and Community Engagement,  Durham County Council  
(Pages 99 - 102) 

 
13. Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2012-15 - Report of Consultant in 

Public Health, Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council  
(Pages 103 - 112) 

 
14. Securing Quality in Health Services - Report of Project Director, 

Securing Quality in Health Services, Darlington CCG  (Pages 113 - 
120) 

 
15. Monitoring Provider Quality in the NHS - Joint Report of Director of 

Clinical Quality and Primary Care Development, DDES CCG, Director 
of Quality and Safety, North Durham CCG and Medical Director, NHS 
England, Darlington and Tees Area Team  (Pages 121 - 132) 

 
16. Providing Safe and High Quality Care leading up to the Opening of a 

New Hospital - Joint Report of Chief Clinical Officer, DDES CCG and 
Chief Executive, North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust  
(Pages 133 - 152) 

 
17. Update on Winterbourne Review Concordat Implementation - Report of 

Strategic Commissioning Manager, Children and Adults Services, 
Durham County Council  (Pages 153 - 160) 

 
18. Review of NHS Community Services - Joint Report Chief Finance and 

Operating Officer, DDES CCG and Chief Operating Officer, North 
Durham CCG  (Pages 161 - 164) 

 
19. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 

is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
20. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 

discussion of items containing exempt information   

 
21. Minutes of the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board held on 6 March 

2013  (Pages 165 - 172) 

 
22. Pharmacy Relocation Application - Report of Director of Public Health, 

Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council  (Pages 173 - 
190) 



 
23. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 

is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 
 

Colette Longbottom 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
13 June 2013 
 
 
To: The Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
: Durham County Council  

Councillors L Hovvels, O Johnson and M Nicholls 
 
 R Shimmin Corporate Director of Children and Adult 

Services, Durham County Council 
 A Lynch Director of Public Health, Durham County 

Council 
 
 N Bailey North Durham CCG 
 Dr K Bidwell North Durham CCG 
 Dr S Findlay DDES CCG 
 Dr D Roy DDES CCG 
 J Bedlington Local Healthwatch 
 S Jacques County Durham and Darlington NHS 

Foundation Trust 
 A Foster North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation 

Trust 
 M Barkley Tees. Esk and Wear Valley NHS Foundation 

Trust 
 C Harries City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Ian Croft Tel: 03000 269702 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                  
                 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan 
2013/17 
 

 

 

Report of Peter Appleton - Head of Planning & Service Strategy, Children and 
Adults Services, Durham County Council 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to request the Health and Wellbeing Board agree the Joint 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) delivery plan 2013-2017 which is attached at 
Appendix 1. 
 

Background 
 
2. At the meeting on 8th November 2012, the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board agreed 

the JHWS.  Subsequently the JHWS has been approved at Cabinet, Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) Boards and the County Durham Partnership. 
 

3. The JHWS will influence a number of plans and Strategies, including the Council Plan, 
Sustainable Community Strategy, the Children, Young People and Families Plan and 
CCG Clear and Credible Plans.   

 
4. The JHWS delivery plan will ensure that the JHWS is implemented and performance 

managed to ensure that the Health and Wellbeing Board is transparent in showing the 
progress that has been made in the JHWS and what is still left to do. 

 
5. Following agreement at the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board in January 2013, 

further discussion has taken place between local authority and CCG colleagues to reflect 
wider work programmes that are taking place within the NHS landscape.   
 

6. Consequently, the Care Closer to Home Group and the Clinical Programme Board 
community services and intermediate care sub group will merge to become the 
Community Services and Care Closer to Home Group. The change in governance 
arrangements has been circulated to key stakeholders. 

 
Development of the JHWS delivery plan 

 
7. Work has taken place to align the JHWS delivery plan to relevant partnership strategic 

plans to ensure a coherent forward plan of action. 
 

8. Further refinement has taken place to ensure that the JHWS delivery plan reflects the 
Clinical Commissioning Group’s three local priorities.  A separate report is presented at 
this meeting in relation to this issue. 
 

9. The Health and Wellbeing Board governance arrangements have been utilised where 
appropriate in terms of lead responsibility for specific areas of work within the JHWS 
delivery plan to ensure accountability to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  Other delivery 

Agenda Item 7

Page 1



 

actions have lead officers who will carry out the specific areas of work, for example, 
Public Health consultants. 
 

10. This work has also taken into account changes following the new NHS configurations 
from April 2013, in relation to who will be responsible for delivering actions. 
 

11. Worksheets have been developed and will be provided for each identified delivery 
group/lead officer to take forward the actions in the JHWS delivery plan. 

 
 

Performance Monitoring 
 
12. The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy will be performance managed in order to 

provide an update on indicators, targets and direction of travel in relation to the delivery 
plan. 

 
Recommendations 
 
13. The Health and Wellbeing Board are requested to agree: 

• the JHWS delivery plan which is attached at Appendix 1  

• note that a performance report will be presented to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board in November 2013. 
 

Contacts:     Andrea Petty, Strategic Manager – Policy, Planning &   
                      Partnerships Tel: 03000 267312 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 
 
 

 
Finance - The demographic profile of the County in terms of both an ageing and projected 
increase in population will present future budget pressures to the County Council and NHS 
partners for the commissioning of health and social care services.    
 
Staffing - No direct implications. 
 
Risk - No direct implications. 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – An Equality Impact Assessment 
has been completed for the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) and is available on 
Durham County Council’s website.  
 
Accommodation - No direct implications. 
 
Crime and Disorder – No direct implications 
 
Human Rights - No direct implications. 
 
Consultation - Engagement events on the draft strategic objectives and actions in the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy took place in June/July 2012.  Wider consultation was carried 
out on the full draft Strategy from 6th September – 19th October 2012. 
 
Procurement - The Health and Social Care Act 2012 outlines that commissioners should 
take regard of the JSNA and JHWS when exercising their functions in relation to the 
commissioning of health and social care services. 
 
Disability Issues – Issues in relation to disability have been considered throughout the 
development of the JHWS. 
 
Legal Implications - The Health and Social Care Act 2012 places clear duties on local 
authorities and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) to prepare a JHWS. The local 
authority must publish the JHWS.  The Health and Wellbeing Board lead the development of 
the JHWS.  
 
 

 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



C
o

u
n

ty
D

u
rh

a
m

Jo
in

t
H

e
a

lt
h

a
n

d
W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

S
tr

a
te

g
y

2
0

1
3

-
2

0
1

7

D
e

liv
e

ry
P

la
n

Im
pr

ov
e
th

e
he

al
th

an
d
we

llb
ein

g
of

th
e
pe

op
le

of
Co
un

ty
D
ur
ha

m
an

d
re
du
ce

he
al
th

ine
qu

al
itie

s
‘

‘
H
ea
lth

In
de
pe
nd
en
ce

W
el
lb
ei
ng

Su
pp
or
t

Page 5



Page 6



J
O

IN
T

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 –

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
3
/2

0
1
7

 

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 1
: 

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 A

N
D

 Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 M

A
K

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
Y

 C
H

O
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 H

A
V

E
 T

H
E

 B
E

S
T

 S
T

A
R

T
 I
N

 L
IF

E

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

Im
p

ro
v
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 w

o
m

e
n

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

re
a
s
tf

e
e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 b
a
b

ie
s

!
 

U
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 a
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 b
re

a
s
tf

e
e

d
in

g
 

a
tt
it
u
d
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
b
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
is

te
n
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
to

 w
o
m

e
n
 o

n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 i
n

 a
n
te

n
a
ta

l 
a
n
d
 p

o
s
tn

a
ta

l 
p
e
ri
o
d
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 d
u
ra

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
  

!
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t
h
e
 U

N
IC

E
F

 B
a
b
y
 F

ri
e
n
d
ly

 S
c
h
e
m

e
  

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
L

e
a

d
 -

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 w

it
h

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 o

b
e
s
e
 o

r 
o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 W

e
ig

h
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
h
a
t 
fo

c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a
s
e
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 

a
ro

u
n

d
: 

o
 

P
a
re

n
ti
n
g
 

o
 

E
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 f
e
e
d
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

o
 

N
u
tr

it
io

n
 

o
 

P
la

y
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 
a
n
d
 

o
 

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

 p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 s

k
ill

s
  

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 W

e
ig

h
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
L

e
a
d

 –
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

4
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 s
in

g
le

 p
a

th
w

a
y
 f

o
r 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 b

y
 m

id
w

iv
e
s
 a

n
d

 h
e
a
lt

h
 

v
is

it
o

rs
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 C

h
il

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

!
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
 s

h
a
re

d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 A

re
a
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
0
-5

 y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n
 C

o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

5
-1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

!
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

lin
ic

ia
n
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 m

id
w

iv
e
s
 i
n
 a

n
te

n
a
ta

l 
c
lin

ic
s
 f
o
r 

p
re

g
n
a
n
t 
w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

h
a

v
e
 a

 m
e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 o

r 
a
re

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 m
e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 a

ft
e
r 

g
iv

in
g
 b

ir
th

 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 P

o
o
rl
y
 C

h
ild

 P
a
th

w
a
y

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 R
e
s
p
ir
a
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ilo
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

n
 

a
n

n
u
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

8
 w

it
h

 a
s
th

m
a

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
n

 A
s
th

m
a

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n
. 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
L

e
a
d

 –
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 

T
e
e
s
, 
E

s
k
 &

 W
e
a
r 

V
a
ll
e

y
 

(T
E

W
V

) 
T

ru
s
t 

- 
D

ir
e
c

to
r 

o
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 f
o

r 
D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n

d
 D

a
rl

in
g

to
n

 

C
li
n

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 (

C
C

G
s
) 

D
u

rh
a

m
 D

a
le

s
 

E
a
s
in

g
to

n
 S

e
d

g
e
fi

e
ld

 
C

li
n

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

 (
C

C
G

) 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
re

 w
o
rk

 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
re

 w
o
rk

 

T
E

W
V

 L
o
c
a
lit

y
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n

d
 

D
a

rl
in

g
to

n
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 C

re
d

ib
le

 
P

la
n
s

D
D

E
S

 C
C

G
 C

le
a
r 

a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
 

Page 7



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a
l 
w

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
, 
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li
ty

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 n
e
e
d

 i
t 

!
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
e
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
it
h

 s
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 (

Y
e
a

r 
1

0
 –

 a
g

e
 1

4
/1

5
) 

!
 

D
e
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 O

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
T

h
e

ra
p

y
 a

n
d

 S
p

e
e
c
h

 a
n
d

 L
a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 

T
h
e
ra

p
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

!
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 C
h

ild
 a

n
d

 A
d

o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 (

C
A

M
H

s
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
N

o
rt

h
 D

u
rh

a
m

  

!
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 r

o
llo

u
t 
A

u
ti
s
ti
c
 S

p
e
c
tr

u
m

 D
is

o
rd

e
r 

p
a
th

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
t 

d
ia

g
n
o

s
is

 

!
 

D
e
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 n

u
rs

in
g

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

C
li
n

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 (

C
C

G
s
)

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 C

re
d

ib
le

 
P

la
n
s

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 a

v
a

il
a
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
g

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 (
e
.g

. 
to

b
a
c
c
o

 a
n

d
 a

lc
o

h
o

l)
 t

o
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

!
 

E
n

s
u
re

 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 m

o
d

e
l 
fo

r 
a

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
  

 

!
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 f
o

r 
re

ta
ile

rs
  
 

!
 

U
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 a
n
 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

-l
e

d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 c

h
e
a

p
 a

n
d

 i
lli

c
it
 t
o

b
a
c
c
o

 a
n

d
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 

!
 

W
o
rk

 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o
n

s
ta

b
u

la
ry

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 p
ro

x
y
 s

a
le

s
 (

a
lc

o
h

o
l)
 

T
o

b
a

c
c

o
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

ll
ia

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 

D
u

rh
a

m
  

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
H

a
rm

 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

T
o

b
a
c
c
o

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 

A
lli

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
H

a
rm

 R
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 t
a
k
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir

 a
g

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 r

is
k
 t

a
k
in

g
 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
rs

 e
.g

. 
s
m

o
k
in

g
, 
d

ri
n

k
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l,
 t

e
e
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n

c
e
p

ti
o

n
s
  

!
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 t
a
k
in

g
 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

e
.g

. 
s
m

o
k
in

g
, 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
, 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 R

is
k
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
to

 c
o
p
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

w
it
h
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 h

e
a
lt
h

ie
r 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
H

a
rm

 
R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 C
o

o
rd

in
a
to

r 

L
o

c
u

m
 P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

7
 

C
h

ild
re

n
, 
Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
a

n
d

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 P

la
n

 

C
h

ild
re

n
, 
Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
a

n
d

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 P

la
n

 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 o

ra
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

  

!
 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
d
e
n
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

L
o

c
u

m
 P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

t 
in

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

  
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

N
/A

Page 8



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 ‘
b

a
b

y
 c

le
a

r’
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
fi

rs
t 

p
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

a
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

p
ro

je
c

t 
th

a
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
s
to

p
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
w

o
m

e
n

) 
to

 
re

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o

m
e
n

 w
h

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 s

m
o

k
e
 d

u
ri

n
g

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
  

!
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 t
o

 m
id

w
iv

e
s
/s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 
s
to

p
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 

n
e
w

 r
e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a
y
 

!
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
re

g
n
a
n
t 
w

o
m

e
n
 t
o
 s

to
p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 b

y
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

  

T
o

b
a

c
c

o
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

ll
ia

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 

D
u

rh
a
m

 i
n

 
c
o

ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
C

C
G

s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

T
o

b
a
c
c
o

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 

A
lli

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 e

x
p

o
s
u

re
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 s
e
c
o

n
d

 
h

a
n

d
 s

m
o

k
e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

m
o

k
e
 F

re
e
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

  

!
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a

s
e
lin

e
 f
o
r 

C
o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

o
f 
h
o
w

 m
a
n
y
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 e

x
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 

s
e
c
o

n
d

 h
a

n
d

 s
m

o
k
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
r 

!
 

P
u

b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
ir
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
m

o
k
e

 f
re

e
 f
a

m
ily

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
  

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

C
G

s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 l
o
w

e
r 

re
s
p
ir
a
to

ry
 

tr
a
c
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

T
o

b
a

c
c

o
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

ll
ia

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 

D
u

rh
a
m

 i
n

 
c
o

ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
C

C
G

s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

T
o

b
a
c
c
o

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 

A
lli

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s

Page 9



P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
T

a
b

le
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 b

o
ld

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
k
e
t 
o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

B
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
o
n
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
b

re
a
s
tf

e
e
d

in
g

 a
t 

6
-8

 w
e
e
k
s
 f

ro
m

 b
ir

th
. 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 r
e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 h
e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

re
c
o

rd
e
d

 w
h

o
 

h
a
v
e

 e
x
c
e
s
s
 w

e
ig

h
t 

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c

h
il

d
re

n
 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

6
 w

it
h

 h
e

ig
h

t 
a

n
d

 w
e
ig

h
t 

re
c

o
rd

e
d

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 
e
x
c
e
s
s
 w

e
ig

h
t.

 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

's
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 o
u
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
p
o
rt

 (
y
e
a

r 
6
 a

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

9
).

 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 h

a
p
p
y
 (

y
e
a
r 

6
 

a
n

d
 y

e
a

r 
9
).

 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 f
e
e
l 
lo

n
e
ly

 (
y
e
a
r 

6
 

a
n

d
 y

e
a

r 
9
).

 

T
a

rg
e

t 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
n

e
w

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 C
h

ild
 a

n
d

 A
d

o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

C
A

M
H

S
).

1
0
%

  
in

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

1
0
%

in
c
re

a
s
e

 
fr

o
m

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
r

1
0
%

in
c
re

a
s
e

 
fr

o
m

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
r

1
0
%

in
c
re

a
s
e

 
fr

o
m

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
r

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 d

ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
(y

e
a
r 

9
).

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 t
a
k
e
 d

ru
g
s
 (

y
e
a

r 
9
) 

T
a

rg
e

t 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
y
o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n
 T

ie
r 

3
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
fo

r 
d

ru
g

s
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h
o

l 
w

it
h

 4
R

e
a

l.
 

2
9

5
 

Page 10



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
A

lc
o

h
o

l 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

’s
. 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
e

x
it
s
 f
ro

m
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

rs
o

n
’s

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
a
re

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
s
. 

7
9
%

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
U

n
d

e
r 

1
6

 c
o

n
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

  

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
U

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 c
o

n
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

  

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
m

o
th

e
rs

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
ti
m

e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 
2
0
.6

%
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

In
fa

n
t 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

, 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 l
iv

e
 b

ir
th

s
 a

n
d
 s

ti
ll 

b
ir
th

s
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

S
ti
llb

ir
th

 a
n

d
 n

e
o

n
a

ta
l 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 l
iv

e
 b

ir
th

s
 a

n
d

 s
ti
llb

ir
th

s
. 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
ra

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
e
r 

re
s
p

ir
a

to
ry

 t
ra

c
t 
in

fe
c
ti
o

n
  

(D
ir
e
c
tl
y
 a

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
x
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

is
e
d

 r
a

te
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
9

 (
0

-1
8

 y
e

a
rs

) 
a

d
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 
h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
w

it
h

 l
o

w
e
r 

re
s
p

ir
a

to
ry

 t
ra

c
t 
in

fe
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 a

n
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r)

 

Page 11



S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 2
: 

 R
E

D
U

C
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 I
N

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S

 A
N

D
 E

A
R

L
Y

 D
E

A
T

H
S

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 j
o

in
t 

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
s
 w

it
h

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

w
il
l 
re

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 c
a

n
c

e
r,

 h
e

a
rt

 d
is

e
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 s

tr
o

k
e
s

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

y
s
te

m
a
ti

c
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 

!
 

U
s
e
 C

C
G

 h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

!
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 j
o
in

t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 C

C
G

 h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 L

e
d
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 S

tr
o
k
e
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

!
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 h

e
a
rt

 f
a

ilu
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
/p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

u
lm

o
n

a
ry

 r
e

h
a
b

 

!
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

a
th

w
a
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

tr
o

k
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
C

a
n

c
e
r 

a
n

d
 C

V
D

 

D
u

rh
a

m
 D

a
le

s
 

E
a
s
in

g
to

n
 S

e
d

g
e
fi

e
ld

 
C

li
n

ic
a
l

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

 (
C

C
G

) 

N
o

rt
h

 D
u

rh
a
m

 
C

li
n

ic
a
l

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

 (
C

C
G

) 

N
o

rt
h

 D
u

rh
a
m

 &
 

D
u

rh
a

m
 D

a
le

s
 

E
a
s
in

g
to

n
 S

e
d

g
e
fi

e
ld

 
C

li
n

ic
a
l

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

 (
C

C
G

) 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

D
D

E
S

 C
C

G
 C

le
a
r 

a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
 

N
D

 C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a

n
d

 
C

re
d
ib

le
 P

la
n
 

N
D

 C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a

n
d

 
C

re
d
ib

le
 P

la
n
 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 C
li
n

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

H
e
a
lt

h
 C

h
e
c
k
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

!
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 b
y
: 

o
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

h
e
c
k
4
L
if
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

o
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 n

e
w

 C
h
e

c
k
4

L
if
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

p
h
a
rm

a
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
 

C
o

n
d

u
c
ti
n

g
 a

 s
o

c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 h

e
a

rt
 h

e
a

lt
h
 

C
C

G
’s

 i
n

 
c
o

ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
C

V
D

  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

o
re

 
O

ff
e
r 

to
 C

C
G

s
/ 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

P
la

n
/C

C
G

 
C

le
a
r 

a
n

d
 C

re
d

ib
le

 
P

la
n
s

Page 12



U
s
e
 a

ll
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 t

o
o

ls
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
p

o
o

r 
h

e
a
lt

h
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

ly
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 w

id
e

n
in

g
 g

a
p

s
 i
n

 l
if

e
 

e
x

p
e

c
ta

n
c

y
 

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 e

q
u
it
y
 a

u
d
it
s
 

!
 

U
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 a
 C

a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u

la
r 

D
is

e
a
s
e

 (
C

V
D

) 
h

e
a

lt
h

 e
q
u

it
y
 a

u
d

it
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

E
p

id
e
m

io
lo

g
is

t 
in

 
c
o

ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

  
C

li
n

ic
a
l

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 (

C
C

G
s
) 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

o
re

 
O

ff
e
r 

to
 C

C
G

s
 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e
c
to

r 
to

 o
ff

e
r 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o

t 
e
n

g
a
g

e
 w

e
ll
 w

it
h

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 h
e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

!
 

U
s
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 H

e
a
lt
h
 E

q
u
it
y
 A

u
d
it
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
  

to
 t
a
rg

e
t 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ra
in

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
 

!
 

A
p
p
ly

 a
n
 a

s
s
e
t 
b
a
s
e
d

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ra

in
e

r 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ra

in
e
r 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

  

H
e
a
lt

h
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4

 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n

W
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 m

is
u

s
e
 d

ru
g

s
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 D
ru

g
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

C
o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

!
 

U
n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
m

is
u
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p
s
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

, 
p

re
g

n
a

n
t 
w

o
m

e
n

, 
th

o
s
e

 w
it
h

 d
u

a
l 
d

ia
g

n
o
s
is

 a
n

d
 v

e
te

ra
n
s
 

!
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 H
e

a
lt
h

 N
e

tw
o

rk
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
c
to

r 
to

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
lo

c
a
l 
a
lc

o
h
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

!
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

lc
o
h

o
l 
lia

is
o
n

 n
u

rs
e
s
 i
n

 E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
  

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
A

lc
o

h
o

l 
a
n

d
 D

ru
g

s
 

A
lc

o
h

o
l

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

N
/A

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
H

a
rm

 
R

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s

iv
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 w

id
e

r 
to

b
a

c
c

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 e

x
p

o
s
u

re
 t

o
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 h
a
n

d
 s

m
o

k
e
, 
h

e
lp

in
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 s
to

p
 

s
m

o
k
in

g
, 
re

d
u

c
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b

il
it

y
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
ll
ic

it
 t

ra
d

e
),

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
b

a
c
c
o

, 
e
n

g
a
g

e
 i
n

 m
e
d

ia
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

ig
h

te
r 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

n
 

to
b

a
c

c
o

 

!
 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
lli

a
n
c
e
 p

la
n
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc

is
e

T
o

b
a

c
c

o
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

ll
ia

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 

D
u

rh
a

m
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
3
 

T
o

b
a
c
c
o

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 

A
lli

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

R
a
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
c
a
n

c
e

r 
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 e
a
rl

ie
r 

d
ia

g
n

o
s
is

 a
n

d
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
 

u
p

ta
k

e
 o

f 
c
a
n

c
e

r 
s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 w
h

e
re

 t
a
k

e
 u

p
 i
s

 
lo

w
  

!
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

a
n
c
e
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 l
o
c
a
lly

 f
o
r 

C
o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

!
 

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
d

ia
g

n
o
s
is

 o
f 
c
a
n

c
e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
a
n
c
e
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 
to

o
l 
a
s
 a

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
c
a
n
c
e
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
 

C
a

n
c
e

r 
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
  

Page 13



P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p

h
y
s

ic
a
l 
a
c
ti

v
it

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
o

re
 a

c
ti

v
e
 l
if

e
s
ty

le
s
 

!
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

 

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
re

 o
ff
e
r 

fo
r 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n

ty
 w

it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 g

e
o
g
ra

p
h
y
/h

e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
 

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 e

.g
. 

c
y
c
le

 a
n
d
 w

a
lk

 r
o
u
te

s
/l
e
g
a
c
y
 g

y
m

s
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 L
e
a
d

 -
P

h
y
s

ic
a
l 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
/ 

O
b

e
s
it

y
 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 D
C

C
 

C
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 S
p

o
rt

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

S
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
  

2
0

1
1
-1

4
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 W

e
ig

h
t 

A
ll

ia
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

; 
b

ri
n

g
 a

ll
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 

o
f 

a
n

 o
b

e
s
it

y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 W

e
ig

h
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 W

e
ig

h
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 L
e
a
d

 –
 

C
h

il
d

h
o

o
d

 O
b

e
s
it

y
/ 

A
d

u
lt

 O
b

e
s

it
y

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

4
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

P
ro

d
u

c
e
 a

 F
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 N

u
tr

it
io

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 w

o
rk

 a
ro

u
n

d
 

p
o

li
c

y
, 
fo

o
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
  

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 f
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

!
 

E
n
s
u
re

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fo

o
d
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 a

re
 a

 v
is

ib
le

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
  

  
  

  
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 

!
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 f
o

o
d
 a

n
d

 n
u

tr
it
io

n
 p

la
n
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 L
e
a
d

 –
 

P
h

y
s

ic
a
l 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
/ 

O
b

e
s

it
y
 &

 F
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 

H
e
a
lt

h
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

4
 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
P

la
n

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
P

la
n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 i
n

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
p

ra
c

ti
c
e
 a

n
d

 s
a
v
e

 c
o

s
ts

 a
ro

u
n

d
 q

u
it

ti
n

g
 s

m
o

k
in

g
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

 d
ri

n
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 

!
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 E

x
e
rc

is
e
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
P

a
th

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

!
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
L
o
c
a
l 
E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

L
E

S
) 

in
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 G

P
’s

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 o

ff
e

r 
G

P
’s

 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 s

c
re

e
n

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
b
ri
e
f 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
  

!
 

C
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 w
e

ig
h

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
to

p
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 L
e
a
d

 –
 

P
h

y
s

ic
a
l 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
/ 

O
b

e
s

it
y
 /
T

o
b

a
c

c
o

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 

C
li
n

ic
a
l

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 (

C
C

G
s
) 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
A

lc
o

h
o

l 
a
n

d
 D

ru
g

s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
1

3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

Page 14



T
o

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 a
n

d
 r

o
ll
 o

u
t 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

fu
e
l 
p

o
v
e
rt

y
 o

n
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 m

o
rt

a
li
ty

 a
n

d
 m

o
rb

id
it

y
 

!
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 p

o
o
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 ‘
s
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
’ 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

!
 

C
o
lle

c
t 
a
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n

t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h
in

 C
o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 
fo

r 
O

ld
e

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
W

in
te

r 
D

e
a

th
s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

Page 15



P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
b

le
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 b

o
ld

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
k
e
t 
o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
  

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
o

rt
a
li
ty

 f
ro

m
 a

ll
 c

a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u

la
r 

d
is

e
a
s
e
s
 (

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 h
e
a
rt

 d
is

e
a
s
e
 a

n
d

 
s
tr

o
k
e

) 
fo

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
 a

g
e
d

 u
n

d
e
r 

7
5
 y

e
a
rs

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
  

6
2
.9

(2
0

1
2

) 
5
8
.8

(2
0

1
3

) 
5
4
.9

(2
0

1
4

) 
5
1
.3

(2
0

1
5

) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

M
o

rt
a

li
ty

 f
ro

m
 c

a
n

c
e

r 
fo

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

7
5

 y
e

a
rs

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

1
1

6
.1

(2
0

1
2

) 
1

1
3

.9
(2

0
1
3

) 
1
1
1
.8

 
(2

0
1
4

) 
1

0
9

.7
(2

0
1
5

) 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

S
lo

p
e
 I
n
d
e
x
 o

f 
In

e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 

T
a

rg
e
t 

T
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

th
e

 N
H

S
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
h

e
c

k
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 –
 b

y
 t

h
o

s
e

 e
li

g
ib

le
 

(p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
e
li
g

ib
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 a

 N
H

S
 H

e
a
lt

h
 C

h
e
c
k
) 

 
(2

0
%

 o
f 

e
li
g

ib
le

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

) 

(2
0

%
 o

f 
e
li
g

ib
le

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

) 

(2
0

%
 o

f 
e
li
g

ib
le

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

) 

(2
0

%
 o

f 
e
li
g

ib
le

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

M
o

rt
a

li
ty

 f
ro

m
 l
iv

e
r 

d
is

e
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

7
5

 y
e

a
rs

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0
0

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
1

8
.5

(2
0
1
0
-1

2
) 

1
8

.8
(2

0
1
1
-1

3
) 

1
9

.1
(2

0
1
2
-1

4
) 

1
9

.4
(2

0
1
3
-1

5
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

M
o

rt
a

li
ty

 f
ro

m
 r

e
s

p
ir

a
to

ry
 d

is
e

a
s

e
s

 f
o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

7
5

 y
e

a
rs

 p
e

r 
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
  

2
8

.5
(2

0
1
0
-1

2
) 

2
7
.8

 
(2

0
1
1
-1

3
) 

2
7
.1

 
(2

0
1
2
-1

4
) 

2
6
.4

 
(2

0
1
3
-1

5
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

M
o

rt
a

li
ty

 f
o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
 a

g
e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
7

5
 y

e
a

rs
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

  
2

9
6

.8
  
(2

0
1

1
) 

2
8
8

(2
0

1
2

) 
2
7
9
.5

 (
2
0
1
3
) 

2
7
1
.2

(2
0

1
4

) 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 r
e
c
e

iv
in

g
 f
ir
s
t 
d

e
fi
n

it
iv

e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
fo

r 
c
a
n

c
e
r 

w
it
h

in
 3

1
 d

a
y
s
 

fr
o

m
 d

ia
g
n

o
s
is

 (
d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o
 t
re

a
t 
d

a
te

).
 

9
6
%

T
a

rg
e

t
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 f
ir
s
t 
d
e
fi
n
it
iv

e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
fo

r 
c
a
n

c
e
r 

w
it
h

in
 6

2
 d

a
y
s
 

o
f 
a
n
 u

rg
e
n
t 
G

P
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
fo

r 
s
u
s
p
e
c
te

d
 c

a
n
c
e
r.

 
8
5
%

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
M

a
le

 l
if

e
 e

x
p

e
c

ta
n

c
y
 a

t 
b

ir
th

 (
y
e

a
rs

) 

Page 16



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

F
e
m

a
le

 l
if

e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

t 
b

ir
th

 (
y
e
a
rs

).
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

in
 d

ru
g

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
- 

O
p

ia
te

s
 

1
1

%
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

in
 d

ru
g

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
- 

N
o

n
 O

p
ia

te
s
 

4
8

%
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

lc
o
h

o
l-
re

la
te

d
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
(e

x
a
c
t 
d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

).
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
a
ll
 e

x
it

s
 f

ro
m

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
re

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
s
. 

2
 %

p
o

in
ts

 
a

b
o

v
e

 
E

n
g

la
n

d
a

v
e

ra
g

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

F
o

u
r 

w
e
e
k

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it

te
rs

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

1
1
9
3
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 
(5

,0
6

6
) 

 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
f 
p

e
rs

o
n
s
 a

g
e
d

 1
8

 a
n
d

 o
v
e

r 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 a
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
a
c
ti
v
e
 a

d
u
lt
s
. 
  

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 w

e
ig

h
t 
in

 a
d
u
lt
s
. 
 (

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 
o
r 

o
b
e
s
e
) 

T
a
rg

e
t 

 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n

 i
n

 a
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 e

li
g

ib
le

 f
o

r 
b

re
a
s
t 

s
c

re
e
n

in
g

 a
t 

a
 

g
iv

e
n

 p
o

in
t 

in
 t

im
e
 w

h
o

 w
e
re

 s
c
re

e
n

e
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
ly

 w
it

h
in

 a
 s

p
e
c
if

ie
d

 p
e
ri

o
d

. 
7

0
%

 

Page 17



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n

 i
n

 a
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 e

li
g

ib
le

 f
o

r 
c
e
rv

ic
a
l 

s
c
re

e
n

in
g

 a
t 

a
 

g
iv

e
n

 p
o

in
t 

in
 t

im
e
 w

h
o

 w
e
re

 s
c
re

e
n

e
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
ly

 w
it

h
in

 a
 s

p
e
c
if

ie
d

 p
e
ri

o
d

. 
8

0
%

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 e
li
g

ib
le

 f
o

r 
b

o
w

e
l 
c
a

n
c
e
r 

s
c

re
e
n

in
g

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 s
c
re

e
n

e
d

 
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

ly
 w

it
h

in
 a

 s
p

e
c
if

ie
d

 p
e
ri

o
d

. 
6

0
%

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 e

x
c

e
s

s
 w

in
te

r 
d

e
a

th
s

. 

Page 18



S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 3
: 

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
 T

H
E

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 O
F

 L
IF

E
, 

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 C
A

R
E

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 W

IT
H

 L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

a
re

rs
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

ff
e
re

d
  
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

O
P

/P
D

S
I 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

C
A

S
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 

W
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 d
e
m

e
n

ti
a
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
 

fo
r 

a
s
 l
o

n
g

 a
s

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
  

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 g

iv
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
: 

o
 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 d

ia
g

n
o
s
is

 
o

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
Y

e
a
r 

2
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
 l
ia

is
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

o
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
Y

e
a
r 

2
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
u
te

 c
a
re

 l
ia

is
o
n
 m

o
d
e
l 

o
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
lif

e
 c

a
re

 
o

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

W
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 g

iv
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 g

re
a
te

r 
c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

y
 

p
u

rc
h

a
s

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
 

!
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 d
ir
e
c
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
  

!
 

U
s
e

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n
g

 c
a

m
p
a

ig
n
s
 t
o

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 t
h

e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
 (

D
IG

) 
w

e
b
s
it
e
 

P
e
rs

o
n

a
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

E
x
te

n
d

 D
ir

e
c
t 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

h
e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l
o

n
g

 t
e
rm

 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

!
 

R
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
d

ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 C

C
G

s
  

!
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 u
s
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 b
u
d

g
e

ts

P
e
rs

o
n

a
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
A

S
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 c

a
re

 a
s
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 h

o
m

e
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

!
 

R
e
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 
c
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 t
o
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t 
a

v
o

id
a
n

c
e

 o
f 
n

o
n

-e
le

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 u

n
p

la
n

n
e

d
 c

a
re

 

!
 

H
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 p

h
a
rm

a
c
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 c
a

re
/n

u
rs

in
g

 h
o

m
e
s
 

!
 

S
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t
h
e
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

lia
is

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

!
 

In
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 W

in
te

rb
o
u
rn

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 
w

ill
: o

 
W

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
 c

a
re

 o
f 
a

ll 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 o
r 

a
u

ti
s
m

 i
n

p
a

ti
e
n

t 
b

e
d
s
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
c
a

re
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l,
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
’ 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
; 
 

o
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 D

o
H

 ‘
S

to
c
k
ta

k
e
’ 
to

 o
u
tl
in

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
. 

o
 

P
u

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
c
a

re
 p

la
n
s
 i
n

to
 a

c
ti
o

n
 s

o
 t
h
a

t 
a

ll 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 
p
e
rs

o
n
a

lis
e
d
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

L
o

c
a
l 
W

in
te

rb
o

u
rn

e
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

G
ro

u
p

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
3
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

Page 19



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

M
a
in

ta
in

 p
e
o

p
le

’s
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 u

n
p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 

e
x
p

a
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
e

lf
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

!
 

E
v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
T

e
le

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 T

e
le

c
a
re

 p
ilo

ts
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

m
a

in
s
tr

e
a

m
in

g
 i
f 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 r
e
tu

rn
 h

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l,
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 

th
e
m

 t
o

 r
e
c
o

v
e

r 
m

o
re

 q
u

ic
k
ly

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 b
e
tt

e
r 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
a
re

 

!
 

E
v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
H

o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ilo
t 
to

 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

!
 

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 n
u
rs

in
g
 h

o
m

e
s
 

!
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 r

e
la

te
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 b

y
 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 u

n
p

la
n

n
e
d

 h
o
s
p

it
a

lis
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
c
h

ro
n

ic
 a

m
b

u
la

to
ry

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 a

b
il
it

y
 t

o
 r

e
a
c
h

 t
h

e
ir

 b
e
s
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
in

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 b

y
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 m
o

re
 s

h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 c
a

re
 (

re
a

b
le

m
e

n
t/

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a
re

) 
in

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

s
e
tt

in
g

s
 

!
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
h

o
rt

 t
e
rm

 c
a
re

 o
v
e
r 

a
 2

4
 h

o
u
rs

 a
 d

a
y
, 
7
 

d
a
y
s
 a

 w
e
e
k
 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e

!
 

H
e

lp
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 l
o
n

g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
e

lf
-m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t

!
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 n

u
rs

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

b
e
tt
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

!
 

W
o
rk

in
g

 j
o

in
tl
y
 w

it
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n
d

 D
a

rl
in

g
to

n
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n
d

a
ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 
to

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 c
a
re

 p
a

th
w

a
y
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

a
p

id
 

re
s
p

o
n
s
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

te
p

 u
p

 a
n

d
 s

te
p

 d
o

w
n
 m

o
d

e
l 
o

f 
c
a
re

 f
o

r 
in

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a
re

 
b

e
d
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a
te

d
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 a

v
o

id
 p

e
o

p
le

 
re

tu
rn

in
g

 b
a
c
k
 t

o
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 

!
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 3

0
 d

a
y
 r

e
-a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 p

ilo
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

!
 

S
c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
  
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

is
c
h
a

rg
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

  

!
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 
A

&
E

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 

!
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 c

a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 h
a
d

 a
 f

a
ll
, 

a
n

d
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

o
s
e
 w

h
o

 a
re

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
fa

ll
in

g
 

!
 

E
x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 f
a
lls

 p
a
th

w
a
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
/C

A
S

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 

Page 20



P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
b

le
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 b

o
ld

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
k
e
t 
o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
  

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
c
a

re
rs

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
a

ll 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
3
7
%

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

C
a
re

r 
re

p
o
rt

e
d

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

T
a

rg
e

t 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
a

re
rs

 w
it
h

 s
o
c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

8
2

.6
%

 

P
la

c
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 d

ia
g

n
o
s
is

 r
a

te
 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
e

m
e

n
ti
a
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

S
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 r
e
la

te
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 -

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

h
e
lp

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
h
e
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

9
2
%

 
9
2
%

 
9
2
%

 
9
2
%

 

T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 u

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
o

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
ir
 d

a
ily

 l
if
e
 

8
0
.1

%
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 u
s
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 w
h

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 s

e
lf

-d
ir

e
c
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 
a
n

d
 

th
o

s
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 d

ir
e

c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

5
5

%
 

6
0

%
 

T
a

rg
e

t 

A
d

u
lt
s
 a

g
e
d

 1
8

-6
4

 p
e

r 
1
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 a
d

m
it
te

d
 o

n
 a

 p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

t 
b

a
s
is

 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
o

r 
n

u
rs

in
g

 c
a

re
 

0
.1

4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
A

d
u

lt
s
 a

g
e
d

 6
5

+
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

d
m

it
te

d
 o

n
 a

 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
b
a
s
is

 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
o
r 

n
u

rs
in

g
 c

a
re

 
8

.5
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 (
6
5
 a

n
d

 o
v
e
r)

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 s
ti

ll
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 9

1
 d

a
y
s

 a
ft

e
r 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 f

ro
m

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
in

to
 r

e
a
b

le
m

e
n

t/
 r

e
h

a
b

il
it

a
ti

o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

8
5

%
 

8
5

%
 

8
5

%
 

8
5

%
 

Page 21



In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 o
n
g

o
in

g
 c

a
re

 n
e
e

d
s
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
a
 r

e
a

b
le

m
e

n
t 
p
a

c
k
a

g
e
 

5
5
%

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 r

e
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 3

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
(N

B
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

ro
a
d
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
) 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

D
e
la

y
e

d
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

 f
ro

m
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 
p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 

D
e
la

y
e

d
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

 f
ro

m
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

tt
ri

b
u

ta
b

le
 t

o
 a

d
u

lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c

a
re

 p
e

r 
1
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

F
a

lls
 a

n
d

 i
n

ju
ri
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

r 
6

5
s
. 
 (

A
g

e
-s

e
x
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 r

a
te

 o
f 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

fa
lls

 o
r 

fa
lls

 i
n

ju
ri
e
s
 i
n

 p
e
rs

o
n
s
 a

g
e

d
 6

5
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r)
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

H
ip

 f
ra

c
tu

re
s
 i
n
 o

v
e
r 

6
5
s
. 
 (

A
g
e
-s

e
x
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d

 r
a

te
 o

f 
e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
fr

a
c
tu

re
d

 n
e

c
k
 o

f 
fe

m
u

r 
in

 p
e

rs
o

n
s
 a

g
e

d
 6

5
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
p

e
r 

1
0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
) 

Page 22



S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 4
: 

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
 M

E
N

T
A

L
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

 O
F

 T
H

E
 P

O
P

U
L

A
T

IO
N

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
s
il
ie

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

ra
c

ti
c
a
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
n

 h
e
a
lt

h
y
 l
if

e
s
ty

le
s

 

!
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 m

o
re

 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

!
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a
s
e
d

 p
ilo

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

s
ili

e
n
c
e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

C
li
n

ic
a
l

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 (

C
C

G
s
) 

H
e
a
lt

h
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n

W
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 f

in
d

 w
a
y
s

 t
h

a
t 

w
il
l 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
x
-m

il
it

a
ry

 p
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 
w

h
o

 h
a
v
e
 

p
o

o
r 

m
e
n

ta
l 
o

r 
p

h
y
s

ic
a
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 

!
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 e
x
-m

ili
ta

ry
 

p
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ilo

t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 

!
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
e
x
-m

ili
ta

ry
 p

e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 

!
 

A
c
ti
v
e
ly

 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 e
x
-m

ili
ta

ry
 p

e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 

(V
e

te
ra

n
s
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d
 L

ia
is

o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

V
W

A
L
S

) 

!
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
o
ru

m
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n
d

 e
x
-a

rm
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 p
e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
c
a

n
 b

e
 h

e
a
rd

 a
n

d
 c

a
n

 h
e

lp
 i
n

fl
u

e
n
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 

!
 

E
n

a
b

le
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 e
x
-a

rm
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
e

rs
o
n
n

e
l 
to

 c
o

m
e

 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

C
C

G
s
 w

it
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

D
u

rh
a
m

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

7
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

7
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 u
s
in

g
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 

c
a
re

 p
la

n
 t

h
a
t 

re
fl

e
c

ts
 t

h
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 t
h

e
m

 r
e
ta

in
 t

h
is

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 A

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

(C
P

A
) 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
  

!
 

E
m

b
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

it
h
in

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
E

W
V

 N
H

S
 

F
o

u
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 T
ru

s
t 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

T
E

W
V

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 p

s
y
c

h
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
th

e
ra

p
ie

s
 

C
li
n

ic
a
l 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 (

C
C

G
s
) 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

Page 23



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a
 m

u
lt

i-
a
g

e
n

c
y
 P

u
b

li
c
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
u

ic
id

e
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 P
u
b
lic

 M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 P

u
b
lic

 M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 L
e
a
d

 -
 

M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

7
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

o
re

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 b

o
th

 m
e
n

ta
l 
a
n

d
 p

h
y
s

ic
a
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s

 (
s
u

c
h

 a
s

 d
e

p
re

s
s

io
n

 o
r 

a
n

x
ie

ty
) 

!
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
a
re

a
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 

!
 

S
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
 a

c
u

te
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
lia

is
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
(A

d
u
lt
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

!
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 c
a

re
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 t
o

 a
d
d

re
s
s
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e
e

d
s
 

w
h

e
re

 a
p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h

 G
P

s
 &

 T
E

W
V

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 a

re
 i
n

te
r-

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d
s
  

T
E

W
V

 N
H

S
 

F
o

u
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
T

ru
s

t/
C

C
G

’s
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

  
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

5
 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

5
 

T
E

W
V

 T
ru

s
t 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
/

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s

Page 24



P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
b

le
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 b

o
ld

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
k
e
t 
o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
  

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
S

e
lf
-r

e
p
o

rt
e
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

G
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
ra

te
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
ra

te
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
id

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

9
%

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
a
ti

e
n

t 
e
x

p
e
ri

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

8
7
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
u

ic
id

e
s
 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
H

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
s
e
lf
-h

a
rm

. 
 (

A
g
e
-s

e
x
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 r

a
te

 o
f 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

in
te

n
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
e

lf
-h

a
rm

 p
e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

) 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
a
d

u
lt

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 k

n
o

w
n

 t
o

 b
e
 i
n

 
s
e
tt

le
d

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 a
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 m
o

s
t 

re
c

e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t,

 f
o

rm
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

r 
m

u
lt

i 
d

is
c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

 

8
5

%
 

8
5

%
 

8
5

%
 

8
5

%
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

7
5
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 i
n
 a

d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 

Page 25



S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 5
: 

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
 V

U
L

N
E

R
A

B
L

E
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 F

R
O

M
 H

A
R

M
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

W
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 v

ic
ti

m
s

 o
f 

d
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 a

b
u

s
e

 f
ro

m
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

o
r 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 f
a

m
il

y
 

!
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

 c
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

!
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

g
e

n
e
ra

l 
p

u
b

lic
, 
th

ro
u
g

h
 a

w
a

re
n
e

s
s
 r

a
is

in
g

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s
 

!
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 r

e
c
o
g
n

is
e
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
ig

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

f 
a
b
u
s
e
, 

k
n

o
w

 h
o
w

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 a
n
d

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 w

h
a
t 
c
o

n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

 

!
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 l
e
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

e
d

 
fr

o
m

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 H

o
m

ic
id

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

S
a
fe

 D
u

rh
a
m

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

  
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

5
 

S
a
fe

 D
u
rh

a
m

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

/ 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 A

b
u

s
e

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
/C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 

W
o

rk
 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
h

a
rm

 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 s

to
p

 a
b

u
s

e
 t

a
k

in
g

 p
la

c
e
 

!
 

A
ll 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 r

o
le

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n
 t
o

 s
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in
g

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
ir
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

 

L
o

c
a
l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 B

o
a
rd

/ 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

s
 

B
o

a
rd

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

L
o
c
a
l 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 B

o
a

rd
 P

la
n

/ 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s
 

B
o

a
rd

 

E
n

s
u

re
 p

o
li
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 

e
a
s
ie

r 
fo

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 t
o

 
h

ig
h

li
g

h
t 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 o

f 
a
b

u
s
e
, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

w
h

is
tl

e
 b

lo
w

in
g

 

!
 

E
n

s
u
re

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
o

v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 b

y
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt
s
 B

o
a
rd

  

L
o

c
a
l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 B

o
a
rd

/ 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

s
 

B
o

a
rd

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
A

S
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 

W
o

rk
 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
fa

m
il
y
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
e
a
rl

ie
r 

!
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
T

h
in

k
 F

a
m

ily
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  
 

T
h

in
k
 F

a
m

il
y
 B

o
a
rd

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 

P
la

n

Page 26



P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
b

le
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 b

o
ld

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
k
e
t 
o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
R

e
p
e

a
t 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 

L
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 
2
5
%

L
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 
2
5
%

L
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 
2
5
%

L
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 
2
5
%

T
a

rg
e

t 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
o
 s

a
y
 t
h
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 

th
e
m

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 
7
5
%

 
7
5
%

 
7
5
%

 
7
5
%

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 b

u
lli

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

a
t 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
a

n
d
 w

h
e

n
 n

o
t 
a

t 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
(y

e
a

r 
6

 a
n

d
 y

e
a

r 
9
) 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 b
e
c
o

m
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

o
f 

a
 C

h
il
d

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 

s
e
c
o

n
d

 o
r 

s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e

n
t 

ti
m

e
 

1
5

%
 

1
4

%
 

1
3

%
 

1
2

%
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
In

it
ia

l 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 
a

 C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 w
h

e
re

 p
a
re

n
ta

l 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

/ 
p

a
re

n
ta

l 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 
m

is
u
s
e

/ 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
is

k
 f
a

c
to

r 

T
ra

c
k
e
r

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 a

 C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 s
u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

te
d

 o
r 

p
a
rt

ia
lly

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

te
d

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
L

o
o

k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

 p
e

r 
1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 n
e
e
d

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 o
c
c
u

rr
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
2

1
%

 
2

0
%

 
1

8
%

 
1

6
%

 

Page 27



S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 6
: 

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 T

O
 D

IE
 I
N

 T
H

E
 P

L
A

C
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
IR

 C
H

O
IC

E
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 C

A
R

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 T

H
A

T
 T

H
E

Y
 N

E
E

D
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
/S

u
b

-A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

L
e

a
d

 
T

im
e
s
c
a
le

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

P
la

n
 

S
ta

rt
E

n
d

A
d

o
p

t 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 N
o

rt
h

 E
a

s
t 

c
h

a
rt

e
r 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

 ‘
g

o
o

d
 d

e
a
th

’
w

h
ic

h
 

a
im

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 g
u

id
e
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 w
it

h
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e
ir

 l
if

e
, 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h

t 
ti

m
e
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 w
h

o
 a

re
 d

y
in

g
, 
th

e
ir

 f
a
m

il
ie

s
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 

!
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 e

n
d
 o

f 
lif

e
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 

!
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
d
/a

n
ti
c
ip

a
to

ry
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
lif

e
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 

!
 

In
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
e

n
d

 o
f 
lif

e
 c

a
re

 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
u
rs

in
g

 h
o

m
e

 c
o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
/ 

N
H

S
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 
 

‘G
o

o
d

 D
e

a
th

’ 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
s
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 e
n

d
 o

f 
li
fe

 b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

!
 

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
‘D

e
c
id

in
g
 R

ig
h

t’

!
 

E
x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 E

n
d
 o

f 
lif

e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
a
th

w
a
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
  

!
 

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
g
u
id

e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 G
P

’s
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 G

P
 p

a
lli

a
ti
v
e
 c

a
re

 
re

g
is

te
rs

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 
H

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
C

G
 C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

C
re

d
ib

le
 P

la
n
s
 

Page 28



P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
b

le
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 b

o
ld

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
k
e
t 
o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

d
e
a
th

s
 t
h
a
t 
o
c
c
u
r 

in
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l,
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
, 
h
o
s
p
ic

e
, 
c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
. 

T
ra

c
k
e
r 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 e

n
d

in
g

 i
n

 d
e

a
th

 (
te

rm
in

a
l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
) 

th
a

t 
a
re

 
e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

Page 29



G
L

O
S

S
A

R
Y

 &
 A

B
B

R
E

V
IA

T
IO

N
S

 

A
&

E
 

A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

‘D
e
c
id

in
g

R
ig

h
t’

 
D

e
c
id

in
g

 r
ig

h
t 
is

 a
 n

o
rt

h
 e

a
s
t 
w

id
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 -

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

U
K

 -
 t
o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 c

a
re

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
a

g
e
s
. 
It

 b
ri
n

g
s
 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 c
a

re
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
, 
th

e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 A

c
t,
 c

a
rd

io
p
u
lm

o
n
a
ry

 
re

s
u

s
c
it
a

ti
o

n
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 p

la
n

s
. 

A
s

s
e

t 
b

a
s

e
d

 
a

p
p

ro
a
c

h
 

U
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it
h

in
 a

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 f
o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 w

it
h

in
 a

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
 T

h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

im
s
 t
o
 e

m
p
o
w

e
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

. 

D
D

E
S

 
D

u
rh

a
m

 D
a
le

s
, 
E

a
s
in

g
to

n
 a

n
d
 S

e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld

 

C
A

M
H

S
 

C
h
ild

 a
n
d
 A

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
IG

 
D

u
rh

a
m

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
 

C
a

re
rs

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

h
e
 d

ra
ft
 C

a
re

 B
ill

 g
iv

e
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 c

a
re

r’
s
 o

w
n

 n
e

e
d

s
 f
o

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
re

g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

. 

G
P

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

C
A

S
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 C

h
il
d

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

T
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
 h

o
w

 h
e
a

lt
h

, 
e

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
s
e

tt
in

g
s
 c

a
n

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 e

n
h

a
n
c
e

 a
 c

h
ild

’s
 o

r 
y
o

u
n
g

 
p

e
rs

o
n

’s
 l
if
e

 c
h

a
n
c
e
s
. 

C
C

G
 

C
lin

ic
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
s
 a

re
 c

lin
ic

a
lly

-l
e
d

 g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
o
f 
th

e
 G

P
 g

ro
u

p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 g

e
o
g

ra
p
h

ic
a
l 
a
re

a
. 
T

h
e
 

a
im

 o
f 
th

is
 i
s
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 G

P
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
lin

ic
ia

n
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
w

e
r 

to
 

in
fl
u

e
n
c
e

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

. 
  

H
e
a
lt

h
 T

ra
in

e
r 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
 /
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 T
ra

in
e
r 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ra
in

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
y
 h

e
lp

 H
e
a
lt
h
 T

ra
in

e
rs

 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
n
d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 
H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ra

in
e

r 
C

h
a

m
p

io
n
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 g

o
o
d

 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 
a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
ly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

N
H

S
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
 N

H
S

).
 

C
P

A
 

A
 C

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 A

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

s
e
v
e
re

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 o

r 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 

N
D

 
N

o
rt

h
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

C
V

D
 

C
a

rd
io

v
a
s
c
u

la
r 

D
is

e
a
s
e
 

N
o

rt
h

 E
a
s
t 

C
h

a
rt

e
r 

fo
r 

a
 

G
o

o
d

 D
e
a
th

 

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 
c
h
a
rt

e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 g

u
id

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
g
ro

u
p
s
 o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
h
o
 p

la
n
, 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
lif

e
 c

a
re

 o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 I
t 
w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
a
t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
 f
o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
h

o
 a

re
 d

y
in

g
, 
th

e
ir
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
. 
  

C
Y

P
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 

P
o

o
rl

y
 C

h
il
d

 
P

a
th

w
a

y
 

T
h
e
 P

o
o
rl
y
 C

h
ild

 P
a
th

w
a
y
 i
s
 a

 p
la

n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

h
e
n
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 t
h

e
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 i
t 
in

 t
h

e
 

ri
g
h
t 
p
la

c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
. 

D
C

C
 

D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
e

le
h

e
a

lt
h

 
T

e
le

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
-r

e
la

te
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 v
ia

 t
e

le
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 t
e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
. 

Page 30



G
L

O
S

S
A

R
Y

 &
 A

B
B

R
E

V
IA

T
IO

N
S

T
e

le
c

a
re

 
T

e
le

c
a
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

 f
o
r 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 r

e
m

o
te

 c
a
re

 o
f 
e
ld

e
rl
y
 a

n
d
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 l
e
s
s
 a

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 

re
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s
 e

g
 f
a
ll 

d
e
te

c
to

rs
, 
s
m

o
k
e
 d

e
te

c
to

rs
, 
b
e
d
 

o
c
c
u

p
a

n
c
y
 s

e
n

s
o
r.

 

U
N

IC
E

F
 B

a
b

y
 

F
ri

e
n

d
ly

 
S

c
h

e
m

e

T
h
e
 B

a
b
y
 F

ri
e
n
d
ly

 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
s
 a

 w
o
rl
d
w

id
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

W
o
rl
d

 H
e
a

lt
h

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 U
N

IC
E

F
 t
o

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g

e
 

m
a
te

rn
it
y
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 ‘
T

e
n
 S

te
p
s
 t
o
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d

in
g
’ 
a
n
d
 t
o
 p

ra
c
ti
s
e
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 ‘
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
B

re
a
s
t 
M

ilk
 

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
s
’ 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 ‘
S

e
v
e
n
 P

o
in

t 
P

la
n
 f
o
r 

S
u
s
ta

in
in

g
 B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
’ 
a
n
d
 

e
n

s
u

re
 q

u
a

lit
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 f
o

r 
m

id
w

if
e
ry

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
in

g
 s

ta
ff
. 

T
E

W
V

 
T

e
e
s
, 
E

s
k
 a

n
d
 W

e
a
r 

V
a
lle

y
 N

H
S

 F
o
u
n
d
a

ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

V
W

A
L

S
 

V
e
te

ra
n
s
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 L

ia
is

o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

U
N

IC
E

F
 

U
n

it
e

d
 N

a
ti
o

n
’s

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 F
u

n
d

 (
fo

rm
e
rl
y
 U

n
it
e

d
 N

a
ti
o

n
’s

 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 F

u
n

d
) 

Page 31



Page 32



D
u

rh
a
m

D
a
le

s,
E
a
si

n
g

to
n

a
n

d
S
e
d

g
e
fi

e
ld

C
li
n

ic
a
l
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
G

ro
u

p
N

o
rt

h
D

u
rh

a
m

C
li
n

ic
a
l
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
G

ro
u

p

Ju
n
e
2
0
1
3

P
u
b
lis
h
e
d
b
y
D
u
rh
a
m

C
o
u
n
ty
C
o
u
n
ci
l

O
n
b
e
h
a
lf
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ty
D
u
rh
a
m

H
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
B
o
a
rd

A
va
ila
b
le
o
n
lin
e
a
t
w
w
w
.d
u
rh
a
m
.g
o
v.
u
k/
jh
w
s

P
ro
d
u
ce
d
in
co
ll
a
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
w
it
h
:

D
u
rh
a
m

C
o
u
n
ty
C
o
u
n
ci
l,
N
o
rt
h
D
u
rh
a
m

C
lin
ic
a
l
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
G
ro
u
p
,D
u
rh
a
m

D
a
le
s,

E
a
si
n
g
to
n
a
n
d
S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld
C
lin
ic
a
l
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
G
ro
u
p
,C
o
u
n
ty
D
u
rh
a
m

a
n
d
D
a
rl
in
g
to
n
N
H
S
Fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
Tr
u
st
,

Te
e
s,
E
sk

a
n
d
W
e
a
r
V
a
ll
e
ys

N
H
S
Fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
Tr
u
st
,N

o
rt
h
Te
e
s
a
n
d
H
a
rt
le
p
o
o
l
N
H
S
Fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
Tr
u
st
,

C
it
y
H
o
sp
it
a
ls
S
u
n
d
e
rl
a
n
d
N
H
S
Fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
Tr
u
st
.

Page 33



C
o

u
n

ty
D

u
rh

a
m

Jo
in

t
H

e
a

lt
h

a
n

d
W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

S
tr

a
te

g
y

2
0
1
3
-2
0
1
7

D
e

liv
e

ry
P

la
n

C
o

n
ta

c
t

D
e

ta
il

s
If
yo
u
h
a
ve

a
n
y
q
u
e
st
io
n
s
o
r
co
m
m
e
n
ts
a
b
o
u
t
th
is

d
o
cu
m
e
n
t
p
le
a
se

e
-m

a
il:
JH
W
S
.E
va
lu
a
ti
o
n
@
d
u
rh
a
m
.g
o
v.
u
k

a
lt
fo
rm
a
t.
a
w
h
@
d
u
rh
a
m
.g
o
v.
u
k

0
3
0
0
0

2
6
1

3
8
1

C
A
S
9
9
0
3
C
h
il
d
re
n
a
n
d
A
d
u
lt
s
S
e
rv
ic
e
s,
C
M
I
Te
a
m

2
0
1
3

Im
a
g
e
s:
ca
re
im

a
g
e
s.
co
m

Page 34



 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Disabled Children’s Charter for Health and 
Wellbeing Boards 
 

 

 

Report of Peter Appleton, Head of Service - Planning & Service Strategy, 
Durham County Council 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Health & Wellbeing Board 
with details of: 
• The Disabled Children’s Charter for Health and Wellbeing Boards 

(Appendix 2). 

• Evidence of how the County Durham Health and Wellbeing Board 
meet the needs of disabled children, young people and their 
families and any areas for further development (Appendix 3). 
  

Background 
 

2. Every Disabled Child Matters (ECDM) is the campaign for rights and 
justice for disabled children and their families.  EDCM is a consortium 
campaign run by four of the leading organisations working with disabled 
children and their families: Contact a Family, the Council for Disabled 
Children, Mencap and the Special Educational Consortium.  

 
3. The Children’s Trust, Tadworth is the leading UK charity for children with 

acquired brain injury, multiple disabilities and complex health needs. 
 

4. The Children’s Trust, Tadworth and ECDM have developed a Disabled 
Children’s Charter for Health and Wellbeing Boards and are requesting 
the County Durham Health and Wellbeing Board to sign up to the 
Charter.  As a previous signatory to the EDCM’s Local Authority 
Disabled Children’s Charter the Health and Wellbeing Board are being 
asked to renew our commitment by signing up to this Charter. 

  
5. The Charter is intended to support Health and Wellbeing Boards to meet 

their responsibilities towards disabled children, young people and their 
families, including those with special educational needs and with health 
conditions.  Tadworth’s Children’s Trust and ECDM state that the 
benefits of the Health and Wellbeing Board signing the Charter include: 

• Publicly articulating a vision for improving the quality of life and 
outcomes for disabled children, young people and their families 

Agenda Item 8

Page 35



• Having greater confidence in targeting integrated commissioning on 
the needs of disabled children, young people and their families 

• Building on local partnerships to deliver improvements to the quality 
of life and outcomes for disabled children, young people and their 
families 

 
6. There are seven commitments in the charter and evidence as to how the 

charter commitments are met and areas for further development are 
detailed in Appendix 3.  Under each commitment details are provided as to 
the expectations of the HWB in relation to those commitments. 
 

7. The County Durham Health and Wellbeing Board already meet many of 
the commitments in the Charter, however there are some commitments 
that will need to be further developed/evidenced. These are provided 
below: 

 
Areas for further development  
 
Commitment 1 
 

8. Work will be carried out as part of the review of the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) process to ensure that further information available in 
relation to disabled children and young people is considered for inclusion 
in the JSNA 2013. 
  

9. The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) includes a strategic 
objective: “children and young people make healthy choices and have the 
best start in life” however further consideration will be given to 
supplementing information on strategic actions relating specially to 
disabled children and young people in subsequent reviews of the strategy.   

 
Commitment 2 & 3 

10. Further consideration will be given to the specific involvement and 
engagement of disabled children, young people and their families in 
relation to the review of the JSNA and JHWS. 

  
Recommendations 
 

11. The Health and Wellbeing Board are recommended to: 
• Note the contents of the Report. 

• Agree to sign up to the Disabled Children’s Charter for Health and 
Wellbeing Boards, noting the further developments highlighted 
above. 

Page 36



• Note that a response to Tadworth Children’s Trust and Every 
Disabled Child Matters will be agreed with the chair of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

_______________________________________________________________ 
Contacts:   Andrea Petty, Strategic Manager Policy, Planning & 

Partnerships Telephone No: 03000 267312 
 _______________________________________________________________ 
  
 Background papers – Disabled Children’s Charter 

Page 37



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

  
  
Finance - Not applicable 
  
  
Staffing – Not applicable 
  
  
Risk – Not applicable 
  
  
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – Under the Equality Act 
2010 a person is classified as disabled if they have a physical or mental 
impairment which has a substantial and long-term effect on their ability to carry 
out normal day-to-day activities.  
  
Accommodation – Not applicable 
  
  
Crime and Disorder – Not applicable 
  
  
Human Rights – Not applicable 
  
  
Consultation – Consideration will be given to the wider engagement with 
disabled children, young people and their families as part of the review of the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
  
  
Procurement – Not applicable 
  
  
Disability Issues – The Health and Wellbeing Board has been requested by 
Tadworth Children’s Trust and Every Disabled Child Matters to sign up to the 
Disabled Children’s Charter. 
  
  
Legal Implications – Not applicable 
  

Page 38



 

Appendix 3: Charter for Disabled Children: County Durham Position 

  
Commitment 1 

‘We have detailed and accurate information on the disabled children 
and young people living in our area, and provide public information 
on how we plan to meet their needs’  

  
How the charter commitments are met 
The full range of sources of information collected on disabled children, young 
people and their families which will be used to inform the JSNA process. 

  
1.    The following information on disabled children and young people is 

collected to inform the JSNA process in order to identify need: 
• number of cases the Disability Social Work Team work with.   
•    number of cases open to the Disabled Children’s Service. 
• Comparison of achievements at Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4 for 

pupils with Special Educational Needs (SEN) and all other pupils. 
•    Number of SEN statements issued to support children who display 

behaviours, emotional and social difficulties (BESD). 
  

2. As part of the School Census, information is collected on the numbers of 
pupils with a Special Educational Needs statement 
  

3.    As a Council, there is a statutory requirement to keep a register of 
information on children and young people with disabilities within County 
Durham.  This is known as the Children’s Network.  At present there are 
1,494 children currently registered with the Network.    

      
4.    This information ensures that parents and carers receive relevant details 

of news, support, as well as giving them the chance to comment on 
current services available for disabled children.  Parents and carers are 
also encouraged to be involved in the consultations on the development of 
future services.  Information regarding the Children’s Network is readily 
available on the Durham County Council website including how to register 
with the Children’s Network. 

 

The quality assurance process used to ensure that information and data on 
disabled children, young people and their families used to inform commissioning 
is sufficiently detailed and accurate 

  
5.     The information and data in relation to disabled children, young people 

and their families is provided from a number of organisations including 
Durham County Council, North Durham/Durham Dales and Easington 

Page 39



Clinical Commisisoning Groups Tees, Esk and Wear Valley NHS Trust 
(TEWV).  The JSNA informs Joint Commissioning Strategies through the 
Joint Disability Commissioning process which is aligned to the Children 
and Families Trust.   
  

The way in which the JSNA will be used to assess the needs of local disabled 
children, young people and their families 

7. County Durham’s JSNA is used as an evidence base to provide overall 
strategic direction in terms of the key trends and issues in relation to the 
health and wellbeing needs of the community.  Commissioners will use 
this information together with information in Commissioning Plans, survey 
information and performance information to assess the needs of local 
disabled children, young people and their families.  

The way in which information on any hard to reach groups is sourced, and action 
taken to address any gaps of information with regard to local disabled children, 
young people and their families 

8.  County Durham have a well established and robust parent participation 
forum to assist with identifying any missing hard to reach families.   

9. North Durham and DDES CCG have developed Communications and 
Engagement Strategies that sits alongside their Clear and Credible Plans 
(CCP).  The CCGs have a duty to involve people from diverse 
communities, for example travellers, disabled people, Black and Minority 
Ethnic (BME) people, people of different faiths, older and younger people, 
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) individuals. Hard to 
reach groups may include homeless people, Gypsies and Travellers, 
disabled people, people with mental ill health, minority ethnic groups, 
young people and those who live in relative rural isolation.   

 
10. There is specific legal duty for CCGs to consult with people in the cases of 

gender and race, however in the area of disability the CCGs should not 
only consult, but also have a specific legal duty to involve disabled people. 
The NHS Health and Social Care Act 2012 reinforces these legislative 
requirements and requires all CCGs to seek outcomes which deliver a 
positive patient experience.  

11. CCGs are committed to giving particular consideration to engaging with 
locally appropriate ‘easy to overlook’ groups eg: 

• perceptions, for example disadvantaged young people  

• social expectations, for example children and young people who are 
often not considered as appropriate to be engaged with and who 
themselves often do not expect to be taken seriously  

 

Page 40



12. The CCGS will aim to target these groups directly and to overcome 
barriers that prevent or discourage participation or involvement, for 
example by using interpreters, visual aids, adapting facilities for disabled 
people, providing care for dependents, being flexible over timing, location 
and transport and trying to use ‘neutral’ or safe buildings within the 
community.  They will ensure they use the right channels and materials to 
engage with different groups such as public facing versions of documents, 
information formats such as easy read, other languages, Braille or audio, 
and face to face contact with groups where preferred. Digital 
communications will comply with the Equality Act 2010. 

  
The way in which disabled children, young people and their families are 
strategically involved in identifying need, and evidence and feedback on their 
experiences is used to inform the JSNA process  

13. In the development of the Children, Young People and Families Plan and 
the Joint Disability Strategy, disabled children, young people and their 
families have  been involved in the development of strategic actions and 
outcomes as part of the extensive consultation process with children and 
young people.  
  

14. In the development of the JHWS the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 
held a ‘Big Tent’ consultation and engagement event where a wide range 
of stakeholders including Children and Young People where involved in 
the development of strategic objectives and actions. 

 
Public information on how the HWB will support partners to commission 
appropriately to meet the needs of local disabled children, young people and 
their families 

15. The JSNA is the evidence base used to inform the JHWS.  Both the JSNA 
and the JHWS are public documents and are available on the Durham 
County Council website and accessible by the public. 

 
 Commitment 2 

‘We engage directly with disabled children and young people and 
their participation is embedded in the work of our Health and 
Wellbeing Board’ 

  
How the charter commitments are met 
Evidence of the way in which the HWB or its sub groups have worked with 
disabled children and young people in the JSNA process and next steps for 
JSNA engagement 

16. The JSNA uses survey information as part of the evidence to identify 
need, this includes surveys from children and young people.   

Page 41



 The JSNA is available on the Durham County Council website to all 
members of the public and services users including disabled children and 
young people to give their views.   

 Further consideration will be given to specifically identifying disabled 
children, young people and families to be involved in engagement 
activities relating to the JSNA/JHWS. 

Evidence of the way in which the HWB or its sub groups have worked with 
disabled children and young people in the preparation and delivery of the JHWS 
and next steps for JHWS engagement  

17. The following information outlines how the HWB directly engages with 
disabled children, young people and their families: 

 
•    In the development of the JHWS a ‘big tent’ engagement event was 

held to consult with stakeholders (including children and young people) 
on the strategic objectives and actions.  Another event will be 
undertaken in October 2013 as part of the review of the JSNA/ JHWS.   

 
•    The JHWS has a specific strategic objective for Children and Young 

People -  ‘Children and young people make healthy choices and have 
the best start in life’.  This is also identified in the Children, Young 
People and Families Plan where there has been specific consultation 
with the Investing in Children’s ‘eXtreme’ reference group, specific to 
children with a disability and the Children and Families Trust.  The 
HWB is informed by the work of the Children and Families Trust. 

 

 •   The Joint Disability Commissioning Group work in partnership with 
disabled children and young people which report to the Children and 
Families Trust. 

 

• A series of six public engagement events were held in July 2012 to 
raise awareness of North Durham CCG, to give an insight into what 
clinical commissioning is and to launch the Clear and Credible Plan to 
deliver future healthcare.  This is being followed up with further 
engagement events in October where there will be an opportunity to 
discuss and influence future commissioning intentions.  The Clear and 
Credible Plan and commissioning intentions were considered as part of 
the development of the JHWS. 

 

• The CCGs also have Patient Reference Groups, working with Practice 
Managers and their individual practice patient forums.  They will act as 
an advisory body for the locality, champion patient views and provide 
quality assurance that patient, carer and public concerns and needs 
are taken into account, so that quality services are provided in an 
appropriate, safe, effective and timely manner for the population.   

Page 42



 

• The Patient Reference Group act as a sounding board for engagement 
plans and ensures documentation used by the CCG is user friendly 
and is quality assured against agreed standards, offering advice and 
guidance to the CCG to ensure engagement activity is as inclusive and 
effective as possible. 
 

Evidence of partnership working with any local groups of disabled children and 
young people  

18. In County Durham, children and young people’s views are used effectively 
and consistently to influence change, shape services, improve practice 
and service delivery. Children and young people contribute through the 
Investing in Children (IiC) service to high-profile issues such as obesity, 
emotional health and sexual health.  Through the Development Agency, 
which was established in 2005 it was recognised that there was much to 
be gained by working in partnership with colleagues both locally in other 
parts of the country, facing different dilemmas.  
    

19. As part of the CCGs communication and engagement strategy CCGs will 
engage and communicate with the wider population including service 
users, potential service users, relatives, carers, advocates, patient 
representative groups, health interest groups etc., ensuring they take into 
consideration the views of people including children and young people 
with learning disabilities and their families. 

 
20. The Children’s Act 1989 requires local authorities to provide a short break 

service designed to assist individuals who provide care for disabled 
children.  This duty and the Breaks for Carers of Disabled Children 
Regulations 2011 came into force on the 1st April 2011.  The regulations 
require each local authority to produce a short breaks service statement 
so that families know what is available and how to access these 
breaks/activities. 

 
21. Durham County Council in partnership with the Making Changes Together 

Parents/Carers Group, the eXtreme Group from Investing in Children and 
key partners including health, have produced a Short Break Statement. 
The statement details what is available to children and their families.  
  

22. Short break focus groups have commissioned services for children and 
young people with additional needs and have also overseen a grant 
programme for equipment. The short break focus group have also worked 
with the Local Authority to improve the range of activities and breaks that 
are available and they continue to be crucial to all developmental work. 
  

23. The Learning Difficulties and Disabilities Inclusion Service work in 
partnership with schools, children and young people, parents and carers 

Page 43



and other professionals and agencies, in order to seek and promote 
educational inclusion and achievement of children and young people with 
learning difficulties or disabilities. 

  
The Learning Difficulties and Disabilities Inclusion Service provide: 

  
•     Advice, consultancy and training to teachers, support staff and families 
•     Continuing Professional development training for Schools and 

Communities of Learning 
•     Assessment of children and young people’s needs and advice relating 

to: 
-     General Learning Difficulties 
-     Early Years 
-     Speech and Language 
-     Specific Learning Difficulties (Dyslexia & DCD) 
-     Access Technology 
-     Physical Disabilities 

  
24. The sensory support service is based on the Belmont Schools Campus 

and has a countywide remit to provide support services for Hearing 
Impaired (HI) and Visually Impaired (VI) children and young people 
including those with additional and complex needs. 
  

25.  Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) which is a provider 
of specialist mental health services to children & young people up to 18 
years of age and their families in County Durham offers a range of 
therapeutic services including direct & indirect clinical work, assessment, 
consultation and training. The direct therapeutic work offered includes 
family therapy, cognitive behavioural therapy, counselling, psychotherapy, 
group work, play therapy and parenting skills development. 
Neuropsychological assessment including assessment of attention 
difficulties, hyperactivity and complex social interaction and 
communication difficulties is available. Multi disciplinary teams, including 
child psychiatrists, psychologists, nurses, social workers, primary mental 
health workers and administrators work across the six locality teams within 
County Durham & Darlington.  

 
 Commitment 3 

‘We engage directly with parent carers of disabled children and 
young people and their participation is embedded in the work of our 
Health and Wellbeing Board’ 

  
How the charter commitments are met 
Evidence of the way in which the HWB or its sub groups have worked with parent 
carers of disabled children in the JSNA process, and next steps for JSNA 
engagement 

Page 44



26. The JSNA uses survey information as part of the evidence to identify 
need, this includes surveys from children and young people.   

As part of the consultation process for the JSNA, the JSNA is available on 
the Durham County Council website to all members of the public and 
services users including disabled children and young people to give their 
views.  This process will continue for the JSNA 2013.  

Further consideration will be given to specifically identifying disabled 
children, young people and families to be involved in engagement 
activities relating to the JSNA/JHWS. 

Evidence of the way in which the HWB or its sub groups have worked with parent 
carers of disabled children in the preparation and delivery of the JHWS and the 
next steps for the JHWS engagement 

27. The Joint Disability Commissioning Group and the Inter Agency Transition 
Group (IATG) are responsible for the commissioning of services for 
disabled children and young people / young adults on behalf of the Joint 
Commissioning Board who are ultimately responsible to the Children’s & 
Families Trust Executive Board.  The JDCG is part of the governance 
structure for the Children & Families Trust with a working relationship to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
  

28. The Durham model is at the centre of all developments in County Durham 
for disabled children & young people. The model is nationally recognised 
as good practice brings key operational and strategic leads together with 
parents & young people to make positive changes together. It enables all 
stakeholders to participate in the development of services for children & 
young people with complex needs. This model has a number of focus 
groups that are linked and report to the County Durham Parents Steering 
Group and the Disability Trust Implementation Group. The process is 
governed by the Joint Disability Commissioning Group. 
  

29. The Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board held a ‘Big Tent’ Engagement 
Event in June 2012 which enabled stakeholders to give their views on the 
development of the JHWS strategic objectives and actions. The JHWS 
has a specific strategic objective for Children and Young People - 
‘Children and young people make healthy choices and have the best start 
in life’.  This is also identified in the Children, Young People and Families 
Plan where there has been specific consultation with the Investing in 
Children’s ‘eXtreme’ reference group, specific to children with a disability.   
Another event will be undertaken in October 2013 as part of the review of 
the JHWS.   
 
 
 

Page 45



Evidence of partnership working with local parent groups, including the local 
Parent Carer Forum(s) 
 
30.      In addition to information provided above, Independent advocacy is 

available for disabled children, young people and their families. County 
Durham offers independent advice and support to parents of children with 
special educational needs through our Parent Partnership Service.  

  
31.      Natural Allies supports children and young people with disabilities, 

learning difficulties and additional support needs across the county to put 
across the views and feelings relating to the decisions that are made 
involving them, their education and their lives. 

 
32. The CCGs have an annual commissioning engagement process which 

involves patients and the public in developing, considering and making 
decisions on any commissioning proposals that would have a significant 
impact on service delivery or the range of health services available: 

• involving patients and carers in redesigning services and/or pathways 
to deliver improved outcomes and better meet patients’ needs  

• promoting the role of patients, carers and the wider community in 
improving their own health and well-being  

 
33. Each GP practice has developed a patient reference group (PRG) and 

members from these attend locality-based PRGs to pool the views of local 
communities, identifying themes and trends. 

 
Commitment 4 

‘We set clear strategic outcomes for our partners to meet in relation 
to disabled children, young people and their families, monitor 
progress towards achieving them and hold each other to account’ 

  
How the charter commitments are met 
Public information on the status of outcomes for local disabled children and 
young people based on indicators such as the NHS Outcomes Framework, the 
Public Health Outcomes Framework etc 

  
34. Indicators from the NHS Outcomes Framework, the Public Health 

Outcomes Framework, the Clinical Commissioning Assurance Framework, 
and the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework are included in the JSNA 
and the JHWS. The JSNA, JHWS and Children and Families Plan are 
available to the public on the Durham County Council website. 

 

Public information on the strategic direction the HWB has set to support key 
partners to improve outcomes for disabled children and young people.  This may 

Page 46



be encompassed by the JHWS, but would need to be sufficiently delineated to 
demonstrate specific objectives and action for disabled children and young 
people 

35. The JHWS sets out where we would like County Durham to be heading in 
terms of health and wellbeing. The JHWS includes strategic actions on 
how we plan to do this and these actions will be monitored ensuring all 
partnerships are held to account. Actions include: 

 

• We will continue to improve the emotional wellbeing of children and 
young people and provide effective, high quality mental services to 
those who need it. 

• Develop a coherent programme of parenting support, including 
intensive support where needed, through the One Point Service 

 
36. Each CCG has identified their commissioning intentions for 2013/14 

including: 
 

• Commission a high-quality early supported discharge service for 
people who have had an acute stroke. This reduces risk of death 
and disability, and decreases length of hospital stay, particularly in 
those with mild or moderate disability 

• Improve access to and uptake of general health services for those 
people with learning disability 

• Further develop and roll out the Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) 
14 week pathway currently in pilot in North Durham and 
commission ASD post diagnosis support 

• Review and re-commission out of area Mental Health placements 
 
37. The  Disability Commissioning Strategy/Plan covers the period 2012 - 15 

and is supported by the overarching Joint Disability Strategy, the 
Transition Protocol, the Short Break Strategy and the SEND (Special 
Educational Needs and Disability) Strategy that are all endorsed by the 
Disability Joint Commissioning Group (DJCG) and the Joint 
Commissioning Board (JCB).  The purpose of the Disability 
Commissioning Strategy/Plan is to understand and plan for the current 
and future needs of disabled children, young people and their Families to 
help them achieve good outcomes while ensuring Value for Money. 
  

38. The Children, Young People and Families Plan 2012-2016  has the 
following key actions and indicators in relation to disabled children: 

•     Deliver the Joint Disability Strategy 
•     Improve education outcomes for children with SEN and other 

vulnerable groups by delivering high quality services. 
  

Page 47



39. Durham County Council’s Children and Adults Services have identified 
priorities to:  
• Ensure high quality provision is made and educational outcomes are 

improved for children with special educational needs (SEN) and other 
vulnerable group by: 

o Auditing and reviewing of the future demands for special 
educational needs provision. 

o Reviewing and consolidating the range and quality of alternative 
education provision across the authority, making changes to 
commissioning arrangements as required. 

o Ensuring the new alternative Key Stage 4 provision Green 
School is delivered and evaluate its first year of delivery.  

o Enabling parents / carers to have a central role in improving 
outcomes for their child by: 
�    the delivery of ‘Confident Schools, Confident Parents’ 

programme across the county; 
�    development of parent friendly information material;  

parent chartermark. 
• Piloting the development of an inclusion charter mark for all Durham 

schools including Academies. 
• Implementing the Accessibility Strategy. 
• Implementing the changes to identification and assessment of children 

with special educational need in accordance with government directive. 
  
Commitment 5 

‘We promote early intervention and support for smooth transitions 
between children and adult services for disabled children and young 
people’ 

  
How the charter commitments are met 
The way in which the activities of the HWB help local partners to understand the 
value of early intervention 

40.      This process is led through education or for those with the most complex 
of needs a social worker. To support the development of transition 
arrangements in County Durham a cross agency database has been 
developed and capacity building work has been undertaken with 
providers.  
  

41.      The transition protocol provides further information about all transition 
arrangements for young people with additional needs moving into adult 
services. 

  

The way in which the activities of the HWB ensure integration between children 
and adult services, and prioritise ensuring a positive experience of transition for 
disabled young people 

Page 48



  
42.      Transition support and arrangements are outlined in the cross agency 

Transition Protocol.  Transition support and procedures cover a wide 
range of children and young people with additional needs as they move 
into adulthood.  
  

43.      Universal Plus Service (provide some level of additional support to enable 
children and young people with additional needs to access short breaks 
and activities). 
•     Support and drive the transition protocol into practice 
•     Commission a transition data base to further enhance commissioning 
•     Develop capacity with local providers 
•     Develop a robust work experience programme for disabled children 

and young people 
•     Increase the paid employment opportunities for young people 
  

44.      The JSNA identifies the number of young people with a learning disability 
who made the transition from the children’s disability team to the adults 
integrated learning disability team between 2010/11 to 2011/12. 

 
Commitment 6 

‘We work with key partners to strengthen integration between health, 
social care and education services, and with services provided by 
wider partners’ 

  
How the charter commitments are met 
Details of the way the HWB engages with wider partners such as housing, 
transport, safeguarding and the youth justice system 

45. The HWB engages with wider partners through the County Durham 
Partnership (CDP) framework is made up of the CDP Forum, CDP Board, 
five thematic partnerships and 14 Area Action Partnerships.  The focus of 
the AAP’s is primarily on engagement. 

46. The Public Health Team have responsibility for leading on the social 
determinants of health work programme.  They will therefore: 

a.  Help make clear the contribution of the SCS in addressing the 
social determinants of health and addressing health inequalities in 
County Durham 

b.  Provide advice on what may be missing and what may need to be 
included for future reference 

c.  Provide the best available evidence base to the SCS 
d.   Develop a higher level project plan  
e.   Ensure regular meetings with a representative from the Public 

Health team and the lead officers representing each of the five 
thematic partnerships take place to progress work. 

Page 49



  
   
Details of the way in which the HWB is informed by those with expertise in 
education, and children’s health and social care 

47. The HWB is informed by the work of the Children and Families Trust and 
related sub-groups through its governance structure. 
  

48. The HWB is informed by those with expertise in education, and children’s 
health and social care.  The Educational Psychology Service, in 
partnership with others, aims to improve the quality of life of children and 
young people through the promotion of emotional well-being, 
achievements, progress and inclusion. The Educational Psychology 
Service is responsible for, and/or contributes to, a number of innovative 
and proactive projects aimed at raising standards across the county. 
These include: 

  
�     a range of high quality training for professionals  
�     promoting emotional well-being and mental health  
�     supporting school improvement through consultation and coaching  
�     providing psychological therapies to individuals in schools and 

other settings  
  

49. In County Durham there are a wide range of services for disabled children, 
young people, parents and carers from birth into adult services across 
Health, Social Care & Education. 
  

50. It is acknowledged that the needs of children and young people will be 
individual to their disability and circumstances and therefore tailored 
commissioning will take place to ensure delivery of a holistic care 
package. 
  

51. Access to services is based on a child/young persons assessed need and 
services can be accessed through either, self referral, medical 
assessment/diagnosis or an initial assessment. 
  

52.  Services will work holistically to enable disabled children & young people 
to reach their full potential and access wherever possible local provision. 
  

53. The services that are delivered range through the spectrum of need and 
at  any given stage in a Child or Young Persons pathway they may access 
services from all levels. 

  
Details of steps taken to encourage integrated working between health, social 
care, education and wider partners in order to improve the services accessed by 
disabled children, young people and their families 

Page 50



54. The Team for Disabled Children and their Families are to integrate with 
continuing healthcare assessors to create one specialist team for severely 
disabled children and young people.  This will see an increase in the 
team’s caseload, but will enable effective joint assessment and planning 
as well as interventions.  Families have told us that they want to access 
one system instead of multiple pathways to services which is currently the 
case and the integration under a single management system will facilitate 
this development. This will support holistic assessments, care plans and 
transition into adult services. 
  

55. Integrated Teams (One Point) have been developed which will enable 
services to be delivered in localities. The One Point Integrated Teams will 
provide universal and targeted services for all children and young people 
in County Durham and will contribute to early identification and 
intervention.  One Point will provide services for the majority of children 
and young people with additional needs.  

  
  Commitment 7 

‘We provide cohesive governance and leadership across the 
disabled children and young people’s agenda by linking effectively 
with key partners’ 
  

How the charter commitments are met 

Information on links to other local integration forums which set strategic direction 
for disabled children’s services eg the local Children’s Trust arrangements, the 
Local Safeguarding Board, the learning disability partnership board, the school 
forum etc 

56. The Disability Joint Commissioning Group (DJCG) and the Inter Agency 
Transition Group (IATG) are responsible for the commissioning of services 
for disabled children and young people/young adults on behalf of the 
DJCG  who are ultimately responsible to the Children and Families Trust 
Executive Board. These multi agency groups work in partnership with 
NHS County Durham, the Voluntary Sector and Families to deliver 
change.  
  

57. The DJCG commissions services for disabled children, young people and 
their families on behalf of the JCB and reports progress on a regular basis 
for information.  

 
58. Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) Clinical Commissioning 

Group (CCG) have developed a Communications and Engagement 
Strategy. The strategy sets out how the CCGs will communicate, engage 
and manage relationships with stakeholders including the public, service 
users, local communities and a range of partners. Also, the commissioning 
intentions were informed by the JHWS and key issues and developments 

Page 51



identified by the contracts leads within North East Commissioning Support 
(NECS) including learning disabilities. 

 
Evidence of how the JSNA and JHWS is aligned with other arrangements, such 
as reviewing and commissioning of SEN services via the High Needs Block; 
safeguarding arrangements, child poverty strategies etc 

  
59. Evidence from the JSNA is used to develop the JHWS.  Information from 

the Children, Young People and Families Plan, CCG Commissioning 
Intentions, local accounts and various plans and strategies have been 
used in the development of the JHWS strategic objectives and actions. 
  

 

 

  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



!"#$%&'($)"*$+&%,-.*/$0"&./1*(2%$0",1)*1$341$5*,.)"$

,(/$!*..-*&('$64,1/%7

!"4$,1*$8*$),.9&('$,-4:)7$

!"#$ %&'()*#+$ ,"&*+-#./'$ ,"(-0#-$ 12-$ 3#(*0"$ (.+$ 4#**)#&.5$ 62(-+'$ (.+$ 0"&'$ (77289(.:&.5$

+27;8#.0$ "(<#$ )##.$ +#<#*29#+$ 02$ ';992-0$ 3#(*0"$ (.+$4#**)#&.5$ 62(-+'$ =346'>$8##0$ 0"#$

.##+'$ 21$ (**$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$ 9#29*#$ ?"2$ "(<#$ +&'()&*&0&#'@$ '9#7&(*$ #+;7(0&2.(*$ .##+'$

=ABC>@$"#(*0"$72.+&0&2.'@$(.+$0"#&-$ 1(8&*&#'D$E.$0"&'$+27;8#.0@$?"#.$?#$0(*F$()2;0$+&'()*#+$

7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?#$(-#$-#1#--&.5$02$(**$0"#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0"&'$5-2;9D$

6*(*;)%$)4$5*,.)"$,(/$!*..-*&('$64,1/%$43$%&'(&('$)"*$0",1)*1$

,(/$<**)&('$&)%$=4<<&)<*()%>

G$H;)*&7*:$(-0&7;*(0#$($<&'&2.$12-$&89-2<&.5$0"#$I;(*&0:$21$*&1#$(.+$2;0728#'$12-$

+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$

G$J.+#-'0(.+$0"#$0-;#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$

1(8&*&#'$&.$:2;-$*27(*$(-#($(.+$"2?$02$8##0$0"#8

G$3(<#$5-#(0#-$72.K+#.7#$&.$0(-5#0&.5$&.0#5-(0#+$7288&''&2.&.5$2.$0"#$.##+'$

21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

G$A;992-0$($*27(*$127;'$2.$72'0L#11#70&<#$(.+$7"&*+L7#.0-#+$&.0#-<#.0&2.'$02$

+#*&<#-$*2.5L0#-8$&89(70'

G$6;&*+$2.$*27(*$9(-0.#-'"&9'$02$+#*&<#-$&89-2<#8#.0'$02$0"#$I;(*&0:$21$*&1#$(.+$

2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$

G$%#<#*29$($'"(-#+$*27(*$127;'$2.$8#(';-&.5$(.+$&89-2<&.5$0"#$2;0728#'$

#M9#-&#.7#+$):$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

G$ %#82.'0-(0#$"2?$:2;-$(-#($?&**$+#*&<#-$0"#$'"(-#+$(8)&0&2.'$21$0"#$"#(*0"$

':'0#8$'#0$2;0$):$0"#$N2<#-.8#.0$&.$O6#00#-$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-$,"&*+-#.$

(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#S$P;-$H*#+5#/$12-$($F#:$5-2;9$21$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#T

T$ %#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTW>@$6#00#-$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$12-$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#S$P;-$
H*#+5#

Page 53



Commitment 1: We have detailed and accurate information 

on the disabled children, young people and their families 

living in our area, and provide public information on how we 

plan to meet their needs 

!"#$%&'()$" 

!"#$I;(*&0:$21$+(0($(.+$&.12-8(0&2.$;'#+$02$;.+#-9&.$0"#$9*(..&.5@$7288&''&2.&.5$(.+$+#*&<#-:$

21$'#-<&7#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$<#-:$7289*#M$.##+'$&'$210#.$922-D$!"#$+&1K7;*0:$

21$+#<#*29&.5$(77;-(0#@$-2);'0$+(0($&.$($'0(.+(-+$12-8(0$()2;0$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$

9#29*#$ &'$ (.$#.+;-&.5$ &'';#$ 12-$ *27(*$ (-#('$(.+$ 12-$.(0&2.(*$ (5#.7&#'D$X#*&()*#$9#-12-8(.7#$

&.12-8(0&2.$ ()2;0$ 0"#$ ;'#$ (.+$ <(*;#$ 21$ '#-<&7#'$ &'$ 7-&0&7(*$ 02$ 7288&''&2.&.5$ +#7&'&2.'D$ !"#$

,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$&+#.0&K#+$0"#$*(7F$21$(77;-(0#$+(0($('$0"#$

'&.5*#$)&55#'0$7"(**#.5#$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$0"#$+#<#*298#.0$21$2;0728#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$?&0"$*2.5L0#-8$

"#(*0"$72.+&0&2.'@$+&'()&*&0&#'$(.+$*&1#$*&8&0&.5$72.+&0&2.'UDT

E.$Y(-7"$UVTU@$0"#$,Z,$-#*#('#+$($-#92-0$#.0&0*#+$O3#(*0"7(-#$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$

9#29*#/WDU!"&'$ -#92-0$ 5(<#$ +#0(&*'$ 21$ 9-&8(-:$ 7(-#$ 0-;'0$ =H,!>$ -#9*&#'$ 02$ ($ '#*1$ (''#''8#.0$

I;#'0&2..(&-#$2.$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.D 

H,!'$+#82.'0-(0#+$(.$#M0-#8#*:$?2--:&.5$*(7F$21$(?(-#.#''$21$0"#$.##+'$21$*27(*$+&'()*#+$

7"&*+-#.S$

?$@&A*$B0C%$7*(&8#+$0"(0$(4$/&%,-.*/$="&./1*($,(/$#4:('$D*4D.*$.&A*/$&($)"*&1$,1*,

?$@&3)#$;A*$H,!'$/&/$(4)$<4(&)41$8"*)"*1$%*1A&=*%$,..4=,)*/$,%$,$1*%:.)$43$04<<4($

E%%*%%<*()$@1,<*8419$8*1*$/*.&A*1*/

?$F&G)#$)"1**$H,!'$/&/(2)$9(48$"48$<,(#$="&./1*($8*1*$1*3*11*/$341$<,(:,.$

8"**.=",&1%$(.+$(&(*$%,&/$="&./1*($8*1*$8,&)&('$4A*1$HI$8**9%$341$8"**.=",&1%

?$@&3)**($H,!'$'(&+$0"#:$/&/(2)$D14A&/*$%"41)$-1*,9%$%*1A&=*%

%;#$02$0"#$*(7F$21$-#*&()*#$+(0($2.$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$0"#&-$'0-(0#5&7$&.<2*<#8#.0$

(.+$0"(0$21$0"#&-$9(-#.0'$&'$#''#.0&(*$02$5(&.$($522+$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$0"#$9-2K*#$21$0"&'$5-2;9

U$ ,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$X#92-0$21$0"#$*2.5$0#-8$
72.+&0&2.'@$+&'()&*&0:$(.+$9(**&(0&<#$7(-#$';)5-2;9$9DU
W$ ,(-#$Z;(*&0:$,288&''&2.$=UVTU>@$3#(*0"7(-#$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$9-#9(-#$(''#''8#.0$21$.##+'$=[AC\>$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$(-#($(.+$

"(<#$-#5(-+$02$5;&+(.7#$1-28$A#7-#0(-:$21$A0(0#

Page 54



(.+$0"#$9(-0&7;*(-$7"(**#.5#'$(.+$#M9#-&#.7#'$0"#:$1(7#D$!"#&-$<&#?'$-#8(&.$;.+#--#9-#'#.0#+$

&.$';-<#:'$(.+$9;)*&7$(.+$9(0&#.0$&.<2*<#8#.0$&.$0"#$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#D$

7++()"8.9++/:

P.#$21$0"#$9-&8(-:$022*'$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$"(<#$02$+-&<#$'0-(0#5&7$7288&''&2.&.5$&.$

0"#&-$(-#('$&'$0"#$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0$=[AC\>D$!"#$[AC\$?&**$(''#''$0"#$7;--#.0$(.+$

1;0;-#$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$.##+'$(.+$(''#0'$21$($*27(*$929;*(0&2.$(.+$?&**$;.+#-9&.$($[2&.0$3#(*0"$

(.+$4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5:$=[34A>D$E0$?&**$&.0#-9-#0$(<(&*()*#$+(0($02$+#<#*29$(.$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$

0"#$7(;'#'$21$"#(*0"$&.#I;(*&0&#'$(.+$($.(--(0&<#$21$0"#$#<&+#.7#D

!"#$[AC\$7(.$2.*:$)#$(.$#11#70&<#$022*$ 12-$#<&+#.7#L)('#+$+#7&'&2.$8(F&.5$ &1$ &0$ &'$)('#+$2.$

(77;-(0#$(.+$8#(.&.51;*$+(0(D$!"#$)2+&#'$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$+#*#5(0#$72**#70&.5$+(0($

02$('$9(-0$21$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''@$8;'0$127;'$2.$&89-2<&.5$0"#$I;(*&0:$(.+$'729#$21$&.12-8(0&2.$

2.$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?"&7"$0"#:$;'#@$&.7*;+&.5S$(<(&*()*#$.(0&2.(*$+(0($'#0']$

*27(*$ &.12-8(0&2.$ '2;-7#'$ ';7"$ ('$ +(0($ 1-28$ ,2882.$ \''#''8#.0$ Q-(8#?2-F']$ I;(*&0(0&<#$

&.12-8(0&2.$1-28$+&-#70$#.5(5#8#.0$?&0"$'#-<&7#$;'#-'D$

!"#$ [AC\$ 9-27#''$ 8;'0$ +#<#*29$ (.$ ;.+#-'0(.+&.5$ 21$ 0"#$ *27(*$ 929;*(0&2.$ ?"&7"$ &'$

';1K7&#.0*:$ +&11#-#.0&(0#+$ 02$ ;.+#-'0(.+$ 0"#$ .##+'$ 21$ (**$ 5-2;9'$ 21$ 7"&*+-#.@$ 9(-0&7;*(-*:$

0"2'#$ ?"2$ 1(7#$ 0"#$ 5-#(0#'0$ &.#I;(*&0&#'$ 2-$ #M9#-&#.7#$ 8;*0&9*#$ +&'(+<(.0(5#'D$

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ !"#$1;**$-(.5#$21$'2;-7#'$21$&.12-8(0&2.$72**#70#+$2.$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$
9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$?"&7"$?&**$)#$;'#+$02$&.12-8$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''

G$ !"#$I;(*&0:$('';-(.7#$9-27#''$;'#+$02$#.';-#$0"(0$&.12-8(0&2.$(.+$+(0($2.$
+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$;'#+$02$&.12-8$7288&''&2.&.5$&'$
';1K7&#.0*:$+#0(&*#+$(.+$(77;-(0#

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$[AC\$?&**$)#$;'#+$02$(''#''$0"#$.##+'$21$*27(*$+&'()*#+$
7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$&.12-8(0&2.$2.$(.:$"(-+$02$-#(7"$5-2;9'$&'$'2;-7#+@$(.+$(70&2.$
0(F#.$02$(++-#''$(.:$5(9'$21$&.12-8(0&2.$?&0"$-#5(-+$02$*27(*$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$
:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$(-#$
'0-(0#5&7(**:$&.<2*<#+$&.$&+#.0&1:&.5$.##+@$(.+$#<&+#.7#$(.+$1##+)(7F$2.$0"#&-$
#M9#-&#.7#'$&'$;'#+$02$&.12-8$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''

G$ H;)*&7$&.12-8(0&2.$2.$"2?$0"#$346$?&**$';992-0$9(-0.#-'$02$7288&''&2.$
(99-29-&(0#*:$02$8##0$0"#$.##+'$21$*27(*$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$
1(8&*&#'

Page 55



J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

A0(0;02-:$N;&+(.7#$2.$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0'$(.+$[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$
4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5&#'

A0(0;02-:$5;&+(.7#$02$';992-0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$(.+$0"#&-$9(-0.#-'$&.$
;.+#-'0(.+&.5$0"#$+;0&#'$(.+$92?#-'$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0'$(.+$
[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5&#'D

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.@$P9#-(0&.5$9-&.7&9*#'$12-$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0'$(.+$
[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5&#'

H(9#-$+#'&5.#+$02$';992-0$(-#('$02$+#<#*29$';77#''1;*$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0'$

(.+$[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5&#'D

,"&*+$(.+$Y(0#-.&0:$3#(*0"$P)'#-<(02-:S$';992-0$12-$7288&''&2.#-'

3#*9$02$K.+$0"#$-&5"0$022*'@$+(0($(.+$#<&+#.7#$02$-#<&#?@$9*(.$(.+$&89-2<#$'#-<&7#'$&.$

:2;-$*27(*$(-#(D

,"&*+$(.+$Y(0#-.&0:$3#(*0"$P)'#-<(02-:S$022*'$(.+$+(0(

,"&Y(0$9-2<&+#'$#(':$(77#''$02$($?#(*0"$21$+(0(@$&.12-8(0&2.$(.+$&.0#**&5#.7#$0"-2;5"$($

-(.5#$21$2.*&.#$022*'$+#'&5.#+$02$';992-0$+#7&'&2.L8(F&.5D$

X&5"07(-#$=UVTU>@$C3A$\0*('$21$^(-&(0&2.$&.$3#(*0"7(-#$12-$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$\+;*0'

^(-&(0&2.'$(7-2''$0"#$)-#(+0"$21$7"&*+$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'$9-2<&+#+$):$C3A$B.5*(.+$(-#$
9-#'#.0#+$025#0"#-$02$(**2?$7*&.&7&(.'@$7288&''&2.#-'$(.+$'#-<&7#$;'#-'$02$&+#.0&1:$9-&2-&0:$

(-#('$12-$&89-2<&.5$2;0728#@$I;(*&0:$(.+$9-2+;70&<&0:D

_N\$=UVTT>@$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0S$%(0($E.<#.02-:

P11#-'$9-(70&7(*$"#*9$02$72;.7&*'@$7*&.&7(*$7288&''&2.&.5$5-2;9'$(.+$20"#-$8#8)#-'$21$

"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+'D

,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$Y(F&.5$+(0($(.+$
&.12-8(0&2.$?2-F$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#

Q(70'"##0$2.$8(F&.5$+(0($(.+$&.12-8(0&2.$?2-F$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$&.7*;+&.5$

-#'2;-7#'D

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:$=UVTU>@$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'S$8(F&.5$0"#$7('#$02$0(-5#0$
+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$'#-<&7#'

6-&#K.5$12-$H(-#.0$,(-#-$Q2-;8'$2.$0"#$-#('2.'$?":$0"#$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$)2(-+$&.$
0"#&-$(-#($'"2;*+$0(-5#0$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$&.$0"#&-$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0$=[AC\>$
(.+$[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$'0-(0#5:$=[34A>D

Page 56



Commitment 2: We engage directly with disabled children and 

young people and their participation is embedded in the work 

of our Health and Wellbeing Board 

3#(*0"$ (.+$4#**)#&.5$ 62(-+'$ '"2;*+$ #.';-#$ 0"(0$ 0"#$ <2&7#$ 21$ +&'()*#+$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$

9#29*#$&'$(*?(:'$"#(-+$?"#.$+#7&'&2.'$(-#$)#&.5$8(+#$0"(0$(11#70$0"#8D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$

62(-+$8#8)#-'$'"2;*+$;'#$0"#&-$&.`;#.7#$02$#8)#+$#.5(5#8#.0$?&0"$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$

:2;.5$9#29*#$0"-2;5"2;0$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$':'0#8$(.+$&.$0"#$72.0#M0$21$($72.0&.;2;'$(.+$

7;--#.0$9(-0.#-'"&9D

!"#$ )#.#K0'$ 21$ #8)#++&.5$ 9(-0&7&9(0&2.$ 21$ +&'()*#+$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$ 9#29*#$ (-#$ ";5#S$

)#00#-$'#-<&7#'$?&**$)#$+#<#*29#+$+-&<#.$):$1##+)(7F$1-28$0"#$9#29*#$?"2$F.2?$(.+$;'#$0"#8]$

-#'2;-7#'$(-#$.20$?('0#+$2.$'#-<&7#'$0"(0$(-#$.20$0(F#.$;9$2-$<(*;#+]$'#-<&7#'$?&**$)#$82-#$

7"&*+$(.+$:2;.5$9#-'2.$1-&#.+*:$(.+$(77#''&)*#]$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&**$"(<#$

&.'&5"0$ &.02$ 0"#$ +&<#-'#$ .##+'$ (.+$ )(--&#-'$ 1(7#+$ ):$ 8(-5&.(*&'#+$ (.+$ <;*.#-()*#$ 5-2;9']$

&89-2<#+$ (772;.0()&*&0:$ 02$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$ 9#29*#$ ('$ '0(F#"2*+#-']$ (.+$ +&-#70$ )#.#K0'$

02$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$0"#8'#*<#'$';7"$('$ &.7-#('#+$F.2?*#+5#$21$'#-<&7#'@$

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$&.<2*<#$0"&-+$9(-0&#'$&.$9-#9(-(0&2.$21$0"#$[AC\S$

G$ _27(*$3#(*0"?(07"$

G$ 9#29*#$*&<&.5$2-$?2-F&.5$&.$0"#$(-#($

G$ 12-$,2;.0:$,2;.7&*'$a$#(7"$-#*#<(.0$%,$

%;0:$02$&.<2*<#$0"&-+$9(-0&#'$&.$9-#9(-(0&2.$21$0"#$[34AS$

G$ _27(*$3#(*0"?(07"$

G$ 9#29*#$*&<&.5$2-$?2-F&.5$&.$0"#$(-#($

E1)&=.*$IK$43$)"*$L(&)*/$M,)&4(%$04(A*()&4($4($)"*$N&'")%$43$)"*$0"&./$
OLM0N0P

G$ !"#$7"&*+$"('$0"#$-&5"0$02$#M9-#''$"&'$2-$"#-$29&.&2.$1-##*:$(.+$02$"(<#$0"(0$29&.&2.$
0(F#.$&.02$(772;.0$&.$(.:$8(00#-$2-$9-27#+;-#$(11#70&.5$0"#$7"&*+D$

E1)&=.*$Q$43$)"*$LM$04(A*()&4($4($)"*$N&'")%$43$B*1%4(%$8&)"$+&%,-&.&)&*%$
OLM0NB+P

G$ ,"&*+-#.$?&0"$+&'()&*&0&#'$"(<#$0"#$-&5"0$02$#M9-#''$0"#&-$<&#?'$1-##*:$2.$(**$8(00#-'$
(11#70&.5$0"#8@$0"#&-$<&#?'$)#&.5$5&<#.$+;#$?#&5"0$&.$(772-+(.7#$?&0"$0"#&-$(5#$(.+$
8(0;-&0:@$2.$(.$#I;(*$)('&'$?&0"$20"#-$7"&*+-#.@$(.+$02$)#$9-2<&+#+$?&0"$+&'()&*&0:$
(.+$(5#L(99-29-&(0#$(''&'0(.7#$02$-#(*&'#$0"(0$-&5"0D

Page 57



72.K+#.7#@$(.+$'F&**'bD

E0$'"2;*+$)#$ -#725.&'#+$ 0"(0$8(.:$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$8(:$ 1(7#$'&5.&K7(.0$

)(--&#-'$ 02$ 0"#&-$ &.<2*<#8#.0@$9(-0&7;*(-*:$ &.$8(&.'0-#(8$'#00&.5'D$X#7#.0$-#'#(-7"$ 1-28$0"#$

^EHBX$ 9-2c#70$ 12;.+$ 0"(0$ :2;.5$ +&'()*#+$ 9#29*#/'$ 9(-0&7&9(0&2.$ &'$ '0&**$ .20$ #8)#++#+$ (0$ ($

'0-(0#5&7@$'#-<&7#$*#<#*$2-$&.+&<&+;(*$+#7&'&2.L8(F&.5D$E0$12;.+$)(--&#-'$02$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$&.7*;+&.5$

($*(7F$21$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$?"(0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$&'$(.+$"2?$:2;$8(F#$&0$"(99#.@$*(7F$21$1;.+&.5@$

&.7*;'&<#$9-(70&7#@$-#'2;-7#'@$0&8#$(.+$0-(&.&.5@$(.+$*(7F$21$72.'&'0#.0$':'0#8'$(.+$'0-;70;-#'dDU

\**$ +&'()*#+$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$ 9#29*#$ 7288;.&7(0#$ (.+$ "(<#$ ($ -&5"0$ 02$ "(<#$ 0"#&-$ <&#?'$

"#(-+$ (.+$ 0"&'$8(:$ -#I;&-#$ 0(-5#0#+$ (99-2(7"#'$ (.+$ 0"#$ &.<2*<#8#.0$ 21$ ^2*;.0(-:$ A#702-$

P-5(.&'(0&2.'$=^AP'>D$

b$ H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'$=UVVe>@$32?$02$&.<2*<#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$7288&''&2.&.5@$9DfD

d$ ^EHBX$=^2&7#@$E.7*;'&2.@$H(-0&7&9(0&2.@$B892?#-8#.0$(.+$X#'#(-7">$=UVTW>@$3#(-$J'$P;0@$9DUW.

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$2-$&0'$';)$5-2;9'$"(<#$?2-F#+$?&0"$
+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''@$(.+$.#M0$'0#9'$12-$[AC\$
#.5(5#8#.0

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$2-$&0'$';)$5-2;9'$"(<#$?2-F#+$?&0"$+&'()*#+$
7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0"#$9-#9(-(0&2.$(.+$+#*&<#-:$21$0"#$[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$
4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5:$=[34A>@$(.+$.#M0$'0#9'$12-$[34A$#.5(5#8#.0

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$9(-0.#-'"&9$?2-F&.5$?&0"$(.:$*27(*$5-2;9'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$
:2;.5$9#29*#

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

!"#$C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.@$X2:(*$,2**#5#$21$H(#+&(0-&7'$(.+$,"&*+$3#(*0"$(.+$P1K7#$12-$
H;)*&7$Y(.(5#8#.0$=UVTT>@$E.<2*<&.5$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'

!"&'$-#92-0$"&5"*&5"0'$0"#$F#:$K.+&.5'$(.+$-#7288#.+(0&2.'$1-28$(.$#<#.0$"#*+$&.$
A#90#8)#-$UVTT$02$+&'7;''$0"#$F#:$9-&2-&0&#'$12-$7"&*+$"#(*0"D$

^EHBX$=^2&7#DE.7*;'&2.DH(-0&7&9(0&2.DB892?#-8#.0DX#'#(-7">$

^EHBX$&'$($0"-##L:#(-$9-2c#70$1;.+#+$):$0"#$6&5$_200#-:$Q;.+@$02$-#'#(-7"$:2;.5$+&'()*#+$
9#29*#/'$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$&.$+#7&'&2.'$()2;0$'#-<&7#'D$E0$)#5(.$&.$A;88#-$UVTVD

^EHBX$=UVTU>@$!"#$^&9#-$9-2c#70S$?"(0$?#$12;.+

Q&.+&.5'$(.+$F#:$8#''(5#'$(-&'&.5$1-28$0"#$-#'#(-7"$(70&<&0&#'$21$0"#$^EHBX$9-2c#70D$$

^EHBX$=UVTU>@$!"#$^&9#-$9-2c#70S$?"(0$?#$12;.+$1-28$0"#$';-<#:

A;88(-:$21$0"#$K.+&.5'$(.+$F#:$8#''(5#'$1-28$0"#$-#'#(-7"$(70&<&0&#'D$!"#$-#'#(-7"$
';88(-&'#+$&.$0"&'$-#92-0$?('$7(--&#+$2;0$)#0?##.$UVTV$(.+$UVTUD$

Page 58



H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'

B.()*#'$2-5(.&'(0&2.'$02$#11#70&<#*:$&.<2*<#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0"#$+#<#*298#.0@$
+#*&<#-:$(.+$#<(*;(0&2.$21$'#-<&7#'$0"(0$(11#70$0"#&-$*&<#'D$

H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'$=UVVe>@$32?$02$&.<2*<#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$
7288&''&2.&.5

\.$&.0-2+;70&2.$02$7288&''&2.&.5$1-28$($<(-&#0:$21$9#-'9#70&<#'D$E0$+#'7-&)#'$0"#$+&11#-#.0$
9(-0'$21$0"#$9-27#''$(.+$?(:'$02$';992-0$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$02$9(-0&7&9(0#$&.$(**$
('9#70'$21$7288&''&2.&.5D

H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'$=UVVe>@$32?$02$);&*+$($7;*0;-#$21$9(-0&7&9(0&2.

E.12-8(0&2.$(.+$9-(70&7(*$&+#('$()2;0$"2?$02$#8)#+$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$0"-2;5"2;0$:2;-$
2-5(.&'(0&2.$&.$($?(:$0"(0$)-&.5'$()2;0$7"(.5#D

H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'$=UVTV>@$_&'0#.$(.+$,"(.5#$L$($5;&+#$02$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$
9#29*#/'$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$-&5"0'

\&8'$02$&.7-#('#$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$-&5"0'$(.+$
"2?$0"#:$7(.$)#$-#(*&'#+$&.$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$(.+$0"&-+$'#702-$'#00&.5'D

Y(F&.5$P;-'#*<#'$3#(-+$=YP3>

YP3$&'$($.(0&2.(*$9-2c#70$02$#.';-#$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#./'$-&5"0$02$)#$"#(-+$)#728#'$($-#(*&0:D

,2;.7&*$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$=UVVg>@$Y(F&.5$P;-'#*<#'$3#(-+

6('#+$2.$($'#-&#'$21$#&5"0$'#8&.(-'$?&0"$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$0"&'$)22F$'#0'$2;0$0"#$7;--#.0$
92*&7:$72.0#M0$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$9(-0&7&9(0&2.@$2;0*&.#'$0"#$)(--&#-'$
(.+$7"(**#.5#'$02$#11#70&<#$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$(.+$"&5"*&5"0'$?"(0$&'$?2-F&.5$?#**D$

Q-(.F*&.@$\D$(.+$A*29#-@$HD$=UVVg>$A;992-0&.5$0"#$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$
:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$+#7&'&2.L8(F&.5

H-#'#.0'$-#'#(-7"$#M9*2-&.5$1(702-'$02$';992-0$522+$9-(70&7#$&.$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$(.+$+&'7;''#'$
92*&7:$(.+$9-(70&7#$&89*&7(0&2.'D

%1B'$=UVVW>@$6;&*+&.5$($7;*0;-#$21$9(-0&7&9(0&2.S$-#'#(-7"$-#92-0

Y(.:$21$0"#$7('#$'0;+&#'$&.$0"&'$-#'#(-7"$(-#$(00#890&.5$02$8(F#$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$82-#$
&.0#5-(*$02$0"#&-$2-5(.&'(0&2.D$

Page 59



04<<&)<*()$R>$!*$*(','*$/&1*=).#$8&)"$D,1*()$

=,1*1%$,(/$)"*&1$D,1)&=&D,)&4($&%$*<-*//*/$&($)"*$

8419$43$4:1$5*,.)"$,(/$!*..-*&('$64,1/

!"#$9;-92'#$21$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$&'$02$#.';-#$0"(0$9(-#.0'$7(.$&.`;#.7#$'#-<&7#$9*(..&.5$(.+$

+#7&'&2.$8(F&.5$'2$0"(0$'#-<&7#'$8##0$0"#$.##+'$21$1(8&*&#'$?&0"$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.D$B11#70&<#$

9(-#.0$ 9(-0&7&9(0&2.$ "(99#.'$ ?"#.$ 9(-#.0'$ "(<#$ 72.<#-'(0&2.'$ ?&0"$ (.+$ ?2-F$ (*2.5'&+#$

9-21#''&2.(*'@$&.$2-+#-$02$+#'&5.@$+#<#*29$(.+$&89-2<#$'#-<&7#'fDTD

!"#$)#.#K0'$21$#11#70&<#$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$(-#$?#**$#'0()*&'"#+S$-#'2;-7#'$(-#$.20$?('0#+$2.$

'#-<&7#'$0"(0$(-#$.20$0(F#.$;9$2-$<(*;#+]$9(-#.0$7(-#-'/$&.'&5"0$7(.$"#*9$+#<#*29$72'0L#11#70&<#$

'2*;0&2.'$02$*27(*$9-2)*#8']$($'"(-#+$<&#?$7(.$)#$+#<#*29#+$)#0?##.$9(-#.0'$(.+$9-21#''&2.(*'$

21$"2?$02$';992-0$1(8&*&#'$?&0"&.$1;.+&.5$*&8&0(0&2.']$82-#$72'0*:$&.0#-<#.0&2.'$7(.$)#$(<2&+#+$

&.$ 0"#$ 1;0;-#]$ (.+$ 7289*(&.0'$ 7(.$ )#$ -#+;7#+$ ):$ H(-#.0$ ,(-#-$ Q2-;8'$82.&02-&.5$ '#-<&7#'$

(.+$(*#-0&.5$7288&''&2.#-'$(.+$8(.(5#-'$&1$9-2)*#8'$277;-D$!"#$,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:$-#'2;-7#'$

)#*2?$72.0(&.$($?#(*0"$21$#<&+#.7#$(.+$7('#$'0;+&#'$&.02$"2?$#11#70&<#$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$"('$

)#.#K0#+$0"#$*27(*$(-#('$?"#-#$&0$"('$)##.$&89*#8#.0#+D

3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$'"2;*+$#.';-#$0"(0$9(-#.0$7(-#-'$(-#$&.<2*<#+$&.$+#7&'&2.'$0"(0$

(11#70$0"#8$(0$($'0-(0#5&7$(.+$'#-<&7#$*#<#*D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$8#8)#-'$'"2;*+$

;'#$0"#&-$&.`;#.7#$02$#8)#+$#.5(5#8#.0$?&0"$9(-#.0$7(-#-'$0"-2;5"2;0$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$

':'0#8$(.+$&.$0"#$72.0#M0$21$($72.0&.;2;'$(.+$7;--#.0$9(-0.#-'"&9D

E0$'"2;*+$)#$-#725.&'#+$0"(0$9(-#.0$7(-#-'$8(:$1(7#$'&5.&K7(.0$)(--&#-'$02$0"#&-$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$

&.$8(&.'0-#(8$'#00&.5'$);0$0"(0$0"&'$'"2;*+$.20$9-#<#.0$0"#&-$&.<2*<#8#.0$&.$+#7&'&2.L8(F&.5D$

f$ %#K.&0&2.$1-28$!25#0"#-$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$=UVTV>@$32?$02$5;&+#$02$9(-#.0$7(-#-$9(-0&7&9(L
0&2.S$A#70&2.$T$a$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$('$($9-27#''@$9DUD

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$&.<2*<#$0"&-+$9(-0&#'$&.$9-#9(-(0&2.$21$0"#$[AC\S$

G$ _27(*$3#(*0"?(07"$

G$ 9#29*#$*&<&.5$2-$?2-F&.5$&.$0"#$(-#($

G$ 12-$,2;.0:$,2;.7&*'$a$#(7"$-#*#<(.0$%,$

%;0:$02$&.<2*<#$0"&-+$9(-0&#'$&.$9-#9(-(0&2.$21$0"#$[34AS$

G$ _27(*$3#(*0"?(07"$

G$ 9#29*#$*&<&.5$2-$?2-F&.5$&.$0"#$(-#($

Page 60



548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$2-$&0'$';)$5-2;9'$"(<#$?2-F#+$?&0"$
9(-#.0$7(-#-'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$&.$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''@$(.+$.#M0$'0#9'$12-$[AC\$
#.5(5#8#.0

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$2-$&0'$';)$5-2;9'$"(<#$?2-F#+$?&0"$9(-#.0$
7(-#-'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$&.$0"#$9-#9(-(0&2.$(.+$+#*&<#-:$21$0"#$[34A@$(.+$.#M0$
'0#9'$12-$[34A$#.5(5#8#.0

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$9(-0.#-'"&9$?2-F&.5$?&0"$*27(*$9(-#.0$5-2;9'@$&.7*;+&.5$0"#$*27(*$H(-#.0$
,(-#-$Q2-;8='>

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

!25#0"#-$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$=<UDV$UVTV>@$H(-#.0$7(-#-$9(-0&7&9(0&2.S$32?$02$5;&+#D$

\$5;&+#$02$';992-0$9(-#.0$7(-#-$12-;8'@$7288&''&2.#-'$(.+$8(.(5#-'$02$+#<#*29$9(-#.0$
7(-#-$9(-0&7&9(0&2.D$E0$7(.$)#$+2?.*2(+#+$&.$0"#$12**2?&.5$'#9(-(0#$'#70&2.'S$

A#70&2.$T$L$!"#$H-27#''

A#70&2.$U$L$9-2+;7&.5$&.12-8(0&2.

A#70&2.$W$L$72.';*0(0&2.

A#70&2.$d($L$';77#''1;*$8##0&.5'$!25#0"#-$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.

A#70&2.$d)$L$"2?$02$-#(7"$(.+$#.5(5#$9(-#.0'

A#70&2.$d7$L$';992-0&.5$9(-#.0$-#9-#'#.0(0&<#'

A#70&2.$f)L$12-$'0-(0#5&7$*#(+#-'

32?$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$(.+$9(-#.0$7(-#-$12-;8'$*#(+'$02$)#00#-$2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$
7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$UVTT

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:$=UVTU>@$H(-#.0$,(-#-$H(-0&7&9(0&2.S$\.$2<#-<&#?

!"&'$'"2-0$5;&+#$9-2<&+#'$#M(89*#'$21$';77#''1;*$9(-#.0$7(-#-$9(-0&7&9(0&2.

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:@$E89-2<&.5$3#(*0"$A#-<&7#'

X#'2;-7#'$02$';992-0$0"#$7288&''&2.&.5$(.+$8(.(5#8#.0$21$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'D

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:@$X#'2;-7#'

X#'2;-7#'@$7('#$'0;+&#'$(.+$&.12-8(0&2.$12-$9-21#''&2.(*'$02$"#*9$0"#8$&89-2<#$"2?$
'#-<&7#'$(-#$+#*&<#-#+@$'2$0"#:$)#00#-$8##0$1(8&*&#'/$.##+'D

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:$=UVTW>@$H(-#.0$7(-#-$12-;8$&.<2*<#8#.0$&.$'"(9&.5$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'$L$
'#72.+$-#92-0

X#92-0$&.02$H(-#.0$,(-#-$Q2-;8$&.<2*<#8#.0$?&0"$0"#$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#$&.$0"#$*#(+$;9$02$0"#$
.#?$"#(*0"$':'0#8$728&.5$&.02$#11#70D

Page 61



Commitment 4: We set clear strategic outcomes for our 

partners to meet in relation to disabled children, young 

people and their families, monitor progress towards achieving 

them and hold each other to account

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$9-#9(-#$($[34A$12-$8##0&.5$.##+'$&.7*;+#+$&.$[AC\$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$_\$(-#($(.+$
02$"(<#$-#5(-+$02$5;&+(.7#$1-28$A#7-#0(-:$21$A0(0#$

H2?#-$21$0"#$346$02$5&<#$&0'$29&.&2.$02$0"#$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$?"&7"$#'0()*&'"#+$&0$2.$
?"#0"#-$0"#$(;0"2-&0:$&'$+&'7"(-5&.5$&0'$+;0:$02$"(<#$-#5(-+$02$-#*#<(.0$[AC\$(.+$
[34A$

,,N$&'$;.+#-$($+;0:$02$&.<2*<#$346$&.$9-#9(-&.5$2-$'&5.&K7(.0*:$-#<&'&.5$0"#$
7288&''&2.&.5$9*(.$a$&.7*;+&.5$72.';*0&.5$&0$2.$?"#0"#-$0"#$9*(.$"('$0(F#.$9-29#-$
(772;.0$21$0"#$-#*#<(.0$[34A$

%;0:$02$9-2<&+#$29&.&2.$2.$?"#0"#-$0"#$,,N$7288&''&2.&.5$9*(.$"('$0(F#.$9-29#-$
(772;.0$21$0"#$[34AD$H2?#-$02$(*'2$?-&0#$02$C3A$B.5*(.+$=12-8#-*:$0"#$C3A$
,288&''&2.&.5$62(-+>$?&0"$0"(0$29&.&2.$2.$0"#$7288&''&2.&.5$9*(.$=729:$8;'0$(*'2$)#$
';99*&#+$02$0"#$-#*#<(.0$,,N>D$%;0:$02$-#<&#?$"2?$1(-$0"#$,,N$"('$72.0-&);0#+$02$0"#$
+#*&<#-:$21$(.:$[34A$02$?"&7"$&0$?('$-#I;&-#+$02$"(<#$-#5(-+$(.+$02$72.';*0$346$2.$
0"&'$

%;0:$&.$72.+;70&.5$0"#$9#-12-8(.7#$(''#''8#.0@$02$(''#''$"2?$?#**$,,N$"('$
+&'7"(-5#+$+;0:$02$"(<#$-#5(-+$02$[AC\$(.+$[34A$(.+$02$72.';*0$346$2.$&0'$<&#?$2.$
,,N'/$72.0-&);0&2.$02$+#*&<#-:$21$(.:$[34A$02$?"&7"$&0$?('$-#I;&-#+$02$"(<#$-#5(-+$
=?"#.$72.+;70&.5$&0'$(..;(*$9#-12-8(.7#$(''#''8#.0$21$0"#$,,N>$

E.$ -#'92.'#$ 02$ 0"#$ -#92-0$ 21$ 0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$ Q2-;8@$ 0"#$

N2<#-.8#.0$'#0$2;0$&0'$(8)&0&2.'$12-$&89-2<&.5$"#(*0"$2;0728#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$

):$*(;.7"&.5$O6#00#-$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-$,"&*+-#.$\.+$R2;.5$H#29*#S$P;-$H*#+5#/hDT$3#(*0"$(.+$

4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$?&**$9*(:$($F#:$-2*#$&.$+#*&<#-&.5$2.$0"#'#$(8)&0&2.'D$

%&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&**$9-2<&+#$($7-;7&(*$0#'0$21$0"#$#11#70&<#.#''$21$0"#$.#?$

"#(*0"$':'0#8$(.+$&89-2<&.5$0"#$2;0728#'$0"#:$#M9#-&#.7#@$&.7*;+&.5$0"2'#$&.$0"#$C3A$(.+$

H;)*&7$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$ 1-(8#?2-F'@$?&**$ -#I;&-#$72.7#-0#+$'0-(0#5&7$ *#(+#-'"&9D$32?#<#-@$ &1$

($3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$7(.$ &89-2<#$ &.0#5-(0&2.$12-$ *27(*$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$

9#29*#@$?"2$1-#I;#.0*:$0#'0$0"#$&.0#-1(7#$)#0?##.$8;*0&9*#$'#-<&7#'$(.+$(5#.7&#'@$&0$7(.$+#*&<#-$

12-$(**$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

Q2-$0"#$[AC\$(.+$[34A$9-27#''$02$8(F#$($92'&0&<#$&89(70$2.$0"#$2;0728#'$1(7#+$):$+&'()*#+$

7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'@$&0$&'$#''#.0&(*$0"(0$0"#$#<&+#.7#$72**#70#+$0"-2;5"$0"#$

[AC\$9-27#''$-#`#70'$0"#$2;0728#'$0"(0$(-#$82'0$8#(.&.51;*$02$0"#8D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$

62(-+'$'"2;*+$;'#$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''$02$+#<#*29$($'"(-#+$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$

7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'@$(.+$0"#$7(;'#'$21$0"#$922-$2;0728#'$(.+$&.#I;(*&0&#'$

h$ %#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTW>@$6#00#-$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$12-$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#S$P;-$
H*#+5#

Page 62



0"#:$#M9#-&#.7#D$!"#:$'"2;*+$'#0$7*#(-$'0-(0#5&7$2;0728#'$12-$9(-0.#-'$02$8##0$(.+$#.';-#$0"(0$

8#7"(.&'8'$(-#$&.$9*(7#$02$8#(';-#$(.+$82.&02-$9-25-#''$02?(-+'$(7"&#<&.5$0"#8D

!"#$[34A$'"2;*+$(++-#''$"2?$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$

'"2;*+$)#$8#0$(.+$8(F#$-#7288#.+(0&2.'$2.$72'0L#11#70&<#$(99-2(7"#'$02$-#+;7&.5$0"#$"#(*0"$

&.#I;(*&0&#'$0"#:$#M9#-&#.7#D$32?#<#-@$&1$0"&'$5-2;9$&'$.20$&+#.0&K#+$('$($9-&2-&0:$&.$0"#$[34A@$

0"#$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$'"2;*+$+#82.'0-(0#$"2?$&0$&'$9-2<&+&.5$'0-(0#5&7$+&-#70&2.$12-$

9(-0.#-'$02$8##0$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ H;)*&7$&.12-8(0&2.$2.$0"#$'0(0;'$21$2;0728#'$12-$*27(*$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$
9#29*#$)('#+$2.$&.+&7(02-'$';7"$('$0"#$C3A$P;0728#'$Q-(8#?2-F@$0"#$H;)*&7$
3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q-(8#?2-F@$#07D

G$ H;)*&7$&.12-8(0&2.$2.$0"#$'0-(0#5&7$+&-#70&2.$0"#$346$"('$'#0$02$';992-0$F#:$
9(-0.#-'$02$&89-2<#$2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D$!"&'$8(:$
)#$#.7289(''#+$):$0"#$[34A@$);0$?2;*+$.##+$02$)#$';1K7&#.0*:$+#*&.#(0#+$02$
+#82.'0-(0#$'9#7&K7$2)c#70&<#'$(.+$(70&2.$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$,"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$&.$
7"(.5&.5$0&8#'

!"#$9;-92'#$21$0"&'$-#92-0$&'$02$';992-0$&89*#8#.0(0&2.$21$0"#$"#(*0"$-#12-8'$02$&89-2<#$
7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5D

X#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>

!"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$?('$#'0()*&'"#+$):$0"#$
A#7-#0(-:$21$A0(0#$12-$3#(*0"$(.+$0('F#+$?&0"$-#'92.+&.5$02$0"#$7"(**#.5#'$'#0$2;0$&.$A&-$
E(.$i#..#+:/'$-#92-0$9;)*&'"#+$&.$UVTV$ON#00&.5$&0$-&5"0$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/D$

X#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$L$-#92-0$21$0"#$
*2.5L0#-8$72.+&0&2.'@$+&'()&*&0:$(.+$9(**&(0&<#$7(-#$';)L5-2;9$=UVTU>

X#92-0$+&'7;''&.5$0"#$7"(**#.5#'$(-2;.+$&89-2<&.5$2;0728#'$12-$0"&'$5-2;9$21$7"&*+-#.D$

X#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$L$&.#I;(*&0&#'$&.$
"#(*0"$2;0728#'$(.+$"2?$0"#:$8&5"0$)#$(++-#''#+$=UVTU>

X#92-0$7288&''&2.#+$):$0"#$72L7"(&-'$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$
P;0728#'$Q2-;8$1-28$Y(55&#$\0F&.'2.@$,"&*+-#./'$,288&''&2.#-$12-$B.5*(.+D

,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$3#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$
)2(-+'$(.+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$1(8&*&#'

H2'0#-$9-2+;7#+$&.$[;.#$UVTU$):$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$*#(-.&.5$'#0$12-$7"&*+-#.$
(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

Page 63



,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$,288&''&2.&.5$&.$0"#$
.#?$C3A$12-$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

H2'0#-$'#00&.5$2;0$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8/'$<&'&2.$12-$
';77#''1;*$7288&''&2.&.5$12-$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$&.$0"#$.#?$C3AD

%#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTW>@$E89-2<&.5$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$
P;0728#'S$($':'0#8$?&+#$-#'92.'#

!"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$-#92-0$8(+#$-#7288#.+(0&2.'@$
(&8#+$(0$%3@$%1B$(.+$($?&+#$-(.5#$21$"#(*0"$':'0#8$2-5(.&'(0&2.'@$02$&89-2<#$"#(*0"$
2;0728#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D$!"&'$+27;8#.0$72.0(&.'$0"#$':'0#8L?&+#$
-#'92.'#$'#00&.5$2;0$0"#$(70&2.$(*-#(+:$;.+#-0(F#.@$&.$9-25-#''$(.+$9*(..#+$&.$-#'92.'#$
02$0"#$-#7288#.+(0&2.'D

%#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTW>@$6#00#-$"#(*0"$2;0728#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#S$
P;-$H*#+5#

N2<#-.8#.0$-#'92.'#$02$0"#$$-#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$
Q2-;8@$'#00&.5$2;0$'"(-#+$(8)&0&2.'$(7-2''$0"#$C3A$02$&89-2<#$2;0728#'$(.+$'#-<&7#'$12-$
7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D$

,2.0(70$\$1(8&*:$(.+$A0-(0#5&7$C#0?2-F$12-$,"&*+$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$&.$0"#$B('0$21$
B.5*(.+$=UVTU>@$H-&.7&9*#'$12-$7288&''&2.&.5$(.+$+#*&<#-&.5$)#00#-$"#(*0"$2;0728#'$
(.+$#M9#-&#.7#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$'2$0"(0$0"#:$(-#$7289(-()*#$?&0"$0"#$
)#'0$&.$0"#$?2-*+

H2'0#-$'"2?&.5$f$9-&.7&9*#'$12-$7288&''&2.&.5$(.+$+#*&<#-&.5$)#00#-$"#(*0"$2;0728#'$(.+$
#M9#-&#.7#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$+#<#*29#+$):$0"#$A0-(0#5&7$C#0?2-F$12-$,"&*+$
3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$&.$0"#$B('0$21$B.5*(.+D

%#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTV>@$!"#$C3A$P;0728#'$Q-(8#?2-F$UVTTjTU

!"#$2;0728#'$(.+$&.+&7(02-'$?"&7"$8(F#$;9$0"#$K-'0$C3A$P;0728#'$Q-(8#?2-F@$12**2?&.5$
0"#$72.';*0(0&2.$!-(.'9(-#.7:$&.$2;0728#'$a$($1-(8#?2-F$12-$0"#$C3AD$

Page 64



Commitment 5: We promote early intervention and support 

smooth transitions between children and adult services for 

disabled children and young people 

!"#$ -#92-0$ 21$ 0"#$ ,"&*+-#.$ (.+$ R2;.5$ H#29*#/'$ 3#(*0"$ P;0728#'$ Q2-;8$ #89"('&'#+$ 0"#$

&892-0(.7#$21$#(-*:$&.0#-<#.0&2.$(.+$0-(.'&0&2.'$?&0"&.$($*&1#L72;-'#$(99-2(7"$02$-#+;7&.5$"#(*0"$

&.#I;(*&0&#'eD $!"&'$&'$9(-0&7;*(-*:$'&5.&K7(.0$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$

1(8&*&#'@$?"2$210#.$'0-;55*#$02$2)0(&.$($+&(5.2'&'$(.+$(77#''$(99-29-&(0#$';992-0$(0$(.$#(-*:$

(5#$(.+$?"#.$0-(.'&0&2.&.5$02$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'@$?"&7"$(11#70'$ 0"#&-$2;0728#'$0"-2;5"2;0$0"#&-$

*&<#'D

E0$'"2;*+$)#$#89"('&'#+$0"(0$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$8(:$0-(.'&0&2.$02$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'$

;9$02$0"#$(5#$21$UdD$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$'"2;*+$72.'&+#-$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$

(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$1-28$VLUd$('$?#**$('$#.';-&.5$'8220"$0-(.'&0&2.'$02$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'D

e$ X#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$9DWe

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$(70&<&0&#'$21$0"#$346$"#*9$*27(*$9(-0.#-'$02$;.+#-'0(.+$0"#$
<(*;#$21$#(-*:$&.0#-<#.0&2.

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$(70&<&0&#'$21$0"#$346$#.';-#$&.0#5-(0&2.$)#0?##.$7"&*+-#.$
(.+$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'@$(.+$9-&2-&0&'#$#.';-&.5$($92'&0&<#$#M9#-&#.7#$21$0-(.'&0&2.$12-$
+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

N-("(8$\**#.$YH$=UVTT>@$B(-*:$E.0#-<#.0&2.S$!"#$C#M0$A0#9'

\.$&.+#9#.+#.0$-#92-0$02$N2<#-.8#.0@$?"&7"$(-5;#'$0"(0$8(.:$21$0"#$72'0*:$(.+$
+(8(5&.5$'27&(*$9-2)*#8'$12-$&.+&<&+;(*'$7(.$)#$#*&8&.(0#+$2-$-#+;7#+$):$5&<&.5$7"&*+-#.$
(.+$9(-#.0'$0"#$-&5"0$0:9#$21$#<&+#.7#$)('#+$9-25-(88#'$)#0?##.$VLTe$(.+$#'9#7&(**:$&.$$
0"#&-$#(-*&#'0$:#(-'D

N-("(8$\**#.$YH$=UVTT>@$B(-*:$E.0#-<#.0&2.S$A8(-0$E.<#'08#.0@$Y(''&<#$A(<&.5'$

N-("(8$\**#.$YH/'$'#72.+$&.+#9#.+#.0$-#92-0$02$0"#$N2<#-.8#.0$'#0'$2;0$"2?$#(-*:$
&.0#-<#.0&2.$9-25-(88#'$7(.$)#$9(&+$12-$?&0"&.$#M&'0&.5$-#'2;-7#'$(.+$):$(00-(70&.5$.#?$
.2.L52<#-.8#.0$82.#:D$

,"&*+$(.+$Y(0#-.&0:$3#(*0"$P)'#-<(02-:@$i.2?*#+5#$3;)S$!-(.'&0&2.'

!"#$0-(.'&0&2.'$02$(+;*0"22+$";)$)-&.5'$025#0"#-$($-(.5#$21$-#'2;-7#'$(.+$#<&+#.7#$
-#*(0&.5$02$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$0-(.'&0&2.$9-27#''$&.02$0"#$(+;*0$?2-*+D$E0$&'$72.'0(.0*:$;9+(0#+$
?&0"$.#?$-#'2;-7#'D

Page 65



B(-*:$A;992-0

\$?(:$21$?2-F&.5@$;.+#-9&..#+$):$TV$9-&.7&9*#'$0"(0$(&8$02$&89-2<#$0"#$+#*&<#-:$
21'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'D$E0$#.()*#'$'#-<&7#'$02$
722-+&.(0#$0"#&-$(70&<&0:$)#00#-$(.+$9-2<&+#$1(8&*&#'$?&0"$($'&.5*#$92&.0$21$72.0(70$(.+$
72.0&.;&0:$0"-2;5"$F#:$?2-F&.5D

B(-*:$A;992-0$=UVTU>@$i#:$?2-F&.5S$&89-2<&.5$2;0728#'$12-$(**$L$B<&+#.7#@$9-2<&'&2.@$
':'0#8'$(.+$'0-;70;-#'

\$';88(-:$21$0"#$F#:$#<&+#.7#$(.+$72.'&'0#.0$#*#8#.0'$21$($F#:$?2-F&.5$(99-2(7"D$E0$
9-#'#.0'$(.$(.(*:'&'$21$0"#$&89*&7(0&2.'$21$F#:$?2-F&.5$0"(0$7;0'$(7-2''$"#(*0"@$'27&(*$7(-#$
(.+$#+;7(0&2.D

P1'0#+$=UVTW>@$N22+$9-(70&7#$-#'2;-7#$L$B(-*:$&.0#-<#.0&2.$0"-2;5"$($8;*0&L(5#.7:$
(99-2(7"S$A"#1K#*+$,&0:$,2;.7&*

A"#1K#*+$,&0:$,2;.7&*$"('$+#<#*29#+$($7-#(0&<#$(.+$&..2<(0&<#$(99-2(7"$(7-2''$0"#$
7"&*+-#./'$?2-F12-7#$):$&.0-2+;7&.5$($8;*0&L(5#.7:$9#-'9#70&<#$&.$9-2<&+&.5$9-#<#.0(0&<#$
'#-<&7#'$02$7"&*+-#.$(.+$1(8&*&#'D

,bBV@$E89-2<&.5$0"#$?#**)#&.5$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$0"-2;5"$#(-*:$:#(-'$&.0#-<#.0&2.'$
=(5#$Vae>

!"&'$'#70&2.$72.0(&.'$0"#$12**2?&.5$-#'2;-7#'$&.$';992-0$21$&89-2<&.5$0"#$?#**)#&.5$21$
+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$0"-2;5"$#(-*:$:#(-'$&.0#-<#.0&2.'$=(5#$Vae>$9-&2-&0:S$*&.F'$02$2.*&.#$
022*']$F#:$2.*&.#$9;)*&7(0&2.'$1-28$,bBP$9(-0.#-'$(.+$20"#-$2-5(.&'(0&2.'D

E.'0&0;0#$21$H;)*&7$,(-#$=UVTU>@$B(-*:$E.0#-<#.0&2.$(.+$H-#<#.0&2.$?&0"$,"&*+-#.$(.+$
Q(8&*&#'S$N#00&.5$0"#$Y2'0$1-28$!#(8$(-2;.+$0"#$Q(8&*:$A:'0#8'

6-&#K.5$9(9#-$(-5;&.5$0"(0$#11#70&<#$*27(*$':'0#8'$02$&+#.0&1:$1(8&*&#'$?"2$?2;*+$
)#.#K0$1-28$(++&0&2.(*$';992-0$(.+$02$722-+&.(0#$';992-0$1-28$($-(.5#$21$(5#.7&#'$&'$('$
&892-0(.0$('$+#*&<#-&.5$#11#70&<#$'#-<&7#'D

!-(.'&0&2.$E.12-8(0&2.$C#0?2-F$=!EC>

\.$(**&(.7#$21$2-5(.&'(0&2.'$(.+$&.+&<&+;(*'$?"2$728#$025#0"#-$02$&89-2<#$0"#$#M9#-&#.7#$
21$+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$0-(.'&0&2.$02$(+;*0"22+D$!EC$&'$($'2;-7#$21$&.12-8(0&2.$(.+$522+$
9-(70&7#$'0(.+(-+'$12-$+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$1(8&*&#'$(.+$9-21#''&2.(*'D

!EC$X#'2;-7#$_&)-(-:

R2;$7(.$;'#$0"#$'#(-7"$12-8$02$K.+$($-(.5#$21$-#'2;-7#'$0"(0$7(.$"#*9$:2;$02$&89-2<#$
:2;-$9-2<&'&2.$12-$+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0-(.'&0&2.$02$(+;*0"22+D

H-#9(-&.5$12-$\+;*0"22+$=H1\>

\$U$:#(-$9-25-(88#$1;.+#+$):$0"#$%#9(-08#.0$12-$B+;7(0&2.$('$9(-0$21$0"#$+#*&<#-:$
';992-0$12-$OA;992-0$(.+$('9&-(0&2.S$\$.#?$(99-2(7"$02$'9#7&(*$#+;7(0&2.(*$.##+'$(.+$
+&'()&*&0:/$5-##.$9(9#-D$E0$9-2<&+#'$F.2?*#+5#$(.+$';992-0$02$(**$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$(.+$0"#&-$
9(-0.#-'@$&.7*;+&.5$1(8&*&#'$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$'2$0"#:$7(.$#.';-#$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$
ABC$(.+$+&'()&*&0&#'$(7"&#<#$9(&+$?2-F@$&.+#9#.+#.0$*&<&.5@$522+$"#(*0"$(.+$7288;.&0:$
&.7*;'&2.$('$0"#:$82<#$&.02$(+;*0"22+D$

Page 66



H-#9(-&.5$12-$\+;*0"22+$=UVTU>@$H1\$-#'2;-7#$*&'0$

,-#(0#+$12-$0"#$H1\$O32?$(-#$:2;$+2&.5k/$#<#.0'$?"&7"$022F$9*(7#$&.$[;.#$(.+$[;*:@$
UVTUD$X#'2;-7#'$(-#$*&'0#+$;.+#-S$H(&+$#89*2:8#.0]$E.+#9#.+#.0$*&<&.5]$N22+$"#(*0"]$
,288;.&0:$&.7*;'&2.D

A*29#-@$HD@$6##7"(8@$[D@$,*(-F#@$AD@$Q-(.F*&.@$\D@$Y2-(.@$CD$(.+$,;'?2-0"@$_D$=UVTT>$
!-(.'&0&2.$02$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"2'#$?&0"$7289*#M$"#(*0"$
.##+'@$X#'#(-7"$42-F'@$UVTTLVU@$A27&(*$H2*&7:$X#'#(-7"$J.&0@$J.&<#-'&0:$21$R2-F@$R2-F

!"&'$-#'#(-7"$(&8#+$02$9-2<&+#$#<&+#.7#$21$?"(0$?2-F'$?#**$&.$+#<#*29&.5$(.+$
&89*#8#.0&.5$8;*0&L(5#.7:$722-+&.(0#+$0-(.'&0&2.$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$0"2'#$
?&0"$7289*#M$"#(*0"$.##+'$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'D$E0$(*'2$(''#''#+$0"#$72'0'$21$0"#$'#-<&7#'D

Page 67



04<<&)<*()$S>$!*$8419$8&)"$9*#$D,1)(*1%$)4$
%)1*(')"*($&()*'1,)&4($-*)8**($"*,.)"T$%4=&,.$=,1*$
,(/$*/:=,)&4($%*1A&=*%T$,(/$8&)"$%*1A&=*%$D14A&/*/$
-#$8&/*1$D,1)(*1%

%&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$(77#''$'#-<&7#'$(7-2''$8;*0&9*#$(5#.7&#'@$(.+$0"#-#12-#$(-#$

+&'9-292-0&2.(0#*:$(11#70#+$):$922-$&.0#5-(0&2.$)#0?##.$"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$'#-<&7#'$(.+$($

*(7F$21$722-+&.(0#+$7288&''&2.&.5D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$8;'0$?2-F$?&0"$F#:$9(-0.#-'$

02$8##0$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$&.7*;+&.5S$#+;7(0&2.$9-2<&+#-'$(.+$

'7"22*']$'(1#5;(-+&.5$)2(-+'@$*27(*$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$(--(.5#8#.0']$*#(-.&.5$+&'()&*&0:$9(-0.#-'"&9$

)2(-+']$(.+$20"#-'D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$'"2;*+$8(F#$-#7288#.+(0&2.'$02$#.';-#$0"(0$

+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$#M9#-&#.7#$'#(8*#''$&.0#5-(0&2.$)#0?##.$0"#$'#-<&7#'$0"#:$

(77#''D$

E.$9(-0&7;*(-@$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$'"2;*+$72.'&+#-$"2?$0"#:$#.5(5#$?&0"$#+;7(0&2.$

'#-<&7#'@$ &.7*;+&.5$ '7"22*'$ (.+$ 72**#5#'@$ )#7(;'#$ 21$ 0"#$ '&5.&K7(.7#$ 21$ c2&.#+$ ;9L?2-F&.5$

)#0?##.$"#(*0"@$#+;7(0&2.$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$02$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$2;0728#'D$

!2$9-2820#$&.0#5-(0#+$7288&''&2.&.5$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$?&**$(*'2$.##+$02$72.'&+#-$

"2?$ '9#7&(*&'#+$ "#(*0"$ '#-<&7#'$ 7288&''&2.#+$ ):$ C3A$ B.5*(.+$ (-#$ c2&.#+$ ;9$ ?&0"$ *27(**:$

7288&''&2.#+$'#-<&7#'$(.+$#.';-#$0"#:$(-#$0(F#.$&.02$(772;.0$):$0"#&-$[AC\$(.+$[34AD

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$#.72;-(5#$&.0#5-(0#+$?2-F&.5S$

G$ )#0?##.$7288&''&2.#-'$21$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'$(.+$7288&''&2.#-'$21$'27&(*$7(-#$

'#-<&7#'$

G$ &.$9(-0&7;*(-$02$9-2<&+#$(+<&7#@$(''&'0(.7#$2-$20"#-$';992-0$12-$0"#$9;-92'#$21$

#.72;-(5&.5$;'#$21$`#M&)&*&0&#'$;.+#-$C3A$\70$UVVf$

H2?#-$02$&.7*;+#$&.$0"#$[34A$($'0(0#8#.0$21$<&#?'$2.$"2?$0"#$7288&''&2.&.5$21$
"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$'#-<&7#'@$(.+$?&+#-$"#(*0"L-#*(0#+$'#-<&7#'@$72;*+$)#$82-#$
7*2'#*:$&.0#5-(0#+$a$&D#D$0"#$()&*&0:$12-$0"#$[34A$02$*22F$82-#$)-2(+*:$0"(.$"#(*0"$(.+$
'27&(*$7(-#$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$7*2'#-$&.0#5-(0&2.$21$7288&''&2.&.5$

Page 68



J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

!25#0"#-$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$=UVVg>@$Q(7&*&0(0&.5$&.0#5-(0#+$9-(70&7#$)#0?##.$
7"&*+-#./'$'#-<&7#'$(.+$"#(*0"

!"&'$-#92-0$72.0(&.'$#M(89*#'$21$&..2<(0&<#$?2-F&.5$9-(70&7#$?"#-#$'#-<&7#'$(-#$&.0#5-(0#+$
?&0"$"#(*0"D

,2;.7&*$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$=UVVf>@$H(0"?(:'$02$';77#''S$N22+$9-(70&7#$5;&+#$12-$
7"&*+-#./'$'#-<&7#'$&.$0"#$+#<#*298#.0$21$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$L$#<&+#.7#$1-28$
0"#$9(0"K.+#-$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0'

!"&'$9-2c#70$-(.$1-28$\9-&*$UVVb$02$Y(-7"$UVVf$(.+$'#0$2;0$02$?2-F$(*2.5'&+#$0"#$
9(0"K.+#-$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0'$&.$+#<#*29&.5$.#?$?(:'$21$?2-F&.5$(.+$02$7(90;-#$0"#$*#(-.&.5$
1-28$0"#&-$?2-FD$!"#$?2-F$72<#-#+S$'0-(05#&7$9*(..&.5]$7288&''&2.&.5$'#-<&7#'@$922*&.5$
);+5#0']$c2&.0$?2-F&.5$(.+$72L*27(0&2.]$(''#''8#.0$9-27#''$(.+$&.12-8(0&2.$'"(-&.5D

B('0$Y&+*(.+'@$B<#-:)2+:/'$*#(-.&.5$=UVTU>@$\'';-#+$'(1#5;(-+&.5S$NH$(.+$3#(*0"$
_#(+#-$#+&0&2.

X#'2;-7#$02$"#*9$7288&''&2.#-'$(.+$"#(*0"$9-2<&+#-'$-#('';-#$0"#8'#*<#'$0"#:$(-#$
+2&.5$#<#-:0"&.5$92''&)*#$02$#.';-#$0"(0$7"&*+-#.$?&0"&.$0"#$'#-<&7#'$12-$?"&7"$0"#:$(-#$
-#'92.'&)*#$(-#$('$'(1#$('$92''&)*#D

P1'0#+$=UVTU>@$E89-2<&.5$2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$):$&.0#5-(0&.5$#(-*:$';992-0$
(.+$9-#<#.0&2.$'#-<&7#'S$_;02.$62-2;5"$,2;.7&*

_;02./'$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$)-&.5$025#0"#-$9-(70&7#$(7-2''$
"#(*0"@$'27&(*$7(-#$(.+$#+;7(0&2.$'#-<&7#'@$(*2.5'&+#$&..2<(0&<#$'"2-0$)-#(F$(.+$#(-*:$
';992-0$9-2<&'&2.D$!"#$+#<#*298#.0$21$(.$#M0#.'&<#$-(.5#$21$&.0#5-(0#+$#(-*:$';992-0$(.+$
9-#<#.0&2.$'#-<&7#'$&'$&89-2<&.5$2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$9-#<#.0&.5$'&0;(0&2.'$
+#0#-&2-(0&.5$'2$0"(0$7"&*+$9-20#70&2.$2-$*22F#+$(10#-$'#-<&7#'$)#728#$.#7#''(-:D

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S$

G$ %#0(&*'$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$&'$&.12-8#+$):$0"2'#$?&0"$#M9#-0&'#$&.$
#+;7(0&2.@$(.+$7"&*+-#./'$"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#

G$ %#0(&*'$21$0"#$?(:$0"#$346$#.5(5#'$?&0"$?&+#-$9(-0.#-'$';7"$('$"2;'&.5@$
0-(.'92-0@$'(1#5;(-+&.5$(.+$0"#$:2;0"$c;'0&7#$':'0#8

G$ %#0(&*'$21$'0#9'$0(F#.$02$#.72;-(5#$&.0#5-(0#+$?2-F&.5$)#0?##.$"#(*0"@$'27&(*$7(-#@$
#+;7(0&2.$(.+$?&+#-$9(-0.#-'$&.$2-+#-$02$&89-2<#$0"#$'#-<&7#'$(77#''#+$):$+&'()*#+$
7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

Page 69



04<<&)<*()$Q>$!*$D14A&/*$=4"*%&A*$'4A*1(,(=*$
,(/$.*,/*1%"&D$,=14%%$)"*$/&%,-.*/$="&./1*($,(/$
#4:('$D*4D.*2%$,'*(/,$-#$.&(9&('$*33*=)&A*.#$8&)"$
9*#$D,1)(*1%

!"#$-2*#$21$0"#$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$8;'0$)#$;.+#-'022+$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$.#?$(.+$#M&'0&.5$

9(-0.#-'"&9'@$ &.7*;+&.5S$ *27(*$ 7"&*+-#./'$ 0-;'0$ (--(.5#8#.0']$ *27(*$ '(1#5;(-+&.5$ 7"&*+-#./'$

)2(-+']$ *#(-.&.5$+&'()&*&0:$ 9(-0.#-'"&9$ )2(-+']$ (.+$20"#-'D$\$ 7*#(-$ *27(*$ 1-(8#?2-F$2.$"2?$

0"#'#$9(-0.#-'"&9'$&.0#-(70$.##+'$02$)#$#'0()*&'"#+$02$(<2&+$0"#$+;9*&7(0&2.$21$#112-0$2-$#<#.

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

H2?#-$02$#.72;-(5#$7*2'#$?2-F&.5$=&.$-#*(0&2.$02$?&+#-$+#0#-8&.(.0'$21$"#(*0">S$

G$ )#0?##.$&0'#*1$(.+$7288&''&2.#-'$21$"#(*0"L-#*(0#+$'#-<&7#'$

G$ )#0?##.$7288&''&2.#-'$21$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'$2-$'27&(*$7(-#$'#-<&7#'$(.+$
7288&''&2.#-'$21$"#(*0"L-#*(0#+$'#-<&7#'$

H2?#-$02$(992&.0$(++&0&2.(*$8#8)#-'$02$0"#$)2(-+$('$+##8#+$(99-29-&(0#$

H2?#-$12-$346$02$-#I;#'0$&.12-8(0&2.$12-$0"#$9;-92'#'$21$#.()*&.5$2-$(''&'0&.5$&0'$
9#-12-8(.7#$21$1;.70&2.'$1-28S$

G$ 0"#$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$

G$ 7#-0(&.$8#8)#-'$2-$0"2'#$0"#:$-#9-#'#.0$?&0"$($+;0:$02$9-2<&+#$

2-),/%+".31(.455;

X#I;&-#8#.0$12-$#(7"$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$02$"(<#$($7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$)2(-+$?"&7"$8;'0$
&.7*;+#$-#9-#'#.0(0&<#'$21$0"#$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$(.+$#(7"$21$0"#$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$O-#*#<(.0$
9(-0.#-'/

_27(*$'(1#5;(-+&.5$7"&*+-#./'$)2(-+'$9;0$2.$'0(0;02-:$1220&.5

2-),/%+".'"/.<'&),)+:.=),,.4564>6?.@1A%%+"(,B.)".C'%,)'&+"(D

=,*(;'#$Ud>$_27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$8;'0$9-2820#$0"#$&.0#5-(0&2.$21$'9#7&(*$#+;7(0&2.@$"#(*0"$
(.+$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.D

=,*(;'#$Uf>$_27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$(.+$0"#&-$9(-0.#-$,,N'$8;'0$8(F#$(--(.5#8#.0'$12-$0"#$
c2&.0$7288&''&2.&.5$21$#+;7(0&2.@$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$
9#29*#$?&0"$ABCD

=,*(;'#$Uh>$_27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$8;'0$F##9$;.+#-$-#<&#?$'9#7&(*$#+;7(0&2.$9-2<&'&2.$(.+$
'27&(*$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$ABC$(.+$72.'&+#-$0"#$#M0#.0$
0"(0$&0$&'$';1K7&#.0$02$8##0$0"#&-$.##+'D

=,*(;'#$WV>$_27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$8;'0$9;)*&'"$($_27(*$P11#-$72.0(&.&.5$&.12-8(0&2.$()2;0$
'#-<&7#'$(<(&*()*#$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$ABC@$&.7*;+&.5$#+;7(0&2.@$"#(*0"$
(.+$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.D

Page 70



7289#0&.5$12-$-#'2;-7#'D

!"#$ [AC\'$(.+$ [34A$.##+$ 02$)#$(*&5.#+$?&0"$20"#-$(--(.5#8#.0'@$ ';7"$('S$ -#<&#?&.5$(.+$

7288&''&2.&.5$21$ABC$'#-<&7#'$<&($0"#$3&5"$C##+'$6*27Fg]T$'(1#5;(-+&.5$(--(.5#8#.0']$7"&*+$

92<#-0:$'0-(0#5&#']$(.+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$9*(.'$&1$0"#:$(-#$'0&**$;'#+D$

\++&0&2.(**:@$ 0"#$ ,"&*+-#.$ (.+$ Q(8&*&#'$ 6&**$ 7;--#.0*:$ &.$ H(-*&(8#.0$ 72.0(&.'$ 7*(;'#'$ 12-$

9-2820&.5$&.0#5-(0&2.$)#0?##.$'9#7&(*$#+;7(0&2.(*$9-2<&'&2.@$"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.$

=Ud>@$8(F&.5$ c2&.0L7288&''&2.&.5$(--(.5#8#.0'$=Uf>@$F##9&.5$#+;7(0&2.$(.+$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.$

;.+#-$-#<&#?$=Uh>@$(.+$9-2+;7&.5$($*27(*$211#-$=WV>@$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$ABCD$

!"#'#$.#?$+;0&#'$2.$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$(**$"(<#$($7*#(-$-#*#<(.7#$02$0"#$1;.70&2.'$21$0"#$3#(*0"$

(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$02$#.72;-(5#$&.0#5-(0#+$?2-F&.5@$9-2820#$7*2'#$?2-F&.5$(.+$;.+#-0(F#$

($[AC\$(.+$[34AD$!"&'$&'$9(-0&7;*(-*:$&892-0(.0$('$,,N'$?&**$)#$;.+#-$($.#?$+;0:$02$'#7;-#$

'9#7&K7$'#-<&7#'$&.$#+;7(0&2.@$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$9*(.'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$ABCTVD $

E.+&7(0&<#$-#5;*(0&2.'$(*'2$8(F#$7*#(-$0"(0$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$8;'0$72.';*0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$

62(-+'$?"#.$9-#9(-&.5$(.+$-#<&#?&.5$&0'$_27(*$P11#-TTD $

g$ A##$%#9(-08#.0$12-$B+;7(0&2.$=UVTU>@$A7"22*$1;.+&.5$-#12-8$UVTWLTb@$99D$TfLUV

TV$ A##$%#9(-08#.0$12-$B+;7(0&2.$?#)'&0#$=UVTW>@$,"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$'9#7&(*$#+;7(L

0&2.(*$.##+'$02$)#.#K0$1-28$.#?$*#5(*$"#(*0"$+;0:

TT$ !"#$A9#7&(*$B+;7(0&2.(*$C##+'$=_27(*$P11#->$=B.5*(.+>$X#5;*(0&2.'$UVTbS$"009Sjj8#+&(D#+;7(L

0&2.D52<D;Fj(''#0'jK*#'j9+1j7j7*(;'#lUVWVlUV+-(10lUV-#5;*(0&2.'lUV'#.lUV*27(*lUV211#-D9+1

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ E.12-8(0&2.$2.$*&.F'$02$20"#-$*27(*$&.0#5-(0&2.$12-;8'$?"&7"$'#0$'0-(0#5&7$+&-#70&2.$
12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#./'$'#-<&7#'@$#D5D$0"#$*27(*$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$(--(.5#8#.0'@$0"#$
*27(*$'(1#5;(-+&.5$)2(-+@$0"#$*#(-.&.5$+&'()&*&0:$9(-0.#-'"&9$)2(-+@$0"#$'7"22*$
12-;8@$#07D

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$"2?$0"#$[AC\$(.+$[34A$&'$(*&5.#+$?&0"$20"#-$(--(.5#8#.0'@$';7"$
('S$-#<&#?&.5$(.+$7288&''&2.&.5$21$ABC$'#-<&7#'$<&($0"#$3&5"$C##+'$6*27F]$
'(1#5;(-+&.5$(--(.5#8#.0']$7"&*+$92<#-0:$'0-(0#5&#'@$#07D$

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$,"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$
)2(-+'S$9;00&.5$92*&7&#'$&.02$9-(70&7#

%#<#*29#+$):$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$*#(-.&.5$'#0$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$
9#29*#@$9(-0$21$0"#$C(0&2.(*$_#(-.&.5$C#0?2-F$12-$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+'@$02$5&<#$
346$8#8)#-'$'28#$&+#('$21$"2?$20"#-$)2(-+'$(-#$2-5(.&'&.5$0"#8'#*<#'$02$+#*&<#-$
722-+&.(0#+$'#-<&7#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

Page 71



,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$3#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$
)2(-+'$(.+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$1(8&*&#'

H2'0#-$9-2+;7#+$&.$[;.#$UVTU$):$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$*#(-.&.5$'#0$12-$7"&*+-#.$
(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D$

B('02.@$,D]$3#0"#-&.502.@$YD@$A8&0"@$XD@$4(+#@$HD@$\'02.@$3D$(.+$N##@$ND$=UVTU>D$_27(*$
\;0"2-&0&#'/$\99-2(7"#'$02$,"&*+-#./'$!-;'0$\--(.5#8#.0'$=_N\$X#'#(-7"$X#92-0>

!"#$_27(*$N2<#-.8#.0$\''27&(0&2.$7288&''&2.#+$0"#$C(0&2.(*$Q2;.+(0&2.$12-$B+;7(0&2.(*$
X#'#(-7"$=CQBX>$02$&.<#'0&5(0#$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'/$(99-2(7"#'$02$0"#&-$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$
(--(.5#8#.0'$(.+$"2?$0"#:$(-#$1;*K**&.5$0"#&-$+;0:$02$9-2820#$7229#-(0&2.$?&0"$9(-0.#-'$
02$&89-2<#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5D

Page 72



U*(*1,.$1*%4:1=*%

!"#$Y(-820$X#<&#?$=Q#)-;(-:$UVTV>@$Q(&-$A27&#0:@$3#(*0":$_&<#'S$\$A0-(0#5&7$X#<&#?$21$
3#(*0"$E.#I;(*&0&#'$&.$B.5*(.+$H2'0LUVTV$

H-21#''2-$A&-$Y&7"(#*$Y(-820$?('$('F#+$):$0"#$0"#.$A#7-#0(-:$21$A0(0#$12-$3#(*0"$02$
7"(&-$(.$&.+#9#.+#.0$-#<&#?$02$9-292'#$0"#$82'0$#11#70&<#$#<&+#.7#L)('#+$'0-(0#5&#'$12-$
-#+;7&.5$"#(*0"$&.#I;(*&0&#'$&.$B.5*(.+D$

i#..#+:@$H-21$A&-$E(.$=A#90#8)#-$UVTV>$N#00&.5$&0$-&5"0$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#S$
P<#-728&.5$7;*0;-(*$)(--&#-'$&.$0"#$C3A$'2$('$02$8##0$0"#&-$.##+'

\.$&.+#9#.+#.0$-#<&#?$21$'#-<&7#'$9-2<&+#+$):$0"#$C3A$02$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$
72.7#.0-(0&.5$2.$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$0"#$-2*#$21$7;*0;-#$&.$0"#$C3AD$E0$127;'#'$2.$(-#('$?"#-#$
0"#-#$(-#$7;*0;-(*$)(--&#-'$02$7"(.5#$(.+$&89-2<#8#.0$(.+$8(F#'$-#7288#.+(0&2.'D

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$L$X#'2;-7#'$12-$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'

!"#$C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$"('$)##.$?2-F&.5$?&0"$#(7"$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$*#(-.&.5$
'#0$&.$72**()2-(0&2.$?&0"$0"#$C3A$E.'0&0;0#$12-$E..2<(0&2.$(.+$E89-2<#8#.0@$%#9(-08#.0$
21$3#(*0"$(.+$_27(*$N2<#-.8#.0$\''27&(0&2.$02$9-2+;7#$9;)*&7(0&2.'$?"&7"$';88(-&'#$
0"#&-$F#:$92&.0'$21$*#(-.&.5$(.+$?"&7"$?&**$)#$'"(-#+$?&0"$20"#-$'"(+2?$"#(*0"$(.+$
?#**)#&.5$)2(-+'D

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$,"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$-#<&#?$
21$+27;8#.0'

6-&#K.5$';88(-&'&.5$0"#$F#:$92*&7:$+27;8#.0'$2.$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$
?#**)#&.5$0"(0$"(<#$)##.$9;)*&'"#+$2<#-$0"#$*('0$0?2$:#(-'Dm

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$A;992-0$(.+$-#'2;-7#'$12-$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+'

A;88(-:$21$0"#$';992-0$(<(&*()*#$02$'9-#(+$.#0?2-F&.5$(.+$*#(-.&.5$2992-0;.&0&#'$12-$
3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$C(0&2.(*$*#(-.&.5$.#0?2-F$12-$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$
9;)*&7(0&2.'$UVTU

\$*&'0$21$9;)*&7(0&2.'$9-2+;7#+$):$!"#$C(0&2.(*$_#(-.&.5$C#0?2-F$12-$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$
)2(-+'$02$'"(-#$*#(-.&.5$(.+$';992-0$0"#$#'0()*&'"8#.0$21$?#**$1;.70&2.&.5$)2(-+'D

_27(*$N2<#-.8#.0$\''27&(02.$L$X#'2;-7#'$12-$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$127;'&.5$2.$
7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$1(8&*:$&'';#'

!"#$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$*#(-.&.5$'#0$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$*22F#+$(0$
0"#$&'';#'$&892-0(.0$02$0"#$+#<#*298#.0$21$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'D$!"#$*#(-.&.5$
'#0'$(-#$($9(-0$21$0"#$%#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"/'$+#<#*298#.0$(.+$';992-0$9-25-(88#$12-$
3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$?"&7"$&'$';992-0#+$):$0"#$_N\@$C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$(.+$
C3A$E.'0&0;0#D$C&.#$*#(-.&.5$'#0'$127;'#+$2.$($.;8)#-$21$0"#8#'$&.7*;+&.5$52<#-.(.7#@$
-#'2;-7#'$(.+$9;)*&7$#.5(5#8#.0D

N#00&.5$0"#$6#'0$P;0$21$R2;-$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$_#(+#-'"&9$%#<#*298#.0$
P11#-$L$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$E.12-8(0&2.$X#'2;-7#

!"&'$+27;8#.0$)-&.5'$025#0"#-$&.12-8(0&2.$()2;0$9;)*&7(0&2.'$(.+$?#)'&0#'$?"&7"$'"2;*+$
)#$21$<(*;#$02$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'D

Page 73



,"&*+$(.+$Y(0#-.&0:$3#(*0"$P)'#-<(02-:

,"&Y(0$?('$#'0()*&'"#+$&.$UVVe$('$($.(0&2.(*$9;)*&7$"#(*0"$2)'#-<(02-:$02$9-2<&+#$?&+#L
-(.5&.5@$(;0"2-&0(0&<#$+(0(@$#<&+#.7#$(.+$9-(70&7#$-#*(0#+$02$7"&*+-#./'@$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$
(.+$8(0#-.(*$"#(*0"D

C(0&2.(*$^2&7#'

!"#$.(0&2.(*$72(*&0&2.$21$"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$7"(-&0&#'$&.$B.5*(.+D$!"#:$?2-F$025#0"#-$
02$'0-#.50"#.$0"#$<2&7#$21$9(0&#.0'@$'#-<&7#$;'#-'@$7(-#-'@$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$(.+$0"#$<2*;.0(-:$
2-5(.&'(0&2.'$0"(0$?2-F$12-$0"#8D

X#5&2.(*$^2&7#'

A;992-0'$0"#$<2*;.0(-:$'#702-$02$';77#''1;**:$&.`;#.7#$*27(*$'0-(0#5&7$+#7&'&2.$8(F&.5$&.$
"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#D$!"&'$5-2;9$21$9(5#'$*&.F'$02$($<(-&#0:$21$-#'2;-7#'$02$';992-0$:2;$
+#<#*29$'0-(0#5&#'$02$&.`;#.7#$&.$:2;-$*27(*$(-#(D$$

!"#$,"&*+-#./'$!-;'0@$!(+?2-0"$&'$0"#$*#(+&.5$Ji$7"(-&0:$12-$

7"&*+-#.$?&0"$(7I;&-#+$)-(&.$&.c;-:@$8;*0&9*#$+&'()&*&0&#'$(.+$

7289*#M$"#(*0"$.##+'D$!"#$!-;'0/'$'#-<&7#'$&.7*;+#$0"#$Ji/'$

*(-5#'0$-#"()&*&0(0&2.$7#.0-#$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$

(7I;&-#+$)-(&.$&.c;-:@$.;-'&.5$7(-#$12-$0#7".2*25:L+#9#.+#.0$

7"&*+-#.@$(.+$#+;7(0&2.$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$

9-212;.+$(.+$8;*0&9*#$*#(-.&.5$+&1K7;*0&#'$(.+$7289*#M$"#(*0"$

.##+'D

B<#-:$%&'()*#+$,"&*+$Y(00#-'$&'$0"#$.(0&2.(*$7(89(&5.$02$5#0$

-&5"0'$(.+$c;'0&7#$12-$#<#-:$+&'()*#+$7"&*+D$E0$&'$-;.$):$12;-$

*#(+&.5$2-5(.&'(0&2.'$?2-F&.5$?&0"$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$0"#&-$

1(8&*&#'S$,2.0(70$($Q(8&*:@$,2;.7&*$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.@$

Y#.7(9$(.+$0"#$A9#7&(*$B+;7(0&2.(*$,2.'2-0&;8D

E-4:)$L%

Page 74



1 

 

 
  
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 
Clinical Commissioning Group Quality 
Premium Priorities for 2013/14 
 

 

 
 

 

Report of Stewart Findlay, Chief Clinical Officer, Durham Dales, Easington and 
Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to confirm DDES CCG’s portfolio of quality 

premium indicators for 2013/14.  The NHS planning framework “Everyone 
Counts – Planning for Patients 2013/14” provided a timetable for CCGs to 
submit plans to meet the requirement outlined within the body of the 
document.  
 

2. This report summarises DDES CCG’s final plan submitted to the Area Team 
of the National Commissioning Board on the 28th March 2013.  This report is a 
follow up on the report discussed at the Health and Wellbeing board on 6th 
March 2013 entitled “DDES CCG, Planning Framework and Final 
Commissioning Intentions for 2013/14” providing further detail on the national 
quality premium areas and the three local quality premium areas with rationale 
for selection and change. 

 
Quality Premiums – National Measures 
 
3. In December 2012 the NHS Commissioning Board published guidance 

“Quality Premium: 2013/14 guidance for CCGs” which outlined how the 
‘quality premium’ is intended to reward Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) for improvements in the quality of the services that they commission 
and for the associated improvements in health outcomes and reducing 
inequalities. 
 

4. The national quality premiums are categorised and aligned to the NHS 
outcome domains, the percentage that the national quality premiums 
contribute towards the CCG quality premium reward are as follows: 

• Reducing potential years of life lost form amenable mortality (12.5%)  

• Reducing avoidable emergency admissions (25%) 

• Improve patient experience of hospital services (12.5%) 

• Prevent healthcare associated infections (12.5%) 
 
The remaining 37.5% allocation of the quality premium will be equally 
apportioned to the delivery of three local priorities. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 75



2 

 

 
Quality Premiums – Local Priorities 
 
5. At the end of 2012 the National Commissioning Board published a supporting 

document for CCGs:  “Outcomes benchmarking support packs: CCG level” which 
provided CCG level information on population profiles, deprivation and disease 
prevalence, hospital activity profiles as well as a cross section of health outcomes 
indicators related to the NHS outcome domains.  

 
6. The DDES CCG Outcome support pack identified 12 areas where DDES CCG 

had outcomes in the worst quintile in the country, which included: 

• Potential years of life lost (PYLL) from causes considered amenable to 
healthcare 

• Under 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular disease 

• Under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease 

• Under 75 mortality rate from cancer 

• Health related quality of life for people with long term conditions 

• Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory sensitive conditions 
(adults) 

• Unplanned hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and epilepsy in under 19s 

• Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not usually require 
hospital admission 

• Patient reported outcome measures for elective procedures – hip 
replacement 

• Emergency admissions for children with lower respiratory tract infections 

• Incidence of Healthcare associated infection (HCAI): MRSA 

• Incidence of Healthcare associated infection (HCAI): C Difficile 
 

For the full spine chart showing DDES CCG outcomes please see Appendix 2. 
 

7. As articulated in the 6th March 2013 Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board paper 
entitled “DDES CCG, Planning Framework and Final Commissioning Intentions 
for 2013/4” DDES CCG initially selected the following indicators which are all 
outcomes where DDES CCG are in worst quintile: 

• Under 75 mortality rate from cancer  

• Health related quality of life for people with long term conditions 

• Emergency admissions for children with a lower respiratory tract infection  
 

These local quality premium indicators were agreed at the Health and Wellbeing 
Board during the March meeting and were the same as those initially submitted by 
neighbouring CCGs providing opportunities for working at scale. 
 

8. The NHS planning framework “Everyone Counts – Planning for Patients 2013/14” 
provided a timetable for CCGs to enable a dialogue between the CCG and the 
NHS England Area Team between submissions. The NHS England Area Team 
(Durham, Darlington and Tees) provided significant feedback on a numbers of 
areas including the selection of local quality premium indicators. There was 
concern around the stability of the ‘Health related quality of life for people with 
long term conditions’ indicator due to the high level of variance over time. It was 

Page 76



3 

 

noted by the Area Team that only a handful of CCGs across the Country had 
chosen this indicator because of this and that the CCG might want to consider 
changing. After consideration of this fact all CCGs in the Durham, Darlington and 
Tees (DDT) area who first selected this indicator changed it. One neighbouring 
CCGs changed to a compound indicator where the risk of variation was reduced; 
another CCG in the DDT area changed it to the indicator ‘Estimated diagnosis 
rate for people with dementia’. DDES CCG changed the indicator to: ‘Unplanned 
hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and epilepsy in under 19s’ which is an area 
where DDES CCG has amongst the worst performance in the Country.  
 

9. DDES CCG regret that the Health and Wellbeing board were not consulted of this 
change before the submission date, but unfortunately due to the tight timescales 
involved this was not possible. The NHS England Area Team have confirmed that 
they  will be discussing priorities for the next financial year earlier in the year so 
that these can be debated by the Health and Wellbeing Board and subsequently 
agreed by them in good time.  As the NHS England Area Team will also be part 
of that process they will be able to advise of any changes to the process in a 
more timely fashion as they will have more experience of what is required of the 
process. 

 
10. The final submission made to area team on the 28th of March included the 

following  local quality premium priorities: 

• Reducing under 75 mortality rate from cancer  

• Reducing unplanned hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and epilepsy in 
under 19s 

• Reducing emergency admissions for children with a lower respiratory tract 
infection   

 
Implications 
 
11. The new local quality premium indicator supports the Health and Wellbeing Board 

Strategic Aim “Children and young people make healthy choices and have the 
best start in life” by ensuring that children in Durham Dales, Easington and 
Sedgefield receive improved services so that they and their families are able to 
manage the child’s asthma, diabetes and epilepsy more effectively preventing 
hospital admissions, reducing family stress and improving life opportunities for 
the child. Within our clear and credible plan DDES CCG have a commitment in 
improving the health and wellbeing of our children by having a specific strategic 
aim focussed on child health “Make sure our children and young people have a 
better start in life”. The selection of this new quality premium indicator further 
demonstrates our ambition to make real changes in the health system for our 
children and young people.  
 

12. DDES CCG would welcome work to further understand the issues surrounding 
why our children have many more admissions than average for asthma, diabetes 
and epilepsy along with lower respiratory tract infections and are keen to work 
with Public Health colleagues to better understand any underlying issues.  
 

13. Even though the “Health related quality of life for people with long term 
conditions” indicator is no longer a local quality indicator for the purposes of 

Page 77



4 

 

attracting quality premium resources in to the county it will continue to be a high 
priority for DDES as agreed with the Health and Wellbeing Board. We will 
continue to do all that we can to improve this indicator and it will be monitored 
closely by the CCG as part of our internal performance data set. 

 
14. DDES CCG would like to reassure the Health and Wellbeing board that our work 

programme remains comprehensive and this can be seen from our most recent 
Plan on a Page in Appendix 3.  

 
Recommendations 
 
15. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board: 

 

• note the contents of this report   

• support DDES CCG in the selection of their local quality premium 
priorities.  

 

Contacts:   
 
Jonathan Wrann, Commissioning Manager – Service Planning and Reform, 
North of England Commissioning Support (NECS).  Tel (0191 3744198.  E-mail 
jonathan.wrann@nhs.net 
 
Stewart Findlay, Chief Clinical Officer, DDES CCG.  Tel (0191 3713220).  E-mail 
stewartfindlay.ddes@nhs.net 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



5 

 

 

 
 

Finance: Priority indicators are linked to 37.5% of the Quality Premium Reward  
 
Staffing: DDES CCG with support from North of England Commissioning support 
have secured the staff capacity to take forward these priority areas.  Colleagues from 
Public Health will also be involved in better understanding any underlying issues. 
 
Risk: Failure to achieve targets will have a detrimental effect on the health of 
patients in the area and also not achieve Quality Premium Rewards.  
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty: There are no implications to 
Equality and Diversity  
 
Accommodation: There are no implications to accommodation  
  
Crime and Disorder: There are no Crime and Disorder implications 
 
Human Rights: There are no implications to Human Rights 
 
Consultation: Report is for information only 
 
Procurement: Not applicable 
 
Disability Issues: Not applicable 
 
Legal Implications: Not applicable 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 79



6 

 

 
 
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

 

Page 80



7 

 

 

Page 81



8 

 

Appendix 3 

 

P
age 82



 

 1

 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Integration Pioneer Project 
 

 

 
 

Report of Rachael Shimmin, Corporate Director, Children & Adults Services, Durham 
County Council / Nicola Bailey, Chief Operating Officer, North Durham Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with: 

 

• information relating to the recent government request for expressions 
of interest from local areas wishing to become pioneers of health and 
social care integration 

• an overview of the development of an improved Intermediate Care 
‘Short Term Intervention’ Model which could be used to inform this 
expression of interest 

 
Background 
 
2.  In May 2013 the government released a request for local areas to submit an 

expression of interest to become ‘pioneers’ of health and social care 
integration with the aim of ensuring person-centred coordinated care 
becomes the norm across the sector. 

 
3.  This request also aimed to build upon the vision detailed within the ‘Integrated 

Care and Support: Our Shared Commitment’ Report which indicated the key 
objectives underpinning this initiative, which includes: 

• enable and encourage local innovation  

• address current barriers to integration  

• disseminate and promote learning to support better integration with the 
aim of improving patient outcomes and experience 

 
4.  In accepting that each local area is unique and will need to develop an 

integrative approach to suit the needs of the local people, the selection 
criteria is quite broad. The government are looking for initiatives able to adopt 
a whole system approach to providing coordinated and outcome focused care 
incorporating local health, public health, social care systems and the 
voluntary sector where appropriate.  This approach must be able to 
demonstrate the ability to implement change at both scale and pace and 
develop a robust evidence base on which to build improvement moving 
forward. 

 
5. Localities selected to become integration ‘pioneers’ will be provided with 

tailored support in implementation to facilitate the use of best practice and 
shared learning on a national basis.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 83



 

 2

 
Current Review of Intermediate Care Provision 
  
6.  It is proposed that the current review and planned transformation of 

Intermediate Care Provision form the basis of the integration ‘pioneer’ 
expression of interest. 

 
7.  The importance of driving patient centred care and support has been 

recognised within County Durham, particularly within the former Care Closer 
to Home Group featuring representation from Clinical Commissioning Groups, 
County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust and Durham County 
Council.  More specifically it has been accepted that this will require a move 
away from the provision of care in the acute setting towards more flexible, 
locality based provision where appropriate. 

 
8.  In view of this, in January 2013 the former Care Closer to Home Group 

committed to oversee a high level evaluation of current Intermediate Care 
Services with a view to developing an Outline Business Case for a proposed 
operating model moving forward within County Durham. 

 
9.  The proposed model was developed with input from a comprehensive list of 

primary stakeholders and aimed to be both flexible and accessible in 
providing credible alternatives to hospital admission through incorporating the 
following objectives: 

• Admission avoidance to an acute bed 

• Re-admission avoidance to an acute bed 

• Admission avoidance to 24 hour care 
 
10.  While some progress had been made in working towards an integrated 

approach within current Intermediate Care services, further opportunities for 
improvement remained. These included: 

• Addressing the current restrictive definition of Intermediate Care 
excluding some referrals who could potentially benefit from short term 
support 

• Resolving a number of inconsistencies in the service delivered across 
the County  

• Improving current accessibility of the service 

• Reducing pressure placed on the acute setting through increasing 
demands due to demographic trends. 

• Resolving instances of silo working exacerbated by multiple, 
incompatible data systems across key organisations. 

 
11.   This resulted in the development of a ‘Short Term Intervention’ Model which 

aimed to optimise opportunities for improvement highlighted above through 
incorporating the following: 

• A non-restrictive definition which ignores medical diagnosis allowing 
access to all those who will benefit for up to 6 weeks. 

• A 24/7 single point of access (SPA) responsible for the collection of 
relevant information at the point of referrals and commissioning 
intermediate care beds and sitting services out of hours. 

• The SPA will be supported by an 8am-8pm multidisciplinary 
assessment team responsible for identifying the most appropriate 
short term intervention service once an individual is considered to be 
medically stable. 

Page 84



 

 3

• GP Beds will also form part of the model with GPs maintaining 
admission rights through the SPA 

• Short Term Intervention Services may include Intermediate Care 
Beds, Step Up/Step Down and Time to Think Beds, provision of 
Telecare and Telehealth, administering of IV Fluids and Antibiotics in 
the Community, Community Equipment, Rehab Therapy, Reablement 
and Sitting Services amongst others. Bringing together all existing 
services into one holistic model, which will be evaluated over an 18 
month period to inform the future commissioning strategy for the 
service moving forward, based on value for money and patient and 
service user outcomes.  

 
Possible Outcomes 
 
12. Successful submission to become an integration ‘pioneer’ could bring a 

number of general and specific benefits for County Durham including:  
 

• Recognition as a practitioner of best practice in pursuing coordinated, 
patient-centred care through the use of an integrated, whole system 
approach. 

• Tailored support from the Department for Communities and Local 
Government and their partners, to help achieve effective outcomes 
from programme  

 
13. It should be noted that there is no financial implications to becoming an 

integration ‘pioneer’ 
 
Recommendations 
 
14. The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to: 

• Support the application process 

• Be involved in the ongoing development of becoming a pioneer 
of health and social care integration 

• Accept further reports on progress. 
 

 

Contact: Rachael Shimmin, Corporate Director, Children and Adults Services, 
email: Rachael.Shimmin@durham.gov.uk, Tel: 03000 267355 
 
Nicola Bailey, Chief Operating Officer, North Durham Clinical Commissioning 
Group, email: Nicola.Bailey5@nhs.net, Tel: 0191 6053169 

 
Background papers:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 

 4

 
Finance – The submission of the expression of interest to become an integration 
pioneer will be conducted as part of the existing Intermediate Care project and will, 
therefore, require no additional financial investment 
 
 
Staffing - None 
 
 
Risk – No additional risks will arise as a result of this submission 
 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - None 
 
 
Accommodation - None 
 
 
Crime and Disorder - None 
 
 
Human Rights - None 
 
 
Consultation - None 
 
 
Procurement - None 
 
 
Disability Issues - None 
 
 
Legal Implications- None 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 86



1 

 
 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Policy Update 

 

 
 

Report of Andrea Petty, Strategic Manager - Policy, Planning and Partnerships, 
Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with 

an overview of key policy developments since March 2013. 
  
Policy Developments 
 
Care and Support 
 
2. Queens Speech - Draft Care Bill 
 

In July 2012, the Department of Health published a draft Care and Support Bill 
which underwent pre-legislative scrutiny. The Queen’s Speech in May 2013 
stated that the ‘Care Bill’ would be progressing through Parliament in the 
2013/14 session.  
 
The Care Bill seeks to consolidate provisions from over a dozen different Acts 
into a single, modern framework for care and support and to enact a 
fundamental reform of the way the law works. It aims to focus care and 
support legislation on the wellbeing of individuals.  
 
Following the Government’s announcement in February 2013 on the Dilnot 
proposals, the Bill will now also introduce a capped model for funding social 
care. It will also include a national minimum eligibility, and carers will have a 
legal right to an assessment for care for the first time. Following the failings at 
Stafford Hospital, the Bill will introduce Ofsted-style ratings for hospitals and 
care homes. 
 
No action – for information only. 

 
3. Safeguarding vulnerable people in the reformed NHS – Accountability and 

Assurance Framework  
 
This document, issued by NHS England on 21st March 2013, updates and 
replaces ‘Arrangements to secure children’s and adult safeguarding in the 
future NHS – the new accountability and assurance framework – interim 
advice’ issued by the NHS Commissioning Board Authority in September 
2012.  It describes how the NHS system will work from April 2013. 
The framework aims to:  

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 87



2 

 
 

• Promote partnership working to safeguard children, young people and 
adults at risk of abuse, at both strategic and operational levels  

• Clarify NHS roles and responsibilities for safeguarding, including in 
relation to education and training  

• Provide a shared understanding of how the new system will operate and, 
in particular, how it will be held to account both locally and nationally  

• Ensure that professional leadership and expertise are retained in the NHS, 
including the continuing key role of designated and named professionals 
for safeguarding children  

• Outline a series of principles and ways of working that are equally 
applicable to the safeguarding of children and young people and of adults 
in vulnerable situations, recognising that safeguarding is everybody’s 
business.  

 
No action – for information. 
 

4. NHS Constitution for England 
 
The updated constitution, published on 26th March 2013, sets out rights for 
patients, public and staff. It outlines NHS commitments to patients and staff, 
and the responsibilities that the public, patients and staff owe to one another to 
ensure that the NHS operates fairly and effectively. All NHS bodies and private 
and third sector providers supplying NHS services are required by law to take 
account of this constitution in their decisions and actions. 
 
No action – for information. 
 

5. Transforming Care: A national response to Winterbourne View Hospital and 
Joint Partner Statement 
 
This report, published on 28th March 2013, sets out the government’s final 
response to the events at Winterbourne View hospital. It sets out a programme 
of action to transform services for people with learning disabilities or autism 
and mental health conditions or behaviours described as challenging. It lays 
out clear, timetabled actions for health and local authority commissioners 
working together to transform care and support for people with learning 
disabilities or autism, who also have mental health conditions or behaviours 
viewed as challenging.  
 

The Department of Health will publish a progress report later in the summer, 
setting out how well the sector is meeting the milestones and providing further 
checks to make sure that the number of people in assessment and treatment 
centres continues to reduce. 

A report is presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 21st June 
2013 to provide an update on a national and local basis. 
 
 
 

Page 88



3 

 
 

6. Care Quality Commission – Our strategy for 2013 to 2016 
 
The CQC published its strategy on 18th April 2013 and is making radical 
changes to the way in which it inspects and regulates services to make sure 
they provide people with safe, effective, compassionate and high-quality care, 
and to encourage them to make improvements. 
 
The changes CQC is making include: 

• Appointing a Chief Inspector of Hospitals, a Chief Inspector of Social Care 
and Support, and considering the appointment of a Chief Inspector of 
Primary and Integrated Care.  

• Developing new fundamental standards of care.  

• Making sure inspectors specialise in particular areas of care and lead 
teams that include clinical and other experts  

• Introducing national teams in NHS hospitals that have specialist expertise 
to carry out in-depth reviews of hospitals with significant or long-standing 
problems.  

• Improving our understanding of how well different care services work 
together by listening to people’s experiences of moving between different 
care services.  

• Publishing better information for the public, including ratings of services.  

• Strengthening the protection of people whose rights are restricted under 
the Mental Health Act.  

 
The changes will come into effect in NHS hospitals and mental health trusts 
first. The CQC states that this is because it recognises there is an urgent need 
for more effective inspection and regulation of these services. The CQC will 
then extend and adapt its approach to other sectors between 2014 and 2016. 
 
No action – for information. 

 
7.  Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 2013 to 2014 
  
  Published on 29th April 2013, the framework: 

• describes the principles for the way in which the framework should be 
used, and its role in supporting local improvement; 

• provides a national commentary on adult social care outcomes in 2011 to 
2012, the first year of the operation of the framework; 

• sets out the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) for 2013 to 
2014; 

• provides a forward look for the development of the framework in future 
years. 

The ASCOF Handbook of Definitions sets out the technical detail of each 
measure, with worked examples to minimise confusion and inconsistency in 
reporting and interpretation. 

This information will be incorporated into the council’s strategic planning and 
performance processes with regard to adult social care.  

Page 89



4 

 
 

The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework is being taken into account 
during the process of reviewing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

8. Guide to the Healthcare System in England 

This guide, published on 3rd May 2013, explains organisations in the healthcare 
system and how they work together and includes the Statement of NHS 
Accountability.  The guide covers:  
• providing care 
• commissioning care 
• safeguarding patients 
• empowering patients and local communities 
• education and training  
• supporting providers of care  
• the role of the Secretary of State for Health. 

The accountability statement explains how decision-making works in the NHS 
and fulfils the commitment set out in principle 7 of the NHS Constitution. 

The guide will be updated annually. 

No action – for information. 

9. Integrated Care: Our Shared Commitment  

This framework document on integration was published by the Department of 
Health on 13th May 2013. It is signed by 12 national partners and sets out how 
local areas can use existing structures such as Health and Wellbeing Boards 
to bring together local authorities, the NHS, care and support providers, 
education, housing services, public health and others to make further steps 
towards integration. 

The document includes ten commitments, which every organisation has 
signed up to deliver, including: outlining how national resources will support 
local work, promises to ensure tools are available to help, details of how 
information will be used to enable integration, and plans to accelerate learning 
across the system.  

The publication of the document is accompanied by an invitation for 
expressions of interest from local areas to become integration ‘pioneers’. A 
letter has been sent to local authority chief executives, chairs of Health and 
Wellbeing Boards, CCG clinical leads and provider chief executive officers 
across the social care and health system.   

The Health and Wellbeing Board is requested to note that a report is 
presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 21st June 2013 to 
request support for an expression of interest being submitted on behalf 
of County Durham.  

 

Page 90



5 

 
 

Public Health 

10. A Framework for Sexual Health Improvement in England 
 
This document, issued on 12th April 2013, sets out the government’s ambitions 
for improving sexual health and aims to provide the information, evidence 
base and support tools to enable those involved in sexual health improvement 
to work together effectively. It also aims to ensure that accessible high quality 
services and support are available to everyone.  
 
From April 2013, local authorities commission most sexual health services but 
clinical commissioning groups and NHS England also have a role. Support is 
provided to these bodies by Public Health England. 

No action – for information. 
 

11. Tackling Teenage Pregnancy: Local Government’s New Public Health Role 
 
Public health became the responsibility of local government when it 
transferred from the NHS to local authorities in April 2013. This briefing for 
councillors and officers, published on 23rd April 2013 by the Local Government 
Association, explains the challenges facing councils and the opportunities they 
have to tackle teenage pregnancy and reduce health inequalities in local 
communities. 
 
Link to briefing on Tackling teenage pregnancy 
 
Teenage pregnancy is a key action within the Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy with key measures to monitor progress. 

 
12.  Public Health England’s priorities for 2013 to 2014 
   

Published on 26th April 2013, the 5 priorities of Public Health England are: 
1. Helping people to live longer and more healthy lives by reducing 

preventable deaths and the burden of ill health associated with 
smoking, high blood pressure, obesity, poor diet, poor mental health, 
insufficient exercise, and alcohol 

2. Reducing the burden of disease and disability in life by focusing on 
preventing and recovering from the conditions with the greatest impact, 
including dementia, anxiety, depression and drug dependency 

3. Protecting the country from infectious diseases and environmental 
hazards, including the growing problem of infections that resist 
treatment with antibiotics 

4. Supporting families to give children and young people the best start in 
life, through working with health visiting and school nursing, family 
nurse partnerships and the Troubled Families programme 

5. Improving health in the workplace by encouraging employers to 
support their staff, and those moving into and out of the workforce, to 
lead healthier lives. 

 
No action – for information. 

Page 91



6 

 
 

13.  Public Health Outcomes Framework 2013 to 2016 and Technical Updates 
 
The Public Health Outcomes Framework concentrates on: 

• increased healthy life expectancy 
• reduced differences in life expectancy 
• healthy life expectancy between communities  

 
These documents are published under section 73B (1) of the NHS Act 2006 
(inserted by section 31 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012) as ones that 
local authorities must have regard to in the exercise of their public health 
functions. 
 
This information will be incorporated into the council’s strategic planning and 
performance processes with regard to public health.  
 
The Public Health Outcomes Framework is being taken into account 
during the process of reviewing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
 

14. Helping to Prevent Osteoporosis: Good Nutrition and Safe Sunlight Exposure 

The All-Party Parliamentary Osteoporosis Group (APPOG) has undertaken an 
inquiry into the role of nutrition in promoting good bone health and preventing 
osteoporosis. This has incorporated the role of both diet and safe-sunlight 
exposure. The latter is required by our bodies to produce sufficient levels of 
vitamin D, needed for the absorption of calcium. 

The inquiry examined the types of lifestyle choice that we need to make to 
provide ourselves with the nutrients necessary for healthy bones. It has aimed 
to establish the impact of current dietary and sunlight exposure patterns upon 
bone health in England. The group scrutinised barriers that exist to a nutritious 
lifestyle. It is also studied the place of supplements and food fortification in 
supporting good nutrition for our bones. 

The inquiry has found that the UK population is not getting enough of the right 
nutrients needed to maintain good bone health. APPOG has made seven 
recommendations in total. 

As a follow up to this inquiry, in 2012, the APPOG co-chairs wrote to the 
leader of every upper-tier local authority in England to ask what steps they 
are taking to improve bone health through nutrition and safe sunlight 
exposure. This is in light of the new public health responsibilities that local 
councils in England are assuming from the NHS as part of the reforms set out 
in the Health and Social Care Act 2012. APPOG has received replies from 102 
councils to date. 

 APPOG have reiterated the need for local authorities to conduct or 
commission outcomes-focused public health campaigns which mitigate the 
increasing number of hospital admissions for fractures in older people, by 
promoting these bone-protective lifestyle measures. APPOG has requested 
that Health and Wellbeing Board’s push for a public health initiative locally that 

Page 92



7 

 
 

promotes safe sunlight exposure, Vitamin D supplementation in vulnerable 
groups and a healthy, calcium-rich diet. 

 
 The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note that the letter received 

from the All-Party Parliamentary Osteoporosis Group (APPOG) has been 
considered by Public Health colleagues in Durham County Council in 
their work.  For example, as part of the Physical Activity delivery plan 
and and the Healthy Weight Strategy and delivery plan. 

15. Consultation on the Sustainable Development Strategy for the Health and 
Care System 2014 - 2020  

 
In January 2013, the NHS Sustainable Development Unit launched a 
consultation on the development of a Sustainable Development Strategy for 
the Health and Care System for 2014 - 2020.  
 
The strategy is the sustainable development plan for the health, public health 
and social care system. It builds on the NHS Carbon Reduction Strategy, 
reinforcing and supplementing the key actions from the strategy and outlining 
practical steps that need to be taken to move the health system further on the 
journey towards sustainable healthcare delivery. 

 
The purpose of this consultation and engagement process is to get help from 
local authorities and health and wellbeing boards in understanding how and 
where to focus health and care sector efforts to deliver more financially, 
socially and environmentally sustainable care. 

 
The previous five year strategy (Carbon Reduction Strategy) focused on NHS 
organisations. The proposal is to expand the scope of the next strategy to 
include all organisations with a responsibility for health and care, in line with 
the current health and care system reforms. 

 
 The consultation ran until 29th May 2013. 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note that the Sustainable 
Development Strategy for the health, public health and social care 
system will be launched in January 2014. 

 
Clinical Commissioning Groups 

 
16. NHS (Clinical Commissioning Groups – Payments in respect of quality) 

Regulations 2013 

 In December 2012, the NHS Commissioning Board published draft guidance 
covering the 2013/14 Quality Premium. The draft guidance set out what a 
clinical commissioning group (CCG) would need to achieve during 2013/14 to 
attract a quality premium. The draft guidance was subject to the content of 
regulations and the guidance being published as final. Quality premium 
payments will be made in 2014/15. 

Page 93



8 

 
 

The Department of Health published regulations in March 2013. The quality 
premium is intended to reward CCGs for: 

• improving the quality of services commissioned for local populations  

• improving outcomes for patients  

• reducing inequalities in access to health care and outcomes from health 
care.  

CCGs will be given the payments - likely to be around £5 per patient – for 
meeting certain targets. The payments will be broken down into: 25% for 
reducing or maintaining a 0% change in unnecessary emergency admissions; 
12.5% for meeting targets around reducing healthcare associated infections; 
12.5% for rolling out the friends and family test; 12.5% for reducing amenable 
mortality rates by at least 3.2%.  

CCGs will not receive the payments if they do not achieve financial balance 
and payments will be reduced if they fail to meet targets set out in the NHS 
Constitution, including those related to waiting times.   

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note that a report is on the 
meeting agenda for 21st June 2013. 

17. DDES CCG Prospectus and North Durham CCG Prospectus 
 

Prospectus documents for NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 
(DDES) Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and North Durham CCG have 
been circulated. The prospectus documents outline: 

 

• CCG background 

• How local health needs will be met 

• Vision and aims 

• Key initiatives 

• Budget 

• How to get involved. 
 
The draft CCG Prospectus documents for DDES and North Durham 
CCGs have previously been circulated to Health and Wellbeing Board 
members and no comments have been received.  Therefore, the Health 
and Wellbeing Board is asked to endorse the draft prospectus 
documents so they can be finalised. 

 
18. Social Value in Health Care Programme 
 

This programme is designed to support local areas to implement the Public 
Services (Social Value) Act 2012 though collaboration between the public 
sector and local voluntary and community and social enterprise (VCSE) 
organisations in the arena of health and care commissioning and delivery. 
The programme is being managed by Social Enterprise UK (SEUK) in 
partnership with the Institute for Voluntary Action Research (IVAR) and is 
supported by the Department of Health. 

Page 94



9 

 
 

 
The programme is built around area based partnership working and seeks to 
ensure that the essential contribution of VCSE organisations is recognised 
and valued within the new health landscape. It builds on a body of evidence 
that emphasises the need to bring together VCSE organisations, public sector 
practitioners and commissioners to build mutual trust and understanding while 
practically addressing local problems and jointly developing solutions through 
a focus on Social Value. 
 
No action – for information only 

 
Health and Wellbeing Boards  

  
19. Statutory Guidance on Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategies 
 

To support health and wellbeing boards, the Department of Health has worked 
with stakeholders on producing this statutory guidance, published on 25th 
March 2013, which explains the duties and powers of Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessments (JSNAs) and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies (JHWSs).  

 
The purpose of the guidance is to support health and wellbeing boards and 
their partners by:  
 

• laying out duties, which underpin JSNAs and JHWSs to be undertaken by 
CCGs and local authorities through health and wellbeing boards from April 
2013;  

• explaining how JSNAs and JHWSs will fit together with commissioning 
plans in the modernised health and care system; and  

• setting out how the JSNA and JHWS process will enable the NHS and 
local government to make real improvements to the health and wellbeing 
of local people.  

 
This guidance is being taken into account in the development of the JSNA 
2013 and the review of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for County 
Durham.   

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note that the Statutory 
Guidance is being taken into account during the review of the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 

20. Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments: Information Pack 

 Each health and wellbeing board (HWB) must assess needs for pharmaceutical 
services in its area, and publish a statement of its first pharmaceutical needs 
assessment (PNA) and of any revised versions. 

The information pack, published by the Department of Health on 9th May 2013:  

Page 95



10 

 
 

• gives the legislative background 
• outlines what the term ‘pharmaceutical services’ includes in relation to 

PNAs 
• outlines the minimum information that must be in PNAs 
• expands on what the legislation says about the publication and updating of 

PNAs 
• explains the consultation requirements 
• outlines matters to consider when making assessments. 

It also includes examples of the ways in which primary care trusts developed 
their first PNAs, providing HWBs with an indication of how they may wish to 
approach their work. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note that a Pharmaceutical 
Needs Assessment will be undertaken in County Durham by April 2015, 
in line with national timescales, and will be presented to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board in early 2015. 

 
21. Health and Wellbeing Improvement Support 
 

The Local Government Association (LGA) has been working with the 
Department of Health to develop an offer of help, support and challenge for 
the members and organisations involved in local health and wellbeing boards, 
local healthwatch and public health in local government, to address local 
issues and improve the wellbeing of their local people.  
 
Developed in partnership with NHS England, Public Health England, 
Healthwatch England, the NHS Confederation and the Department of Health, 
the offer is aimed at supporting boards in 2013/14 by: 
 

• Establishing a single information hub, supported by several organisations, 
which local health agencies and their partners can tap into for support and 
learning 

• Using the existing sector-led improvement tools, such as peer challenge, 
to help health and wellbeing boards reflect on their approaches and 
improve them for the benefit of local people 

• Delivering tailored support for clinical commissioning groups 

• Producing a revised version of the self-assessment framework for boards 
to access 

• Providing a regionally based support offer, including local chairs’ networks 
and bespoke support 

• Delivering a national event to bring together board members to share 
learning and experiences.  

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note that Durham County 
Council has signed up for regular bulletins about the LGA’s support 
offer. These bulletins will be circulated to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board as appropriate.   

 
 

Page 96



11 

 
 

 
 
Recommendations  
 
22. The Health and Wellbeing Board is requested to: 

• Note this report for information. 

• Endorse the CCG prospectus documents for North Durham and DDES 
CCG.  

 

Contact:   Andrea Petty, Strategic Manager - Policy, Planning & Partnerships  
Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council                                                    
Tel. 03000 267 312                                                                                      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



12 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Finance – No implications 
 
Staffing – No implications  
 
Risk – No implications 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – No implications 
 
Accommodation – No implications 
 
Crime and Disorder – No implications 
 
Human Rights – No implications 
 
Consultation – No implications 
 
Procurement – No implications 
 
Disability Discrimination Act – No implications 
 
Legal Implications – No implications 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 - Implications 

Page 98



 

 

 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 

Review of the Sustainable Community 
Strategy 

 

 

Report of Gordon Elliott, Head of Partnerships and Community 
Engagement, Assistant Chief Executive, Durham County Council 

 
Purpose of the Report 

1. To provide the Health and Wellbeing Board (H&WB) with an update on how work is 
progressing on the renewal of the Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) and 
identifying cross thematic priorities across the County Durham Partnership (CDP). 

 
Background 

2. The SCS, as agreed by all partners through the CDP and by the Council at the Full 
Council meeting on 24th March 2010, is the overarching strategic plan for the county 
and is a 20 year document that should be reviewed every three years.  The extent of 
recent changes has increased the significance of this. 

 
Approach 

3. All partners recognise that it is important to have an SCS as it is the single strategic 
plan for the county that shows how all partners across the County are working 
towards shared priorities and how this will make a difference.  
 

4. The CDP Board held their annual away day in September 2012 and re-affirmed the 
Altogether Better Durham vision and the five priority themes as the right framework 
on which to build going forward.  The Board also agreed the key areas to be covered 
by the new document.  Following the away day, an initial timeline was developed, 
agreed and aligned to thematic partnership reviews. A presentation was given to all 
five thematic partnerships where each agreed an appropriate way forward and 
nominated an officer to liaise with the CDP team to progress this.   
 

5. It was acknowledged that the proposed approach should take into account the 
timings of the proposed thematic reviews. Other important issues to consider were 
the election of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the health reforms, 
particularly the establishment of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  Also, new 
and emerging data available following the Census 2011 will be released at various 
intervals throughout the year.  The Local Elections that took place in May 2013 were 
also an important factor as engagement of Elected Members is important to this 
process. 

 
6. Since the SCS 2010-2030 was agreed in 2010 the landscape has changed 

significantly.  The General Election in May 2010 saw immediate implications for the 
County Durham Partnership and all partner organisations but this was only the start 
of the changes.  Significant reduction in resources has meant changes to services 
which have then had, and continue to have, a collective impact on local communities.  
These have been further compounded by the wider economic situation.   

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 99



 

 

 

Thematic Partnerships 

7. At a thematic level, since 2010 there have been changes to some thematic priorities 
(SCS high level objectives).  Changes to the overarching objectives for Altogether 
Healthier are shown below: 
 
Altogether Healthier 

Health and Wellbeing Partnership 
Plan/SCS 2010 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2013/17 

Improve life expectancy Children and young people make healthy 
choices and have the best start in life 

Reduce health inequalities Reduce health inequalities and early 
deaths 

Improve mental health and wellbeing of 
the population 

Improve the quality of life, independence 
and care and support for people with long 
term conditions 

 Improve mental health and wellbeing of 
the population 

 Protect vulnerable people from harm 

 Support people to die in the place of their 
choice with the care and support they 
need 

 
 

8. Where priorities have changed for other thematic partnerships, such as the Safe 
Durham Partnership, these will be reflected in the Sustainable Communities Strategy. 
 

9. It is important that the SCS has a consistent whole strategy approach and is not 
simply a repeat of the five separate thematic strategies. In doing this there are some 
issues that will need to be addressed by thematic partnerships, for example, it is 
important for thematic partnerships to see where their objectives fit with the work of 
others, not only for cross thematic working but also in light of the collective impact of 
reductions or changes to services.   
 

10. Other issues will also need to be addressed, for example, there appears to be a 
disproportionality of objectives across the five thematic areas and an inconsistent 
presentation of the importance given to addressing inequalities.  These types of 
issues need to be considered so that a consistent way forward can be agreed for the 
SCS. 

 
11. These are the types of issues that will be discussed with thematic partnerships over 

the next few months to enable the first draft of the SCS to be completed and 
discussed with partnerships. 
 

New features of the SCS 

12. In addition to the changing landscape and the five priority themes there are a number 
of new sections of the SCS that will show how the partnership is maturing and 
bringing greater benefits.  The added value of the wider networks with the Voluntary 
and Community Sector, Local Councils, Faith communities and the Armed Forces will 
be a key part of the renewed document.  Also, building on the strengths within local 
communities (an asset based approach) is something that, moving forward, will 
become more important as all partners look to realise efficiencies.  
 

Page 100



 

13. It was recognised, following discussions during the development of the Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS), that the social determinants of health need to be the 
responsibility of all parts of the CDP in order to address them properly.   
 

14. Public Health colleagues are currently identifying any cross thematic priorities where 
there is an impact on the social determinants of health.  As part of this a gap analysis 
is being undertaken in the form of a thematic mapping exercise with the purpose of 
beginning dialogue and debate around potential crossovers and areas for joint work 
based on good practice.  
 

15. Following discussions at the County Durham Partnership Board on locality 
arrangements and how we look at key issues within the County at a sub county level 
through census data and other statistical analysis, five sub county geographies have 
been determined and agreed for use in the SCS. This has led to a new piece of work 
being developed that will offer a sub county view on what life is like within the county, 
at the five agreed geographies, and will give all partners the option to shape and 
target their work differently.  This new Strategic Partnership Analysis will be a new 
feature in the SCS. 
 
 

Next steps 

16. A detailed project plan is being developed and will be shared with all thematic 
partnerships within the next two weeks.   
 

17. In order to be able to develop CDP priorities that will make up the SCS Action Plan 
moving forward, work will be carried out with the thematic partnerships in order to be 
able to focus on the priorities and outcomes that will have the biggest impact. 
 

18. The H&WB, along with all thematic partnerships, is key to developing these priorities 
and outcomes and optimising the opportunity offered through the renewal of the 
SCS. 

 
Recommendations and reasons 

19. The H&WB is asked to  

• Agree the approach for the review of the SCS 

• Agree to receive further updates as appropriate. 
 

Contact:  Clare Marshall, Principal Partnerships and Local Councils Officer Tel: 
03000 263591 
Graeme Grieg, Senior Public Health Specialist Tel: 03000 267382 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
 
Finance - None 
 
Staffing - None 
 
Risk - None 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - The actions set out in this report 
aim to ensure equality and diversity issues are embedded within the working practices of 
the CDP. 
 
Accommodation - None 
 
Crime and Disorder - Altogether safer is the responsibility of the Safe Durham 
Partnership. 
 
Human Rights - None 
 
Consultation - The County Durham Partnership framework is a key community 
engagement and consultation function of the Council and its partners. The 
recommendations in the report are based on extensive consultation with AAP partners and 
the establishment of a Sound Board to progress the recommendations and will continue 
this consultative approach.  
 
Procurement - None 
 
Disability Issues - None 
 
Legal Implications - None 

 

Page 102



 1

                                                                     
County Durham Health and Wellbeing 
Board 
 
21st June 2013  
 
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy  
2012 - 15 
 

 

Report of Claire Sullivan, Consultant in Public Health, Children and Adults 
Services, Durham County Council 

 
1. Purpose of the report 
 
 The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board 

with an update on the Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2012-15. This 
report details the strategic aim and objectives within the strategy and 
the plans for 2013/14.   

 
2. Background 
 

The Safe Durham Partnership launched its first three year Alcohol 
Harm Reduction Action Plan in July 2009. Since this date, the Alcohol 
Harm Reduction group and its three thematic sub groups (Prevention, 
Treatment and Control) have developed, implemented and monitored 
the action plans.  

The overarching vision for the County Durham Alcohol Harm Reduction 
Strategy is: 

“To reduce the harm caused by alcohol to individuals, families and 
communities in County Durham while ensuring that people are able to 
enjoy alcohol responsibly.”  

Following a stakeholder event in May 2012 and subsequent 
consultation the Strategy was launched in November 2012, during 
Alcohol Awareness Week.  

 
3. The Strategy 
  

In order to achieve the vision we have set eight key objectives under 
three themes: 
 
Prevention 

 
1 To use targeted approaches to raise public awareness in County 

Durham of the harm caused by alcohol by promoting consistent 
messages about drinking. 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 103



 2

2 Provide specific targeted training and education to support 
individuals, professionals, communities and local businesses to 
address the harm caused by alcohol. 

 
3 Engage with children and young people to develop age and 

gender specific information, activities, services and education to 
prevent alcohol related harm. 

 
Control 

 
4 Increase the gathering, sharing and use of intelligence to reduce 

the number of alcohol related incidents impacting upon 
communities. 

 
5 Engage with licensees and target licensed premised where 

necessary to ensure that licensed premises are managed 
responsibly. 

 
6 Ensure a coordinated approach to policy development, planning 

and adoption of legislation. 
 
Treatment for recovery 
 
7 Commission and deliver effective treatment and recovery services 

in line with national guidance and undertake work to identify the 
needs of particular groups where the data is limited e.g. pregnant 
women. 

 
8 Involve and support young people, families and carers (including 

young carers) living with alcohol related issues in order to break 
the cycle of alcohol misuse. 

 
The Executive Summary of the Strategy is available to view at 
Appendix 2. Comprehensive action plans underpin the strategy and 
ensure that the strategic vision is translated into operational delivery.  

The Strategy is also aligned to the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2013-17 which makes specific reference to alcohol.  

4. Priorities for 2013/14         
 

Recognising that the strategy is a three year strategy the Alcohol Harm 
Reduction Group has identified priority group/actions for 2013-14; 
these include: 

• Males age 25-44 

• Pregnant Women 

• Older people 

Page 104



 3

• Young people in transition 

• Dual diagnosis 

• Children and families – proxy sales/provision of alcohol and out of 
sight drinking 

• Licensing including Cumulative Impact Assessment, DCC Licensing 
Policy review, introduction of EMROs/Late Night Levy’s 

As a result of the identified priorities, the Alcohol Harm Reduction 
Group has re-structured and is changing the way it delivers on the 
strategy. The Group has adopted a task and finish approach based on 
the priorities rather than the prevention, treatment and control themes.   

5. Recommendations 
 
 The Health and Wellbeing Board are recommended to: 
 

• note the contents of this report  

• receive updates on the implementation of the Alcohol Harm 
Reduction Strategy in the future. 

 
 

Contact:    Kirsty Wilkinson, Alcohol Harm Reduction Coordinator 
Tel:   03000 265 445 

 
Background papers: Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2012-15 Executive 
Summary 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



 4

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance 
An Action Plan has been developed to support the delivery of the Alcohol 
Harm Reduction Strategy. The alcohol prevention budget allocated by the 
former Health and Wellbeing Partnership is no longer available to help with 
the implementation of the strategy. Funding will be required for implementing 
any social marketing particularly in relation to the 25-44 year old males 
priority.     
 
Staffing 
The Plan will be implemented using existing resources.  
 
Risk  
No adverse implications. 
 
Equality and Diversity 
An impact assessment has been undertaken on the Alcohol Harm Reduction 
Strategy 2012-15.   
 
Accommodation 
No adverse implications.   
 
Crime and disorder 
The Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2012-15 Control objectives outline the 
priorities for tackling alcohol related crime and disorder in County Durham. 
 
Human rights 
No adverse implications. 
 
Consultation 
Statutory consultation with the community and stakeholders was been 
undertaken as part of the plan’s refresh. 
 
Procurement  
No adverse implications. 
 
Disability Discrimination Act   
No direct adverse implications.  
 
Legal Implications  
No implications.    
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 106



 5

Appendix 2 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Alcohol Harm Reduction 
Strategy 

2012-2015 
Executive Summary 
 

Page 107



 6

Vision 
 
Our overall vision for this strategy is: 

 
To reduce the harm caused by alcohol to individuals, families and 
communities in County Durham while ensuring that people are able to enjoy 
alcohol responsibly.  

 
Key Objectives 
 
In order to achieve the vision we have set eight key objectives under three 
themes. 

 
Prevention 
 
1. To use targeted approaches to raise public awareness in County Durham 

of the harm caused by alcohol by promoting consistent messages about 
drinking. 

2. Provide specific targeted training and education to support individuals, 
professionals, communities and local businesses to address the harm 
caused by alcohol. 

3. Engage with children and young people to develop age and gender 
specific information, activities, services and education to prevent alcohol 
related harm. 

 
Control  
 
4. Increase the gathering, sharing and use of intelligence to reduce the 

number of alcohol related incidents and alcohol related offending 
impacting upon communities. 

5. Engage with licensees and target licensed premised where necessary to 
ensure that licensed premises are managed responsibly. 

6. Ensure a coordinated approach to policy development, planning and 
adoption of legislation. 

 
Recovery Treatment 
 
7. Commission and deliver effective treatment and recovery services in line 

with national guidance and undertake work to identify the needs of 
particular groups where the data is limited e.g. pregnant women. 

8. Involve and support young people, families and carers (including young 
carers) living with alcohol related issues in order to break the cycle of 
alcohol misuse. 

 
Alcohol Profile in County Durham 
 
The Cost of Alcohol Harm in County Durham (Source: Balance) 
Nationally alcohol misuse is estimated to cost society around £22.1 billion per 
year. The estimated cost in County Durham is £189.73million with a cost per 

Page 108



 7

head of population at £371. This is broken down to NHS £48.94m, Crime 
£59.63m, workplace £63.61m and Social Services £17.55m. 
 
Prevalence of Alcohol Harm in County Durham 
 

County Durham has high levels of hazardous, harmful and binge drinking. 
Hospital admission rates as a result of alcohol has been rising steadily, 
however the rate of the increase is starting to slow down. Hospital admission 
rates as a result of alcohol are significantly higher for both males and females 
compared to the rate for England but are not as high as the regional average. 
Alcohol misuse is greater among men than women.  County Durham also has 
one of the highest rates of alcohol specific hospital admission for young 
people under the age of 18 years nationally; the rank for County Durham is 
315/326 Local Authorities. The mortality rate, as a result of alcohol in County 
Durham is not significantly different to England or the North East.  

Alcohol related crime has risen slightly from 8.5% in 2010/11 to 9.5% in 
2011/12. Alcohol related anti-social behaviour (ASB) reported to Durham 
Constabulary accounted for approximately 16% of all recorded anti-social 
behaviour in the last 3 years. The number of ASB incidents is reducing but the 
percentage of alcohol related ASB is increasing. Recent perception data 
captured via the Police Confidence Survey shows that 15.4% of residents in 
County Durham perceive drunk rowdy behaviour as a problem. 
 
Some of the social Impacts of alcohol include poor parenting, family 
breakdown, domestic abuse and worklessness. Alcohol also continues to 
have strong links with sexual violence, drink driving and road traffic accidents  
 
Particular priority groups include: 
 
Older people, children and young people, some ethnic groups, veterans, 
lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans communities (LGBT), homeless, those with 
dual diagnosis together with substance misuse or mental health problems, 
pregnant women and offenders.  
 
Examples of Achievements from 2009-12 include: 
 

• 3591 frontline staff trained in alcohol screening and delivery of brief advice.  

• a social marketing plan was developed to target specific segments of 
society. For example a campaign was targeted at females aged 25-44 
years concerned with weight and calories in relation to alcohol.  

• the development of a Fire Death Protocol resulted in the Community 
Alcohol Service referring direct to the Fire & Rescue Service 

•  88% of GP practices within County Durham participated in the Locally 
Enhanced Service. Since 2008/9 GP’s have screened 26507 patients and 
delivered 2911 brief interventions.    

• a referral pathway for any young people admitted to hospital or attending 
A&E due to alcohol has been developed with the County Durham and 
Darlington Foundation Trust.  

Page 109



 8

• the Community Alcohol Service (CAS) has been reviewed to ensure it is 
working effectively, meeting the needs identified within the Alcohol Health 
Needs Assessment and able to respond to the national recovery agenda. 
Since the launch of the last strategy in 2009, 1478 adults have 
successfully completed treatment.   

• Durham Recovery and Wellbeing Centre (DRAW) opened in September 
2011. It promotes wellbeing and supports people to stay in recovery; the 
centre offers a community drop in facility that promotes mutual aid and 
further development of the new social networks.  

• an Alcohol Treatment Scheme was implemented for those subject to 
Alcohol Treatment Requirement Orders. The aim is to divert people from 
custody to an alcohol structured programme delivered jointly by Durham 
Tees Valley Probation Trust and NECA. This scheme received national 
recognition from the Butler Trust. 

• the Alcohol Education team in HMP Durham and HMP Low Newton offers 
alcohol specific information on risks to health, offending and family issues.  

• a Community Alcohol Partnership (CAP) is currently being piloted in the 
Stanley area. It tackles harm caused by alcohol through joint working 
between alcohol retailers, local stakeholders, such as trading standards, 
police, local authority licensing teams, schools and health networks.  

• alcohol arrest referral work has been running as a pilot in County Durham 
for those who have been arrested as a result of alcohol.  

• there is a new co-located Alcohol Harm Reduction Unit (comprising of 
Trading Standards, Durham County Council, Police Licensing and 
Environmental Health). It will share intelligence to reduce the harms caused 
by alcohol.   

• Best Bar None is a national award scheme aimed at reducing alcohol 
related crime and disorder in a town centre by building positive 
relationships across the licensed trade, police and local authorities.  

• Drink Driving leaflets have been developed by the partnership and 
distributed throughout the Christmas period by Traffic Police to individuals 
found to be below the legal limit but still with alcohol in their system. 

• Operation StaySafe has operated across the County by Neighbourhood 
Policing Teams together with Partners. These operations are used to target 
young people who may be vulnerable due to taking alcohol / drugs. A 
young person is taken to a place of safety and their parent/carer is 
contacted to collect them, they also receive brief intervention advice from 
4Real- the Young Persons’ Drug and Alcohol Service. 

• in December 2011 a campaign was launched across the County to 
highlight the impact that one drunken punch can have on both the victim 
and offender. ‘Punched Out Cold’ was launched in Bishop Auckland in the 
lead up to Christmas and was expanded to cover the rest of County 
Durham in early 2012. 

 
Future plans include: 
 

• utilise social marketing techniques to raise awareness about the harms of 
alcohol and instigate behaviour change amongst priority groups 

Page 110



 9

• support the 3 Towns Area Action Partnership (rural communities) to 
implement the community action plan to address anti-social behaviour 
linked to underage drinking funded nationally by Baroness Newlove 

• work with Durham’s Local Safeguarding Children’s Board to deliver work 
on the relationship between alcohol and sexual exploitation 

• implement a social norms approach to change perceptions and behaviour 
related to alcohol and reduce demand for alcohol amongst children and 
young people 

• work with schools and families to promote awareness of the risks 
associated with alcohol use by young people   

• support Health Networks and the Voluntary and Community Sector to 
implement local alcohol related activities 

• ensure that activities for young people are developed and/or sustained to 
divert young people from drinking alcohol 

• develop plans to address the issue of proxy sales based on local research 

• support workplaces to address alcohol use amongst their workforce 

• improve the quality of data capture to understand the full impact of alcohol 
on anti-social behaviour, crime, offending and re-offending, including in 
accident and emergency settings  

• use intelligence led approaches to inform effective multi-agency based 
problem solving around people, premises and places 

• make effective and appropriate use of enforcement powers  

• carry out a co-ordinated and targeted approach to the “policing” of the 
night time economy 

• improve the flow of intelligence between treatment services and the 
Alcohol Harm Reduction Unit 

• Commission an alcohol diversion scheme for binge drinkers who are 
arrested with an eligible alcohol related offence 

• continue to develop Best Bar None 

• support the Police to implement their action plan on alcohol to improve 
Durham Constabulary’s response to alcohol related crimes and incidents 
including the development of alcohol champions across the Constabulary 
and acting as a national pilot for the development of alcohol tactical 
advisors  

• further develop the understanding on the links between alcohol and child 
sexual exploitation 

• ensure that we target premises where irresponsible drinks promotions are 
taking place 

• develop a multi-agency policy and operating procedures for dealing with 
under 18 events in licensed premises 

• manage process required to implement new legislation including Early 
Morning Restriction Orders, the Late Night Levy and cumulative impact 
policies 

• Work with the Police and Crime Commissioner to ensure that funding is 
allocated to reduce alcohol related crime and anti-social behaviour 

• target service development towards priority groups to improve access to 
treatment including males within the 25-44 age group 

Page 111



 10

• undertake further work to understand alcohol misuse in particular groups 
such as older people, gypsies and travellers, homeless, pregnant women, 
those with dual diagnosis, LGBT and veterans  

• improve the quality of data recording in all settings including the recording 
of attendances for alcohol misuse in accident and emergency departments 

• increase the number of adults and young people accessing and 
successfully completing treatment  

• ensure a seamless transfer of the commissioning of alcohol services into 
Durham County Council and seize opportunities for alignment with drugs 
services  

• listen to the views of users and carers to continually improve the quality of 
services 

• support County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust to implement the 
hospital based alcohol action plan 

• evaluate projects including alcohol screening and delivery of brief advice in 
primary care and pharmacy settings and the Durham Recovery and 
Wellbeing Centre (DRAW) 

• work with Clinical Commissioning Groups to raise the profile of alcohol  
and provide increased support for those individuals who are repeatedly 
admitted to hospital as a result of alcohol 

• Further develop the work on recovery including recruiting, training and 
supporting peer mentors 

• undertake work to understand the transition of young people to adult 
treatment services 

 
 

Governance and Performance Management Framework  
 
The performance management framework aligns to the priorities identified by 
the Safe Durham Partnership. Each of the priorities is supported by a thematic 
group with responsibility for delivering improvements.  The Alcohol Harm 
Reduction (AHR) group is a sub group of the Safe Durham Partnership. It also 
reports on a six monthly basis to the Children and Families Trust and 
progress of the strategy will also be reported to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  
 
The Alcohol Harm Reduction Group considers a quarterly performance report 
which contains a range of indicators. The Alcohol Harm Reduction Group 
maintains an action plan appropriate to the issues raised from the 
performance report. Any key issues are escalated to the Safe Durham 
Partnership Board.  Further information is provided within the alcohol harm 
reduction performance framework and actions plan which is available 
separately.  
 
 

Page 112



 

 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
 
21st June 2013 
 
 
Securing Quality In Health Services 
 

 

 
 

 

Report of Rosemary Granger, Project Director, Securing Quality in Health 
Services, Darlington Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1.     The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing 

    Board on the Acute Services Quality Legacy Project. (ASQL) 
 
Background 
 

2.  In September 2012, County Durham Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 
received a report and presentation on the Acute Services Quality Legacy 
Project. The project was part of the process for Primary Care Trusts to 
transfer commissioning responsibility to Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) and it covered the PCT clusters across County Durham and 
Darlington and Tees Valley.  

 
3.  The overall objective of the project was to enhance the commissioning of 

acute hospital services by reaching consensus on the key clinical quality 
standards in acute hospital care that should be commissioned by CCGs. 
The project aimed to produce a report that would describe the agreed 
clinical quality standards in the context of the financial and workforce 
resources that are expected to be available to support implementation of 
the standards. 

 
4.  The project report was received at the final meetings of the PCT clusters in 

March 2013. 
 

 Acute Services Quality Legacy Project - Final Report - Summary of key 
 messages and recommendations 
 
 

5.  Both commissioners and providers of acute services face a similar set of 
challenges over the next five to ten years. Our population will be older, 
with more long term conditions being treated by a state funded NHS that is 
ultimately tied to the performance of the national economy. These services 
will also be operating as part of a wider system with social care which itself 
faces significant challenges related to national financial constraints. 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 113



 

6.  We are fortunate however to start from a strong starting position. Our 
current main providers consistently deliver high quality services, meet 
national performance targets related to waiting times and cleanliness and 
operating efficiently within their means. Having said that, we know that we 
can do better. In this process we have looked to our clinical community to 
define what the best possible care should look like in our hospitals and 
begin to outline the next steps of how we should go about delivering them, 
given the likely financial future and the workforce that will be available to 
us. 

 
7.  The findings and recommendations set out in the report have implications 

that range from potential changes to be made to provider contracts 
through incorporating the agreed clinical quality standards, to potential 
service reconfiguration across County Durham and Tees Valley. 

 
Key Messages from ASQL Project 

 
8. The main key messages are as follows: 

 

•  Following years of growth, demand for acute services is currently high for 
both elective and non-elective care. 
 

•  There will be a significant increase in prevalence across the major long 
term conditions over the next ten years and a greater proportion of the 
population will be over the age of 65.  
 

•  This will have an impact on the utilisation of acute services to a varying 
degree in the different service areas. 
 

•  This growth will put pressure on commissioners’ allocations over the next 
ten years as an older population with more co-morbidity will consume 
more health resource, unless effective demand and long term condition 
management are implemented. This analysis does not take into account 
potential increased spend on high cost drugs and new medical 
technologies in the acute setting that may require further investment from 
commissioners. 
 

•  Forecasts show that providers can maintain a financially stable position 
over the next five years as long as cost improvement plans deliver to 
target. Failure to deliver these targets will have implications for Trusts’ 
operating surplus/deficit position and ultimately the length of time they can 
rely on cash savings to keep them solvent. 
 

•  This means that new funding is unlikely to be available to expand the 
access to services of the very highest quality as providers look to maintain 
the current levels of quality within the resources they have access to. 
 

•  Even if commissioners were to receive increases to their allocations and 
providers had efficiency requirements at pre-Comprehensive Spending 

Page 114



 

Review levels, national and regional workforce constraints may have more 
impact on the ability to deliver higher quality standards. 

 

•  These national and regional workforce considerations are further 
compounded by supply and demand of particular grades and skills of the 
current and future workforce within the acute sector in County Durham, 
Darlington and Tees. 

 
Recommendations from ASQL Project 

 
9. The overall recommendations for the ASQL project board from key clinical 

areas are set out below. These recommendations were identified in the 
context of the wider financial and workforce contexts, the underlying health 
data, views of the clinical advisory groups and the specific workforce risks 
and opportunities 

 
Acute Paediatrics, Maternity and Neonatal Services  
 

10.  Endorse the Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (RCOG) 
standard of 168 hours (24/7) consultant presence as the ultimate goal for 
maternity services across County Durham Darlington and Tees. This 
standard was supported by the majority of the Clinical Advisory Group 
(CAG) but there was a minority view that 98 hours consultant presence 
should be established as the standard for units with less than 4000 
deliveries a year. The Project could not find enough evidence to inform a 
recommendation that goes against the Royal College standard, therefore 
the Project supports the RCOG standard and majority view of the CAG. 
Given the scale of this challenge however, there is a recognition that this 
needs to be delivered in a staged way, with 98 hours as an interim step for 
units with less than 4000 deliveries a year as part of a phased approach to 
implementation. 
 

11.  Endorse the key quality standard of 1:1 Midwife care for women in 
established labour. 

 
12.  Ask Clinical Commissioning Groups to consider the steps they may take in 

the next contracting round to address some of the gaps in quality 
standards through the use of CQUIN incentives and agreeing small scale 
service improvement work with individual trusts. 

 
13.  Agree to a further feasibility analysis to understand the implications of 

implementing the standards across County Durham, Darlington and Tees. 
This assessment should take into account the role of Midwife Led Units 
and how best to support an increase in home-births. 

 
14.  Agree to inform the LETB – Local Education and Training Board to adjust 

commissioning plans to increase the numbers of midwife training places to 
mitigate against risks in future workforce shortages. 

 
 

Page 115



 

Acute Care  
 
15.  Endorse the key quality standards recommended by the CAG as those that 

define high quality care, for example: Emergency admissions seen and 
assessed by a relevant consultant within 4 hours (in hours) and 12 hours 
(out of hours); Emergencies to have access to key diagnostics 24/7: for 
critical cases – imaging and reporting within 1hour of request, for non-
critical cases – imaging and reporting within 12 hours of request.  
 

16.  Endorse the recommendation for acute trusts to collaborate in establishing 
an interventional radiology service available 24/7. 

 
17.  Agree that the critical care element of the Acute Care CAG continue until 

final recommendations can be made. 
 

End of Life Care 
 
18.  Endorse the key quality standards recommended by the CAG as those that 

define high quality care, particularly those that relate to the 24/7 availability 
of an appropriately trained nurse to provide practical support, responding 
within one hour, with access to necessary medicines and home equipment 
for End of Life cases. In addition the CAG recommends the appropriate 
use of the Liverpool Care Pathway in all care settings including the sharing 
of results 
 

19.  Endorse the recommendation for collaboration across the acute trusts to 
establish a 7 day per week service providing specialist palliative care 
advice.  

 
Long Term Conditions 
 

The overall recommendations of the Acute Services Quality Legacy Project in 
relation to long term conditions are as follows:  

 
20.  Given the scale of the likely challenge ahead due to the ageing population, 

the rising prevalence of LTCs and the wider membership of organisations 
involved, a new project focusing on LTC management should be initiated 
across health and social care. This project should include community 
services, mental health and primary care providers as well as acute trusts. 
 

21.  The project will add value to the existing work on long term conditions led 
by CCGs, by establishing a consensus on the scale of intervention needed 
and the quality standards to be achieved. 

 
22.  Further work in this area would include more detailed work on the financial 

and workforce challenges to provide a better understanding of the required 
scale of transformation and the development of concrete plans to achieve 
this, learning from success locally, regionally and nationally. 

 
 

Page 116



 

Planned Care  
 

The overall recommendations of the Acute Services Quality Legacy Project in 
relation to planned care are as follows:  
 

23.  CCGs should review the Planned Care Briefing Paper to identify and 
continue to understand unexplained variations in referrals from Primary 
Care and clinical practice in secondary care 
 

24.  Where appropriate CCGs should look to use information to inform patient 
choice and commissioning levers to encourage competition to drive quality 
in Planned Care. This includes the introduction of new providers into the 
market to stimulate innovation 

 
25.  CCGs should however consider the financial implications for current 

providers that any movement of activity away from them may have (either 
to other current or new providers) when making changes to elective 
pathways. 

 
Next steps 

 
26.      CCGs have agreed to build on this legacy work and will take this work 

forward in line with the duty placed upon them to commission high quality 
sustainable services. It has been agreed that this work will continue to be 
a commissioning led process and as such, Darlington CCG will lead the 
work on behalf of the six CCGs across County Durham, Darlington, Tees 
and Hambleton, Richmondshire and Whitby(the latter CCG is involved due 
to the scale of their patient flows into the Tees Valley area). The project 
will also feed into, and be supported by,  the work of the Area Team of 
NHS England. 
 

27.      The objectives for the next phase of work which is expected to be 
complete by the end of the summer 2013,  are to assess the feasibility of, 
and options for, implementing the standards and progressing 
implementation.  

 
Recommendations 
 

28.      It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board: 

• Accept this report for information 

• Agree that further reports will be submitted to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board as the project progresses. 

 

Contacts:  Rosemary Granger, Project Director, Securing Quality in Health 
Services Darlington Clinical Commissioning Group. 
rosemary.granger@nhs.net 

 
Background Papers:  
County Durham and Tees Valley Acute Services Quality Legacy Project –Final 
Report 

Page 117



 

Acute Services Legacy Project: Clinical Advisory Group Outputs –Agreed Clinical 
Standards

Page 118



 

 
 
Finance – There are no funding or financial implications at this time of Securing Quality in 
Health Services  
 
Staffing – There are no staffing implications of Securing Quality in Health Services  
 
Risk – There are no risks attached to Securing Quality in Health Services at this time 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – Under provisions in the Health 
and Social Care Act, the Clinical Commissioning Groups will have a duty to reduce health 
inequalities and assess the impact of any potential service changes for protected groups.  
 
Accommodation – There are no accommodation implications that need to be considered 
 
Crime and Disorder – N/A 
 
Human Rights – There are no direct implications. 
 
Consultation – If the outcome of the feasibility analysis of the implications of 
implementing the standards leads to a decision by the CCGs to reconfigure services  
consultation with the public,  staff, and Elected Members will be undertaken 
 
Procurement – There are no direct implications  
 
Disability Discrimination Act – There are no direct implications at this time 
 
Legal Implications – There are no direct implications  
 

Appendix 1 - Implications 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Monitoring Provider Quality in the NHS  

 

 
 

Report of Dr Dinah Roy,  Director of Clinical Quality and Primary Care 
Development, Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Dr Ian Davidson, Director of Quality and Safety, North Durham Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Dr Mike Guy, Medical Director, NHS England, Darlington and Tees Area Team 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. To provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an overview on how the 

new NHS architecture supports the monitoring of provider quality.  

 
Background 
 
2. Quality is systemic; a patient’s journey often cuts across primary and 

secondary care, health and social care, and involves multiple 

professionals. It is a collective endeavour that requires collective effort 

and collaboration at every level of the system in order to safeguard 

patients and drive continuous quality improvement. 

 

3. The appalling failures at Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust and at 

independent hospital, Winterbourne View, provide stark reminders that 

when the NHS fails in its responsibilities in respect of quality that the 

consequences for patients, service users and their families can be 

catastrophic. As a result of these failings the NHS has organised itself 

around a single definition of quality; care that is effective, safe and 

provides as positive an experience as possible.  

 

4. This simple yet powerful definition is now enshrined in legislation and is 

embedded within the NHS Outcomes Framework. 

 

5. The NHS Outcomes Framework sets out the national outcomes that all 

providers of NHS funded care should be contributing towards. The 

framework builds on the definition of quality through five overarching 

domains which capture what the NHS should be striving to achieve for 

patients. It is a catalyst for driving quality improvement.  

 

Agenda Item 15

Page 121



 2

6. The fundamental culture change that is required is not just across health 

but also the social care economy. The second Francis report (Mid 

Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust) highlights that excellence should be 

at the heart of all actions taken. The report proposes the following 5 point 

plan to revolutionise the care that people receive from the NHS with the 

aim of:  

 
7. Preventing problems: by creating a culture of compassion and caring 

and embedding a safety culture.  A Chief Inspector of Hospitals will be 

appointed to drive change through fundamental standards and national 

ratings. The measures such as radical transparency, excellence in 

leadership, clarity of accountability, consequences for failure and rewards 

for the very best – will together put in place the action needed to revitalise 

the culture of the NHS around a consistent focus on the needs of the 

patients. 

 
8. Detecting problems quickly: through the availability of timely and 

accurate information, publication of speciality outcomes, expert 

inspections and penalties for disinformation.  There will be a statutory duty 

of candour on providers to inform people if they believe treatment of care 

has caused death or serious injury. There will be a new Chief Inspector of 

Social Care who will be charged with rating care homes and other local 

care services, promoting excellence and identifying problems. A review of 

best practice on complaints will ensure that when problems are raised, 

they are heard, addressed and acted upon, and seen as vital information 

for improvement. 

 
9. Taking action promptly: with simpler fundamental standards which 

make explicit the basic standards beneath which care should never fall.  

Commissioners will have oversight of improvement regimes and there will 

be a failure regime if no improvement is seen. A methodology will be 

developed for assessing hospital to ensure a single set of expectations on 

hospitals of what is required of them.  

 
10. Ensuring robust accountability: by introducing clarity of responsibility, 

criminal sanctions, implementation of faster professional regulation and 
the introduction of a national barring list for unfit managers. 

 
11. Ensuring staff are trained and motivated: by exploring introduction of 

requirement to have HCA training before nursing and other qualifications 
and a code of conduct and minimum training for HCAs. A nursing 
revalidation will be introduced to ensure all practising nurses are up to 
date and fit to practise. The Chief Inspector of Hospitals will assure, as 
part of inspections, that all hospitals are meeting their legal obligations to 
ensure that unsuitable healthcare assistants are barred from future patient 
care by properly and consistently applying the Home Office’s barring 

Page 122



 3

regime. The NHS leadership academy role will be expanded to attract 
professional and external leaders to senior management roles. 

 

12. All NHS Foundation Trust members of the Health and Wellbeing Board, 
have ensured that reports have been presented to their Board meetings in 
relation to outlining their response to the Francis Inquiry and detailed 
action plans have been developed. 

 

13. In addition, NHS Foundation Trusts as providers of services are also 

required to publish an annual ‘Quality Account’ to report their performance 

on the quality of care and services they provide, this is a useful tool for 

commissioners as it highlights the key areas that providers will focus on 

and outlines  their commitment to some key quality improvements.  

 

14. Both CCGs are also statutorily responsible for ensuring that the 

organisations from which they commission services provide a safe system 

that safeguards children and adults at risk of abuse or neglect.  

 

15. North Durham and DDES CCGs are members of the Local Safeguarding 

Children Board (LSCB) and local Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB), 

working in partnership with the local authority and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board to ensure that safeguarding responsibilities are met and 

that robust processes are in place. NDCCG host both the safeguarding 

adult and children CCG teams, managed through a memorandum of 

understanding, to ensure they each meet their statutory requirements.  

 

16. The ‘Monitoring of Quality’ is also supported by the introduction of 

HealthWatch whose role ensures that the CCGs and partner organisation 

are made aware of the views and concerns that patients have about their 

local health and social care services, in order that improvements to 

services can be made if so required.  

 
Next Steps 
 
17. The Health and Wellbeing Board are requested to note the following as 

part of this process: 
 

• All NHS organisations are required to implement the 
recommendations of the Francis 2 report 

• All NHS hospital trusts are required to set out how they intend to 
respond to the Inquiry 

• An annual progress report will be produced by the government 

• Locally the oversight of quality to be coordinated by Quality 
Surveillance Groups  hosted and coordinated by NHS England Area 
Teams and on which the CQC will have an increasingly prominent 
role 

Page 123



 4

• CCG quality teams to be fundamental in the local determination and 
assessment of quality 

 

18. Appendix 2 provides further detail into how Clinical Commissioning 

Groups in County Durham, as commissioners of services, are monitoring 

providers to ensure that care is safe and effective and that patients 

receive a positive experience during their episode of care. 

 
Recommendations 
 
19. The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to: 
 

• accept this report for information. 
 

 

Contact: Dr Dinah Roy, Director of Clinical Quality and Primary Care 
Development, Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical 
Commissioning Group, dinahroy.ddes@nhs.net and Dr Ian Davidson, 
Director of Safety and Quality, North Durham Clinical Commissioning 
Group CCG, iandavidson2@nhs.net. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



 5

 

 
Finance: Not applicable 
 
Staffing: CCGs have identified staff to monitor and take forward the quality 
agenda with support from the local commissioning support unit. 
 
Risk: Failure to have effective quality monitoring systems in place may 
compromise patient safety and the effectiveness of the services being 
delivered.   
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty: There are no 
implications to equality and diversity  
 
Accommodation: This report has no implications on accommodation. 
  
Crime and Disorder: Not applicable  
 
Human Rights: This report has no implications on human rights. 
  
Consultation: Public and patient engagement and wider stakeholder 
feedback is part of this process. 
 
Procurement: Not applicable 
 
Disability Issues: Not applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 125



 6

 

 
 

                
 
 

Monitoring Provider Quality in the NHS              
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
A single definition of quality for the NHS was first set out in ‘High Quality Care 

for All’ in 2008, following the NHS Next Stage Review led by Lord Darzi. It set 

out three three dimensions to quality, all three of which must be present in 

order to provide a high quality service:  

  

• Clinical effectiveness : quality care is care which is delivered according 

to the best evidence as to what is clinically effective in improving an  

individual’s health outcomes;  

• Safety: quality care is care which is delivered so as to avoid all  

avoidable harm and risks to the individual’s safety; and  

• Patient experience: quality care is care which looks to give the 

 individual as positive an experience of receiving and recovering from  

the care as possible, including being treated according to what that  

individual wants or needs, and with compassion, dignity and respect.  

 
2.0  Francis 2 

 

In February 2013, the second Francis Report was published on the subject of 

the catastrophic failure of care at Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust 

between 2005 and 2009. The report presents a picture of profound systemic 

failure at Mid Staffordshire Hospital: failure that produced, above all, appalling 

care for patients and service users, but that also represented a wholesale 

failure of ‘checks and balances’ within the NHS and wider care system and 

questioned the NHS approach to Quality.   

 

In the words of Francis a ‘fundamental culture change is required, one “that 

will put patients where they are entitled to be - the first and foremost 

consideration of the system and everyone that works in it.” The NHS has been 

absorbing and acting on the failures: 

 

• a culture which focused on the system, and not on the patient; 

Appendix 2: Quality Report 

Page 126



 7

• a culture which preferred to focus on positive information about 

services not that which perhaps would have highlighted problems; 

• the methods utilised to measure compliance and service provision 

failed to focus on the experience of patients; 

• high tolerance of poor standards and risks to patients; 

• failure of communication between and within organisations; 

• assumptions that monitoring, performance management and 

intervention were the responsibility of someone else; 

• a failure to tackle the imperative and challenges of building a positive 

clinical culture; 

• a failure to acknowledge and mitigate the risks of multi-level 

reorganisations, and the impact on services. 

 

This fundamental culture change that is required is not just across health but 

also the social care economy. The report’s recommendations provided a 

framework that supports the NHS and stakeholders in promoting a culture that 

puts patients, and quality of care, first.  

 

As a result NHS England, Durham Dales Easington and Sedgefield clinical 

commissioning group (DDES CCG) and North Durham CCG (NDCCG) have 

established a number of quality systems and processes that are open, 

transparent, accountable, and in which fundamental standards of care are 

understood and upheld. However in order for these systems to be effective 

and sustainable they need to be monitored.     

 
3.0  CCG approach to Quality   
 
Strategically both DDES CCG and North Durham CCG have a shared 

objective; that of ensuring patients have access to high quality clinical care, 

delivered in a timely and effective way. Assurances are sought from providers 

to ensure that they place quality at the heart of their systems and processes 

to support patient and public engagement, enable clinical leadership and 

focus, promote equality and diversity and reduce inequality. 

 

The CCGs have put in place a Clinical Quality Strategy, supported by a 

quality framework that ensures systems and processes are in place across 

the CCGs to monitor, maintain, improve and safeguard the quality of care 

commissioned and that this is encouraged and supported by all members of 

the CCGs. The strategy outlines clear lines of responsibility and accountability 

for the overall delivery of the quality of clinical care, and supports a 

comprehensive programme of quality improvement activity across the CCG.  

 

As DDES CCG and ND CCG commission a significant volume of care from 

the same providers a collaborative arrangement has been put into place 

Page 127



 8

(along with Darlington CCG), to enable and support the monitoring of the 

quality of services. This arrangement is effectively supported by a joint Quality 

Forum, held monthly to assist with the combined monitoring arrangements, 

sharing of hot spots and perceived risks and to avoid unnecessary 

duplication.   

 

Across DDES CCG and ND CCG clinical leadership has firmly been 

embedded within the quality governance structure. In order to ensure that 

clinical quality and accountability is clearly understood CCG wide clinical 

quality groups have been established. In DDES CCG this is known as the 

clinical quality working group (CQWG), in NDCCG, it is entitled the quality 

research and innovation sub-committee (QRI). Both meetings are held 

monthly and bring together key representatives of the health and social care 

economy to discuss pertinent quality issues across the CCGs and 

commissioned providers, and also retain a focus on improving quality in 

primary care.  

 

Due to the geographical localities within DDES CCG, locality clinical quality 

meetings are held bi-monthly and are steered by GP locality quality leads. 

These groups are pivotal to DDES CCG in monitoring what is happening in 

commissioned services as GP practices are very much the “eyes and ears” of 

the system. Meetings promote the need to report incidents and soft 

intelligence and to share good practice, ideas and innovations.  

In ND CCG a similar role is carried out by the GP Constituency Leads who 

attend the QRI Meetings and report back to and accumulate quality 

‘intelligence’ from their local general practices.     

 

Both CCGs are also statutorily responsible for ensuring that the organisations 

from which they commission services provide a safe system that safeguards 

children and adults at risk of abuse or neglect.  

 

North Durham and DDES CCGs are members of the Local Safeguarding 

Children Board (LSCB) and local Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB), working 

in partnership with the local authority and the Health and Wellbeing Board to 

ensure that safeguarding responsibilities are met and that robust processes 

are in place. NDCCG host both the safeguarding adult and children teams, 

managed through a memorandum of understanding, to ensure they each 

meet their statutory requirements.  

 

The CCGs have purchased elements of commissioning support, from the 

North of England Commissioning Support Unit (NECS). Through a service 

level agreement, NECS provide a support service for the CCGs in the area of 

quality and facilitate efficient working on the development, maintenance and 

monitoring of clinical quality systems and processes.   

Page 128



 9

 

4.0  Monitoring Quality 

 

Overall the monitoring of quality is achieved through a variety of means; 

contracts, reports, commissioner assurance visits and investigations, audit 

and self assessments all of which are reviewed carefully through the Clinical 

Quality Review Group (CQRGs) meetings.  

 

The CQRG meetings are held bi-monthly for both the local acute and mental 

health trusts. For independent providers a combined Quality / Contract 

meeting is held based on the aims and objectives of the quality review groups. 

 

The CCGs have very recently established a similar CQRG for the North East 

Ambulance Service, which includes 111 services, in collaboration with other 

CCGs in the region.  

  

CQRGs are pivotal to the monitoring processes for providers, their purpose is 

to: 

• Monitor and seek assurances regarding the safety, patient experience and 

clinical effectiveness of services provided. 

• Monitor and agree the direction for clinically led continuous quality 

improvement in the health and wellbeing of the populations providers 

serve. 

• Challenge areas of poor performance 

• To monitor discuss and agree actions to address quality and patient safety 

issues raised through the CQRG, and/or brought to the attention of the 

Commissioners; for example: concerns around the management and 

treatment of Learning Disability patients, high incidence of falls resulting in 

serious harm.   

• To provide assurance to CCG Boards. 

• To develop, monitor and review progress of CQUINs  

To support the monitoring of quality within commissioned providers, the CCGs 

together with NECS have ensured that provider contracts fully reflect CCG 

requirements for clinical quality. The 2013/2014 contracts now contain a list of 

indicators centred at measuring clinical quality and patient safety 

requirements from the service. These indicators are monitored through 

agreed systems and processes and require providers to supply information on 

a regular basis.  

 

This information is presented to the CCGs through a variety of methods 

including dashboards, performance scorecards and relevant and timely quality 

reports which provide transparency as to the quality of care being delivered. 

Page 129



 10

Running alongside the contract is a penalty scheme, which enables the 

commissioner to be able to apply financial penalties to areas of poor 

performance, such as the occurrence of a Never Event or delays in discharge 

information to primary care.    

 

Assurances; regarding the quality of care that is being delivered by providers 

is also monitored through monthly and quarterly reports prepared by NECS.  

The CQRGs receive the monitoring information for discussion and action; 

however the reports are also shared with CCG wide quality fora, governing 

bodies and boards.   

 

Mindful of the lessons learned from Mid Staffordshire DDES and ND CCGs 

have also introduced a process to capture and collate soft intelligence; this 

includes patient experience data, from practices, public and patient 

engagement forum and wider stakeholder feedback. The intelligence is 

triangulated with other information for example complaints, litigation, incidents 

to identify any theme or concerns that may point to failings within a providers 

service so that action can be taken to minimise any risks to patient safety.    

 

Regular information sharing meetings with partners, such as CQC and local 

authority, are in place to ensure that our patients are safe regardless of the 

care setting they are in. these meeting also benefit from input from the 

safeguarding adults team. 

  

Commissioner assurance visits have been common practice across County 

Durham and Darlington for some time.  This year, we have extended the 

programme to include community nursing and NEAS; members of the CCG 

governing bodies will participate in the visit programme. 

 

The learning from complaints, litigation, claims and incidents is systematically 

monitored and analysed by NECS as part of the ‘early warning systems’ and 

is fed back into the commissioning process to support the effectiveness of 

patient pathways and drive continuous quality improvements.   

 

Other methods of monitoring are that of announced and unannounced visits to 

providers. These are attended by representatives of the CCG and NECS and 

are key too observing first-hand, the quality of the services the CCG 

commissions.  

 

In relation to clinical effectiveness, CCGs also monitor and seek assurances 

from providers on the implementation of national guidance from NHS 

England, National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) including 

the Quality Standards, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and other 

national bodies.  

Page 130



 11

 

In conjunction, the CCGs together with NECS have developed a ‘clinical audit 

forward plan’ that audits provider’s compliance against good practice and is 

also used to monitor and assess any system failings.   

 

Providers are also required to publish an annual ‘Quality Account’ to report 

their performance on the quality of care and services they provide, this is a 

useful tool for commissioners as it highlights the key areas that providers will 

focus on and outlines  their commitment to some key quality improvements.  

 

The ‘Monitoring of Quality’ is also supported by the introduction of 

HealthWatch whose role ensures that the CCGs and partner organisation are 

made aware of the views and concerns that patients have about their local 

health and social care services, in order that improvements to services can be 

made if so required.  

 

5.0 Incentives 

 

The monitoring of quality is further supported by the introduction of a number 

of payments / incentives structured at encouraging quality improvement. The 

most significant being the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) 

framework. This national framework commenced in 2009 with the purpose of 

rewarding excellence and encouraging a culture of continuous quality 

improvement in all providers and promoting clinical engagement.  

 

Each provider of acute, ambulance, care home, community and mental health 

and learning disability services on the NHS standard contract is entitled to 

earn the nationally specified percentage of contract value subject to agreeing 

and achieving goals in a CQUIN scheme. CQUIN payment is currently worth 

2.5% of the value of the contract. Performance against the schemes is 

monitored quarterly.   

 

In addition, both CCGs have local quality improvement schemes that relate to 

primary care, encouraging reporting and proactive management of issues and 

incidents that arise in the primary care setting, and that raise concerns about 

our provider services.  This is a new approach aimed at driving up quality in 

primary care.   

 

6.0 Quality Surveillance Groups  

 

The CCGs are also members of the newly established acute Quality 

Surveillance Groups, chaired by the NHS England Area Team, which bring 

together organisations from across the health and social care economy and 

review respective information and intelligence gathered on providers through 

Page 131



 12

performance management, commissioning, and regulatory activities, to 

maintain quality in the system. One group is dedicated to overseeing mainly 

secondary care providers and a second group is just being established to 

oversee Primary Care. These are imperative to obtaining the holistic view on 

what is occurring within a provider organisation and ensures that quality is 

everyone’s business. 

 

7.0  Conclusion 

 

This paper provides some insight into how CCGS are monitoring quality 

directly within providers. However it is vital that CCGs in County Durham 

continue to engage with partner organisations and agencies such as the local 

authority to monitor quality across both the health and the social care system 

so that patients remain safe and free from harm.  

 

Page 132



 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Providing safe and high quality care 
leading up to the opening of a new hospital   

 

 
 

 

Report of Stewart Findlay, Chief Clinical Officer, Durham Dales, Easington and 
Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group and Alan Foster, Chief Executive, 
North Tees & Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Health and Wellbeing Board of the 

consultation which is taking place in relation to providing safe and high quality 
care leading up to the opening of a new hospital in the North Tees area.  

 
Background 
 
2. In 2008, the then Hartlepool Primary Care Trust and North Tees Primary Care 

Trust and North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust began the 
momentum: pathways to healthcare programme. 

 
3. The momentum: pathways to healthcare programme has 3 objectives: 

 

• changing and transforming the way the local health service works to 
provide better, safer care for patients 

 

• providing a network of community and town centre facilities 
 

• building a new hospital to replace the University Hospital of Hartlepool and 
the University Hospital of North Tees 

 
4. The government offered public funding for the new hospital in March 2010, 

however, withdrew this funding in June 2010 and therefore new funding 
sources needed to be identified.  This means that, instead of the new hospital 
being open in 2014 as planned, it is now expected to open in 2017. 

 

Safety 
 

5. Concerns were raised by doctors at North Tees and Hartlepool NHS 
Foundation Trust that services cannot continue to be provided safely until the 
new hospital opens in 2017, while meeting rising standards in care. 
 

6. In response, Hartlepool and Stockton-on-Tees Clinical Commissioning Group 
and Durham, Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 
invited the National Clinical Advisory Team to provide independent advice on 

Agenda Item 16

Page 133



reconfiguring services to ensure safe, effective and accessible services for 
patients. 

 
7. The following recommendations were identified in the Clinical Advisory 

Team’s report: 
 

• work with the trust to centralise emergency medical services and critical 
care to the University Hospital of North Tees as soon as possible 

 

• explain to the public what this means for them  
 

• ask their views about the things that they are concerned about, especially 
how they and their relatives get to hospital 

 
Consultation Proposals 
 
8. The main consultation proposal is to: 

 

• Centralise emergency medical and critical care services at the University 
Hospital of North Tees from October 2013 

 
9. This will mean that patients with lots of medical problems will not be able to 

have planned operations like hip replacements at the University Hospital of 
Hartlepool.  However, more low risk operations and treatments for local 
people are expected to be carried out at the University of Hartlepool. 

  
10. A 12 week consultation period began on 20th May and ends on 11th August.   

 
11. The following questions are included within the consultation document: 

 
1. What do you think are the advantages and the difficulties (or 

disadvantages) of the proposed changes? 
 

2. If you still have concerns, what are you most concerned about and how 
could we help to reduce your concerns? 
 

3. What do you think are the main things we need to consider in putting 
the proposed changes in place? 

 
4. Is there anything else you think we need to think about? 

 
12. The full ‘Providing safe and high quality care leading up to the opening of the 

new hospital’ consultation document is included at Appendix 2. 
 
How it will work 
 
13. Leading up to the proposed changes the following actions would be 

undertaken : 
 

Page 134



• open 120 beds at the University Hospital of North Tees to make sure 
there are enough beds and staff to look after patients from right across the 
area; 

 

• make extra space in critical care to look after critically ill patients; 
 

• gradually, close the beds in medicine and critical care at the University 
Hospital of Hartlepool and; 

 

• transfer a number of staff from support services such as pharmacy, 
radiology and pharmacy and estates who need to come to the University 
Hospital of North Tees to support the new arrangements. 

 
14. A Joint Health Scrutiny Committee of Hartlepool Borough Council, Stockton 

Borough Council and Durham County Council will be established by the end 
of June 2013 to formally respond to the consultation.  Terms of reference and 
membership are currently being agreed.  A report on this will be considered by 
the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 3rd 
July 2013. 

 
Recommendations 
 
15. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board: 

• Accept the report for information 

• Accept further reports for information as the project progresses 
 
 

Contacts:  Stewart Findlay, Chief Clinical Officer, Durham Dales, Easington 
and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group                                                                     
e-mail stewartfindlay.ddes@nhs.net 
 
Alan Foster, Chief Executive, North Tees & Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust     
e-mail alan.foster@nth.nhs.uk 
 

 

Page 135



 
 
Finance – There are no direct finance implications  
 
Staffing – The proposal is to transfer a number of staff from the University Hospital of 
Hartlepool to the University Hospital of North Tees 
 
Risk – The proposal intends to mitigate any existing risks to patient health. 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – There are no implications to 
Equality and Diversity 
 
Accommodation – The proposal is to transfer a number of services from University 
Hospital of Hartlepool to the University Hospital of North Tees and increase capacity at 
North Tees by 120 beds. 
 
Crime and Disorder – There are no implications on crime and disorder. 
 
Human Rights – There are no implications to human rights. 
 
Consultation – A public consultation is taking place between 20th May and 11th August 
2013.  
 
Procurement – There are no procurement implications. 
 
Disability Discrimination Act – There are potentially transport issues for disabled 
people that need to be considered. 
 
Legal Implications – There are no direct legal implications. 
 

Appendix 1 - Implications 

Page 136



Providing safe and  
high quality care leading up to  
the opening of the new hospital

Consultation document - 20 May - 11 August 2013 

North Tees and Hartlepool
NHS Foundation Trust

Page 137



Providing safe and high 

quality care leading up to the 

opening of the new hospital

A consultation on how best to ensure people have access to the safest and best quality, acute 

medical and critical care they need, in the lead up to the opening of the new hospital by:

Hartlepool and Stockton-on-Tees Clinical Commissioning Group

Durham, Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group

North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust

Consultation begins 20 May and ends 11 August 2013

2

Consultation document 2013

01642 666815

01642 666815

01642 666815

01642 666815

01642 666815

01642 666815

01642 666815

Page 138



Why are we carrying out  

this consultation?

The commissioners’ view

We are carrying out this consultation because the doctors who provide emergency medical 

and critical care services at North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust have told us they 

cannot carry on providing these services safely and to the expected quality standards on two 

sites until the new hospital opens in 2017.

We buy these services from the hospitals for local people and we are responsible for their 

safety and quality. As commissioners we cannot wait until a problem arises before acting. 

Our job is to look forward and try to prevent problems from happening because this is in the 

interest of patients and everyone we serve.

We asked the National Clinical Advisory Team to visit us to listen to the doctors, nurses and 

managers, patient representatives, politicians and other stakeholders so they could give us an 

independent view of the situation and what we should do about it.

The National Clinical Advisory Team provide independent clinical expertise to support and 

guide the local NHS on service reconfiguration proposals to ensure safe, effective and 

accessible services for patients. Our team was lead by Dr Chris Clough from Kings College 

Hospital, London.

We now have a copy of the National Clinical Advisory Team report and this is why we are 

now holding this consultation.

The report said we should:

work with the trust to centralise emergency medical services and critical care to the 

University Hospital of North Tees as soon as possible

explain to the public what this means for them, which is why we are including a number of 

examples later in this document

ask their views about the things that they are concerned about, especially how they and 

their relatives get to hospital

Dr Boleslaw 

Posmyk 

Chair, Hartlepool 

and Stockton-

on-Tees Clinical 

Commissioning 

Group (CCG) 

Dr Paul Williams 

Stockton-on-

Tees locality lead, 

Hartlepool and 

Stockton-on-Tees 

CCG and governing 

body member 

Dr Mike Smith 

Hartlepool locality 

lead, Hartlepool 

and Stockton-on-

Tees CCG 

 

 

Dr Stewart Findlay 

Chief clinical officer, 

Durham, Dales, 

Easington and 

Sedgefield Clinical 

Commissioning 

Group

3

Consultation document 2013

Page 139



The provider’s view

As the doctors who lead medicine and critical care in the trust, we are becoming increasingly 

concerned about our ability to provide safe services across our two hospital sites until the 

new hospital opens. 

We are passionate about providing the safest, highest quality care possible and to meeting or 

exceeding the standards expected by the Department of Health, professional organisations, 

the deanery (which is responsible for organising the training of tomorrow’s doctors) and 

most of all our patients. 

While our services are safe and good quality today we want to ensure they will continue to 

be in the years to come. We want to ensure we can continue to provide excellent care for 

all our patients in the short, medium and long term – the type of care we would want for 

ourselves and our loved ones - but when our medical and nursing colleagues tell us they are 

concerned, then we have to act. 

We raised these concerns at the highest level in the trust and, quite correctly, the trust raised 

these concerns with our commissioners who buy this care from our trust.

Together, as commissioners and provider, we are totally committed to ensuring that patients 

from the area we serve - Hartlepool, Stockton and parts of Easington and Sedgefield – can 

rely on the same standard of service regardless of where they live.

Had the new hospital opened its doors in 2014 as originally planned then we would have 

been bringing medical and nursing teams together now to be ready for the move to the new 

hospital. As things stand the new hospital is now expected to open in 2017 and we know 

things cannot stay as they are until then because:

quite rightly, safety and quality standards continue to rise, but it is becoming increasingly 

difficult for us to keep pace with these requirement on two sites

the way junior doctors are trained has changed and the deanery will not allow trainees to 

work in hospitals where they do not see enough patients to increase their learning and skills

like the rest of the NHS we need to bring services together to ensure we can achieve the 

same standards of care for everyone living in the area served by our trust

Dr Suresh 

Narayanan 

clinical director for 

anaesthetics and 

critical care

Dr Jean MacLeod 

clinical director for 

medicine

North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust

4

Consultation document 2013

Page 140



Already, because of advances in medicine many patients from our area already go past their 

local hospital for their emergency medical care. For example: 

patients who have had a stroke are all taken to the University Hospital of North Tees where 

we can offer the latest treatments seven days a week, 365 days a year. We used to provide 

these services seven days a week at the University Hospital of North Tees but were only able 

to provide them Monday to Friday, 9am until 5pm, at the University Hospital of Hartlepool 

which was unfair on people from Hartlepool and Easington because strokes don’t just 

happen in working hours. Because we have brought the skilled doctors who can carry out 

these treatments together we can now provide these services for everyone we serve. 

patients who have had certain types of heart attack are assessed at the scene and  

taken to The James Cook University Hospital in Middlesbrough to have the affected  

artery unblocked.

Both of these advances in medicine give patients a better chance of survival and recovery.  

As doctors we want local people to have access to the very best care available. This does 

mean this care cannot always be on the doorstep but in the modern NHS we have to accept 

that, while we can have most of our straightforward care provided locally, we have to travel 

for more specialist care.

It's also important to remember that most of the care provided by the health service is already 

provided in GP surgeries, local clinics and in people's homes and, under the momentum: 

pathways to healthcare programme, this will continue. We are beginning to take advantage 

of new technologies like telehealth where people can monitor their own health at home 

supported by a highly skilled team of community nurses. We already have many excellent 

examples of where this is working well and preventing people from having to be admitted to 

hospital. Medicine is advancing all of the time and we want to ensure we can offer the latest 

and best services and technologies to local people. 

We are working closely with our commissioners because they, as the people who buy your 

care, and we, as the people who provide your care, have the same aim; that is to make sure 

your care is of the very best standard, wherever you live in the area we serve.

The important thing for you to know is, once the changes have been made, you do 

not need to do anything different. If you are unwell you will either contact your 

doctor or ring 999, just as you would today. Ambulance paramedics will assess you 

when they arrive and, if appropriate, begin treating you. They will make sure you 

get to the right place and to the right experts for any further treatment and care 

you need.

This is why we are joining Hartlepool and Stockton-on-Tees Clinical Commissioning Group 

and Durham, Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group to explain  

why things need to change but also to listen to any concerns you may have so we can 

address them.

5

Consultation document 2013

Page 141



How did we get to where  

we are now?

In 2008 what were then Hartlepool Primary Care Trust and North Tees Primary Care Trust 

and North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust began the momentum: pathways to 

healthcare programme.

The programme came about because the then Secretary of State for Health carried out a 

large national public consultation to ask people how they would like health care to be in the 

future. The results of this large national consultation became the White Paper Our health, our 

care, our say

People said they wanted:

to be kept fit and healthy and for the health service to step in early if people start to 

become ill

care given close to or in their own homes

a health service that fits in with their lives, not the needs of the health service

only to go to hospital if they couldn't be looked after nearer home or at home

There were other reasons too:

people are, fortunately, living longer but they are often living with a number of health 

problems and the local health service has to change the way it works to ensure it can 

provide the type of care local people need

the doctors, nurses and other health professionals want to continually improve care and 

that means they have to change the way they work to do this by:

 - making waiting times shorter

 - providing more services in GP practices and town centre clinics

 - making services safer

 - working in increasingly specialised teams to make the best use of their skills and 

resources

the way doctors are trained has changed and the organisation responsible for training will 

only send their doctors to work and train in areas where they will get the right experience 

to improve their skills

The momentum: pathways to healthcare programme is made up of three things:

changing and transforming the way the local health service works to provide better, safer 

care for patients

providing a network of community and town centre facilities 

building a new hospital to replace the University Hospital of Hartlepool and the University 

Hospital of North Tees

6

Consultation document 2013

Page 142



The new hospital

The new hospital is the final piece of the momentum jigsaw

The government offered public funding for the new hospital in March 2010.  

However the new government withdrew this funding in June 2010. The government said it 

realised there was a need to build the new hospital but the organisations who buy services on 

behalf of local people and the trust needed to find a different way to pay for it.

This means that, instead of the new hospital being open in 2014 as planned, it is now 

expected to open in 2017.

Doctors providing emergency medical and critical care at North Tees and Hartlepool NHS 

Foundation Trust told the commissioners that, while they could have made arrangements 

to keep the two hospitals' emergency medical wards and critical care open until 2014, they 

simply cannot do this until 2017. They said they want to take the interim step of centralising 

emergency medical wards and critical care at the University Hospital of North Tees until the 

new hospital opens to keep services to the high standards we all want and expect.

As commissioners and providers of care our main concern is safety and quality and we 

are becoming increasingly uncomfortable with the current situation because we know the 

services in the two hospitals are increasingly unequal. This is making it impossible to provide 

the levels of safety and quality we would all want in the longer term

We are doing our very best to minimise these inequalities but, because of the increasingly 

high standards of care required, this is becoming a major challenge and we all know we 

cannot keep providing the type of care patients deserve with things the way they are.

This is because:

it is becoming more and more difficult to staff medical rotas on two sites 

the standards of care required are, quite rightly, rising continuously

7

Consultation document 2013

Transforming services . . . . new community facilities . . . . . . . . new hospital

momentum
pathways to healthcare

Page 143



8

Consultation document 2013

Page 144



What we are proposing to do

After much discussion with health professionals, a review of alternative options and receiving 

the report from the independent National Clinical Advisory Team, which agreed with us that 

there are no viable safe alternatives, we are now proposing to centralise emergency medical 

and critical care services at the University Hospital of North Tees from October 2013. 

Bringing these services together would affect some other services such as other parts of 

the medical directorate, pathology, radiology, pharmacy and other support services such as 

facilities and catering. It would mean that patients with lots of medical problems will not be 

able to have planned operations like hip replacements at the University Hospital of Hartlepool 

but we do not expect this would affect very many patients because modern anaesthetics are 

safer. We want to ensure that most health care in Hartlepool continues to take place locally 

so we will be looking at ways to provide more low-risk operations and other treatments in 

the University Hospital of Hartlepool for local people. However we always have to assess if 

this will be safe and it will be for that reason and that reason alone, that we would transfer 

high risk planned operations to the University Hospital of North Tees.

We know this proposal will worry and disappoint some people but as the organisations which 

are responsible for your services we cannot allow this situation to go on any longer and we 

know these changes should be made. 

How it will work

Leading up to the proposed changes we would:

open 120 beds at the University Hospital of North Tees to make sure we have enough beds 

and staff to look after patients from right across our area;

make extra space in critical care so we can look after critically ill patients;

we would then, gradually, close the beds in medicine and critical care at the University 

Hospital of Hartlepool and; 

transfer a number of staff from support services such as pharmacy, radiology and  

pharmacy and estates who need to come to the University Hospital of North Tees to 

support the new arrangements.

9

Consultation document 2013

Page 145



Patient stories
The National Clinical Advisory Team said we should set out how things would work in future 

if these proposals are implemented.

Here are some examples

Elsie’s story

Elsie, 75, from Greatham is feeling unwell. She has had heart problems for a while but today 

she feels very short of breath, her daughter is worried about her and phones her GP. The GP 

calls at the house and decides Elsie needs to be in hospital. The GP tells the hospital he would 

like Elsie brought in during the next two hours. The ambulance arrives and takes Elsie to the 

emergency assessment unit at the University Hospital of North Tees where she is assessed by 

the doctor in charge. The doctors diagnosed an irregular heart beat and start Elsie on drugs 

to treat it. She is also put on a heart monitor and observed by nurses for the next 24 hours. 

The doctor says Elsie can go home and her daughter comes to collect her. The nurses make 

Elsie an appointment to see the heart specialist in outpatients at the University Hospital of 

Hartlepool the following week.

George’s story

George, 80, from Hartlepool, has a painful swollen leg. He is worried about this and phones 

999. The ambulance takes him to the ambulatory care unit which is part of the emergency 

assessment unit at the University Hospital of North Tees He is diagnosed with a deep vein 

thrombosis. While in the ambulatory care unit he is started on blood thinning drugs.  

A specialist nurse explains to George that he will have to take the drugs for several weeks. 

The doctor says George can go home. A nurse arranges for George to be taken home  

by ambulance. The district nurse visits George at home to see how is doing until he  

is fully recovered.

Jason’s story

Jason, 45, from Easington, has diabetes had a fluttering feeling in his chest and was dizzy. 

He thought he was going to faint so he called 999. The ambulance paramedic carried out 

an ECG (a heart test) at Jason’s house. The ECG showed that Jason wasn’t having a heart 

attack but he did need medical attention so the ambulance brought him to the emergency 

assessment unit at the University Hospital of North Tees. Jason was put on heart monitoring 

equipment and was given drugs to stabilise his abnormal heart beat. The doctor said Jason 

could go home once he was stabilised on the treatment but he needed to see a heart 

specialist to get to the bottom of the problem so an appointment was made for him to see a 

heart specialist at the University Hospital of Hartlepool the following week. 

10

Consultation document 2013

Page 146



John’s story

John, 75, has diabetes. He was feeling ill because his diabetes was out of control and he 

phoned 999. The ambulance paramedic assessed him at home and then he was brought to 

the University Hospital of North Tees. A doctor specialising in diabetes was able to see him 

straightaway and he was given the appropriate drugs to stabilise his diabetes. He stayed in 

overnight for observation and was allowed home the next day. He saw the diabetes specialist 

in outpatients the following week to ensure his diabetes was stable. 

Mary’s story

Mary, 70, is taken ill and her son phones 999. The ambulance takes Mary to the University 

Hospital of North Tees where she is diagnosed with pneumonia. Mary becomes worse and 

she has to be transferred to critical care for intensive medical support. After two days Mary 

is improving and she is transferred back to the ward. After three days Mary is allowed to go 

home with support from the community team who give her intravenous  

(a drip) antibiotics every day for the next 10 days until she has fully recovered.

Sharon’s story

Sharon, 47, from the Fens, Hartlepool, noticed her leg was red and sore. She also felt 

feverish. She went to her GP who said she needed to be seen by a hospital doctor. Her 

husband took her to the ambulatory care unit at the University Hospital of North Tees, 

part of the emergency assessment unit. A doctor assessed Sharon’s leg and the soft tissue 

infection was diagnosed as cellulitis. She was started off on a drip of antibiotics while in 

the ambulatory care unit and after further observations she was allowed home four hours 

later. The unit arranged for the rapid response nurses to go to Sharon’s home to give her 

intravenous antibiotics each day Three days later she came back to the ambulatory care unit 

to see the doctor who was happy with how the soft tissue infection was clearing up. He 

recommended intravenous antibiotics until the end of the week and the rapid response team 

came to Sharon’s house daily to give the treatment until the infection cleared up. This saved 

Sharon and her husband several trips to hospital.

Betty’s story

Betty, 90, from Easington ,was confused and unable to get out of bed and her son called the 

GP. The GP thought Betty should be in hospital and asked for her to be admitted in the next 

two hours. The ambulance brought Betty to the emergency assessment unit at the University 

Hospital of North Tees where she was assessed by doctors. Betty had a urine infection which 

was making her confused so doctors started her on antibiotics. Doctors arranged for Betty 

to be transferred to the step down ward at the University Hospital of Hartlepool in a ward 

staffed by highly skilled nurses and therapists. It was becoming clear that Betty was having 

difficulty managing in her own home and discussions began so Betty could move to a home 

specially set up to meet her needs. Her family were pleased that they could visit her easily in 

the two weeks she stayed in hospital. 

11

Consultation document 2013

Page 147



Transport

When the new hospital is built

Looking on a map, the new hospital (signified by the red dot) is centrally located in the area 

we serve. At the moment it is a green-field site on what we know is a very busy junction 

off the A19/A689. But the plans for the new hospital are supported by a comprehensive 

public and private transport plan and we are committed to ensure the new hospital is easily 

accessible for all. 

As things are now

We know people may not find it easy to get to the University Hospital of North Tees for 

emergency care or to the University Hospital of Hartlepool for a planned operation.  

We know it can be difficult for people to visit their loved ones. 

North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust’s council of governors has a transport 

committee which is already working on improving transport for patients, visitors and staff. 

So far the trust has:

set up joint working with Hartlepool Borough Council to improve transport

recruited a team of volunteer drivers to help people with transport problems to access 

hospital services

ordered two 17-seater buses so it can increase the cross-site shuttle bus service

Please tell us about your concerns and if there's anything else we could be doing so we can 

try to address them. 

12

Consultation document 2013

Page 148



Publishing the report

On 15 May we shared the report of the National Clinical Advisory Team with all the people 

the independent experts met when they visited the area in January.

At that meeting we listened to the questions and comments and we have added them to this 

document so we can ensure that we address all of these issues.

People were disappointed that services could not stay in two separate sites and the doctors 

explained why this was the case. They also explained that they had done many things to try 

and preserve services on two sites but that was becoming increasingly difficult to do.

The main concern was transport and people told us that it was very difficult for people to 

get to the University Hospital of Hartlepool from Stockton and to the University Hospital of 

North Tees from Hartlepool and Easington, especially by public transport. There were issues 

about the ambulance patient transport service which does not start until 8.30am. This is a 

problem for people who have early appointments and makes it impossible for people to get 

to hospital on time when they are already worried and distressed about their treatment.  

We promise we will look into this urgently.

People wanted to know if we would scrap the plans if the public consultation resulted 

in local people being unhappy about the changes. We said we were going into the 

consultation with an open mind and we were not prepared to say what we would do until 

we had heard everyone’s views at the end of the consultation.

People thought we didn’t try hard enough to put things right in Hartlepool. We explained 

that we had done as much as we possibly could to put things right and we were left with 

no option but to centralise services to keep them safe for the future.

People thought the North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust paid different rates of 

pay and gave shorter contracts to doctors working at the University Hospital of Hartlepool. 

This is not true. All doctors working at the trust have a trust-wide contract and are expected 

to work at either hospital.

People thought the people of Hartlepool were being let down. The doctors explained that 

they would be letting people down if they allowed the current situation to continue.

People thought that no more joint replacements would be done at the University Hospital 

of Hartlepool. This is not correct. The trust’s doctors explained that they intend to continue 

carrying out joint replacement at the University Hospital of Hartlepool with the only 

exception being where patients had many medical problems because those patients need 

the back up of critical care so the operation can be carried out safely.

People thought that the people of Stockton might suffer if all of the services were brought 

together. The trust’s doctors said things would actually improve for everyone if the services 

were brought together.

People thought the consultation is a done deal. The clinical commissioning group 

explained that, while they believe the changes need to go ahead, they do want to listen 

to people’s views. 

People thought the National Clinical Advisory Team were the hatchet men. The National 

Clinical Advisory Team is a team of independent medical experts who do not know the 

organisations and who come in, look at the evidence in front of them and speak to 

doctors, nurses, managers, patient representatives, politicians and other stakeholders. 

No health organisation can persuade the National Clinical Action Team to say anything it 

doesn’t want to say.
13

Consultation document 2013

Page 149



What this consultation is about
We want to get your views on our proposals and understand your concerns about the proposed 

changes and we would particularly like you to answer the following questions for us:

1.  What do you think are the advantages and the difficulties (or disadvantages) of the proposed 

changes?

2.  If you still have concerns, what are you most concerned about and how could we help to 

reduce your concerns?

3.  What do you think are the main things we need to consider in putting the proposed changes 

in place?

4.  Is there anything else you think we need to think about?

We know for example that people could be concerned about how they get to the hospital to visit 

their loved ones. We promise we will listen to these concerns and we will work with the local 

authorities and others to do whatever we can to help.

Please use the time in the 12 weeks of the consultation to tell us your views. You can do this by:

Writing us an email and send it to: communications@tees.nhs.uk or,

Writing to:

Hartlepool and Stockton-on-Tees CCG 

FREEPOST NEA9906 

Middlesbrough 

TS2 1BR

or by coming to one of the meetings we have organised, see the website at:  

www.hartlepoolandstocktonccg.nhs.uk for more details

14

Consultation document 2013

Page 150



North Tees and Hartlepool
NHS Foundation Trust

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Update on Winterbourne View Concordat 
Implementation 
 

 

 
 

 

Report of David Shipman, Strategic Commissioning Manager, Children and 
Adults Services, Durham County Council 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on progress made in relation 

to the Winterbourne View Concordat. 
 
Background 
 
2. The Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board received an initial report in relation to 

the Winterbourne View Concordat on 6th March 2013. 
 

3. As outlined in that report, key milestones for the Concordat were as follows: 

• The identification of Adult Service Users in receipt of NHS funded care 
currently in assessment/treatment beds or private hospitals, with learning 
disability/autism/challenging behaviour, by the end of March 2013 

• The identification of all children in receipt  of NHS funded care, people in 
forensic services and people in receipt of Continuing Health Care, by the 
end of March 2013 

• A programme of individual reviews for all of the first cohort to be in place 
by June 2013 

• A plan to return individuals in the first cohort to local services by June 
2014 
 

4. Health and Local Authority Officers are now working together to implement 
these actions, with lead officers from the North East Commissioning Support 
Unit (Donna Owens, LD Lead for Teesside, Durham and Darlington) and 
Durham County Council (David Shipman, Strategic Manager and Tracy Joisce 
Operations Manager) co-ordinating the activity in County Durham. 
  

Progress to Date 
 
5. The required register of relevant service users in County Durham has been 

compiled and was submitted to the Department of Health (DH) within the set 
timescales. 
 

6. The register details have been shared with relevant Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) officers and a full briefing has been provided to CCGs by Donna 

Agenda Item 17

Page 153



2 

 

Owens. 
 

7. Guidance on the ‘Enhanced Reviews’ required has now been circulated by DH. 
 

8. A clear governance structure has been established at national level, through 
the Joint Improvement Programme, with Local Government Association lead.  It 
is envisaged that the work programme will have a two year lifespan from April 
2013. 
 

9. 
 
 
 
 
 

At regional level the work will be co-ordinated through the North East and 
Cumbria Learning Disability Clinical Networks, with the detailed work carried 
out in a Winterbourne Implementation Group.  Donna Owens and David 
Shipman are both group members and attended the first meeting on 16th May 
2013. 
 

Next Steps 
 
10. 
 
 
11. 

A local implementation group has been established to address the specific, 
individual case issues. 
 
There are currently 10 relevant Service Users, six aligned to Durham Dales, 
Easington and Sedgefield CCG and four to North Durham CCG.   
  

12. Explicit plans will then be developed for each individual to enable their return to 
suitable local services by June 2014. 
 

13. Detailed consideration will also need to be given to a range of related issues, 
including the following: 
 

• Joint funding mechanisms and possible use of pooled budgets  

• Commissioning of additional advocacy services if there is insufficient 
capacity and availability within current contracts 

• Improved engagement with Public Health and community services 

• Market management and capacity building with providers 

• Whether it is possible to reduce the number of assessment/treatment 
beds commissioned in County Durham, in line with DH expectations. 
 

14. To support the process there will be further work by the Joint Improvement 
Programme Board with Health Providers to examine service users and 
discharge processes. 
 

15. The Joint Improvement Board will also be appointing four Health Improvement 
Advisors, to work across local areas in assisting with implementation of the 
Concordat. 
 

16. Further monitoring of implementation by Department of Health will ensue.  The 
first element of this will be a ‘Stocktake’ exercise to be completed jointly by 
each Local Authority and Health area and returned to Department of Health by 
5th July 2013. 

  

Page 154



3 

 

17. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19. 
 
 
 
20. 

The ‘Stocktake’ focusses on the following areas: 
 

• Models of Partnership 

• Budget 

• Case Management 

• Current Review Programme 

• Safeguarding  

• Commissioning 

• Developing Local Teams and Services 

• Prevention and crisis response capacity 

• Understanding the population who need/receive services 

• Children and Adults – Transition Planning 

• Current and Future Market Requirements and capacity 
 

The response to the ‘Stocktake’ will be coordinated by Donna Owens and David 
Shipman and will be completed within the required timescales.  It will not be 
possible to return the ‘Stocktake’ response to the Health and Wellbeing Board 
for formal sign off before 5th July 2013.  It will be necessary for the Board to 
delegate the responsibility to named signatories from DCC (Chief Executive), 
CCG representative and the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
In addition, Winterbourne Implementation will be covered in the next Joint 
Health and Social Care Learning Disabilities Self Assessment Framework, due 
to be compiled in the Autumn 2013. 
 
In May Normal Lamb, MP, Minister of State for Care and Support wrote to 
Chairs of Health and Wellbeing Boards, Council Leaders and Chief Executives, 
and Chairs and Chief Operating Officers for CCG’s – See appendix 2.  The 
letter urges Health and Wellbeing Boards to take a full and active role in 
ensuring that the commitments made in the Winterbourne Concordat are 
delivered locally. 
 

Recommendations 
 
19. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board: 
  

 
 
 

• Receive this update and share it with relevant staff and 
Stakeholders. 

• Note that the ‘Stocktake’ return for the Department of Health will be 
agreed by named signatories from DCC (Chief Executive), CCG 
representative and the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

• Receive a further update including a detailed implementation plan, 
at a future meeting in November 2013. 
 

  
 
 

Contacts:  David Shipman, Strategic Commissioning Manager, Children and 
Adults Services, 03000 267391 

 

Page 155



4 

 

   
 

 
 
Finance – There are possible significant cost implications for both health and the Council. 
 
Staffing – None – work carried out within current resources 
 
Risk – No direct implications at this stage 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – providing specialist services for 
people with learning disabilities and complex needs.  Full consultation with affected 
service users and their families will be carried out. 
 
Accommodation  - Specialist accommodation will be developed within the County.  
 
Crime and Disorder  - No implications  
 
Human Rights Consultation - Full consultation with affected service users and their 
families will be carried out. 
 
Procurement – procurement will be carried out within existing procurement frameworks 
 
Disability Discrimination Act – ensure people with complex needs have their needs met 
in appropriate local services 
 
Legal Implications –  Mental Capacity Act and Best Interest decision making processes 
will be followed. 
  
 

Appendix 1 - Implications 

Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
21st June 2013 
 
Review of NHS Community Services 

 

 
 

 

Report of Mike Taylor, Chief Finance and Operating Officer, Durham Dales, 
Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group / Nicola Bailey, Chief 
Operating Officer, North Durham Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with a high level summary update, on 

the development of the Health and Wellbeing Board and Clinical Programme 
Board subgroup for Community Services and Care Closer to Home.  This update 
will summarise progress so far along with next steps for the sub group. 
 

2. To propose a mechanism and frequency for reporting back to the Health and  
Wellbeing Board with updates for all Clinical Programme Board sub groups. 

 
Structure  
 
3. The Community Services and Intermediate Care Clinical Programme Board sub 

group was established on agreement by the County Durham and Darlington 
Clinical Programme Board. It was agreed that this sub-group should be merged 
with the Care Closer to Home Group, of which the Terms of Reference were 
under review.  

 
4. This newly formed group will become the Community Services and Care Closer 

to Home Group.  This group will be a sub group of both the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and the Clinical Programme Board.  Proposed representation of this group 
is as follows: 

• NHS Foundation Trusts – Tees, Esk and Wear Valley, County Durham 
and Darlington, North Tees and Hartlepool, City Hospitals Sunderland 

• CCGs (Darlington, DDES, North Durham)  

• Local Authority – County Durham, Darlington 

• Primary Care Commissioning (NHS England Area Team) 

• Healthwatch County Durham and Healthwatch Darlington 

• North East Commissioning Support (NECS) 

• 3rd Sector representation 
 

5. The first meeting of the Community Services and Care Closer to Home Group 
was on 12 June 2013. 

 
6. The purpose of the Community Services and Care Closer to Home Group is to 

ensure a partnership focused approach to manage and coordinate the review, 

Agenda Item 18

Page 161



development and delivery of local patient community based health and 
intermediate care services. 

 
Progress 
 
7. A ‘Current State’ report was written to give a brief overview of community 

services/intermediate care provision in County Durham and Darlington and to 
highlight initiatives identified by Darlington, Durham Dales, Easington and 
Sedgefield and North Durham CCGs in relation to improving community services 
and intermediate care within their localities and at a wider level. 
 

8. Commissioning work plans for 2013/14 from the three County Durham and 
Darlington CCGs were categorised and aligned to the community contract service 
lines.  

 
9. Further analysis on the community contract service specifications have been 

carried out to group associated services into broader service areas e.g. 
Cardiovascular Disease, Respiratory, etc. The measurable outcomes for each 
service area have been identified where possible, and reviews of the outcomes 
recommended as required.   

 
10. A survey of GP practices in County Durham and Darlington to obtain their views 

of the district nursing service was carried out in 2012 and 2013. The results of the 
2013 survey show improvements in all comparable questions including that: 

• The district nursing service works well for my patients 

• The district nursing service works well for me and my practice 

• I am clear what treatment and care that district nurses can offer my 
patients 

• I am clear what treatment and care that community matrons can offer my 
patients 

 
11. A review of district nursing patients in County Durham and Darlington was also 

carried out in 2012 and 2013. The results show high levels of patient satisfaction 
within the service. 

 
12. The CCG leads and the Community Services and Care Closer to Home Group 

Clinical Director agreed and carried out an initial process to ensure engagement 
with the staff. A series of seven sessions were held across the county between 
17th and 31st May 2013.  Feedback received will be incorporated into the overall 
review.  Areas to note are: 

• Focus on Quality 

• Mobile Working 

• Integration 

• 7/7 Services 
 

13. Peopletoo were jointly commissioned by County Durham and Darlington NHS 
Foundation Trust through the Community Services and Care Closer to Home 
Group to undertake an independent, high level evaluation of existing intermediate 
care services. They engaged with a range of stakeholders from CCGs, Durham 
County Council, County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust and GPs 

Page 162



to develop an outline business case for a proposed operating model to deliver 
intermediate care services in County Durham, which would meet the needs of 
key stakeholder groups. The outline business case highlights issues and 
limitations of current intermediate care services that were communicated by 
stakeholders and outlines a new model of service delivery that is agreed by all 
the organisations involved. As a result a detailed business case for the 
implementation of this model is being developed, this work is expected to be 
completed by September 2013.  
 

Next Steps 
 
14. The CCGs have identified several priority areas within the list of contracted 

services which mainly impact upon urgent care, intermediate care and community 
nursing.  The Community Services and Care Closer to Home group will be setting 
up criteria for review and stakeholders required to progress this work. 

 
15. Part of the review will consider models of care and service specifications from 

other areas to identify and incorporate best practice into the current 
commissioned services or to inform future services.  An example of which is the 
IMProVE (Integrated Management and Proactive care for the Vulnerable and 
Elderly) project being implemented by South Tees CCG in partnership with South 
Tees Foundation Trust which focuses community services on delivering and 
improving outcomes on patient care. 

 
Recommendations 
 
16. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board note the contents of this 

report and agree to receive future updates. 
 

Contacts:   
 
Helen Stoker, Senior Commissioning Support Officer – Service Planning and 
Reform, North of England Commissioning Support (NECS).  Tel (0191 
3744152).  E-mail h.stoker@nhs.net 
 
Mike Taylor, Chief Finance and Operating Officer, Durham Dales, Easington 
and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group. Tel (0191 3713211).  E-mail 
mike.taylor@nhs.net 
 
Nicola Bailey, Chief Operating Officer, North Durham Clinical Commissioning 
Group, email: Nicola.Bailey5@nhs.net, Tel: 0191 6053169 

Page 163



 
 
Finance – Implications for budgets need to be considered as part of the review. 
 
Staffing – Relevant NHS staff will need to considered as part of the review 
 
Risk – Risks will be managed as part of the review. 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty: There are no implications to 
equality and diversity  
 
Accommodation: This report has no implications on accommodation. 
  
Crime and Disorder: Not applicable  
 
Human Rights: This report has no implications on human rights. 
  
Consultation: Public and patient engagement and wider stakeholder feedback is 
part of this process. 
 
Procurement: Not applicable 
 
Disability Issues: Not applicable 
 
Legal Implications – No implications 

Appendix 1 - Implications 

Page 164



Agenda Item 21

Page 165

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 22

Page 173

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 177

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 179

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan  - Report of Head of Planning and Service Strategy, Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council
	Item 7 - JHWS Delivery Plan 2013-17

	8 Disabled Children's Charter for Health and Wellbeing Boards - Report of Head of Planning and Service Strategy, Adult and Children's Services, Durham County Council
	Item 8 - Appendix 2

	9 Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group Local Priorities 2013/14 - Report of Chief Clinical Officer, DDES CCG
	10 Integration Pioneer Project - Joint Report of Corporate Director, Children & Adults Services, Durham County Council and Chief Operating Officer, North Durham CCG
	11 Policy Update - Report of Strategic Manager - Policy, Planning and Partnerships, Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council
	12 Review of Sustainable Community Strategy - Report of Head of Partnerships and Community Engagement,  Durham County Council
	13 Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2012-15 - Report of Consultant in Public Health, Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council
	14 Securing Quality in Health Services - Report of Project Director, Securing Quality in Health Services, Darlington CCG
	15 Monitoring Provider Quality in the NHS - Joint Report of Director of Clinical Quality and Primary Care Development, DDES CCG, Director of Quality and Safety, North Durham CCG and Medical Director, NHS England, Darlington and Tees Area Team
	16 Providing Safe and High Quality Care leading up to the Opening of a New Hospital - Joint Report of Chief Clinical Officer, DDES CCG and Chief Executive, North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust
	Item 16 - Appendix 2

	17 Update on Winterbourne Review Concordat Implementation - Report of Strategic Commissioning Manager, Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council
	Item 17 - Appendix 2 - Letter to HWBBs winterbourne view

	18 Review of NHS Community Services - Joint Report Chief Finance and Operating Officer, DDES CCG and Chief Operating Officer, North Durham CCG
	21 Minutes of the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board held on 6 March 2013
	22 Pharmacy Relocation Application - Report of Director of Public Health, Children and Adults Services, Durham County Council
	Item 22 - Part B Letter NHS England
	Item 22 - Part B pharmacy application


